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Notice is hereby given that the 35th annual General Meeting of the
Members of the company will be held on september 21, 2020 (Monday)
at 11:00 a.m. ist through Video conferencing (“Vc”) / other audio Visual
Means (“oaVM”) to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1. to receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial statements of 
the company for the year ended  March 31, 2020,  together with the
reports of the Board of directors and auditors thereon.

2. to declare dividend on equity shares.

3. to appoint a director in place of Mr. Vinay Mittal (diN 05242535),
who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for 
re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

4. Appointment of Mr. Takahiro Ueda (DIN 08685990) as a Director

to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as an ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 152 
and any other applicable provisions of the companies act, 2013 
and the rules made thereunder, including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force,
Mr. takahiro ueda (diN 08685990)  who was appointed as an
additional director of the company to hold office as such from
February 01, 2020, under  section 161 of the companies act, 2013 
and under article 90 of the articles of association of the company
and who holds office upto the date of this annual General Meeting
and in respect of whom the company has received a notice in writing
from a member proposing his candidature for the office of director,
be and is hereby appointed as a director of the company whose
period of office shall be liable to determination by retirement of
directors by rotation.”

5. Approval for payment of remuneration to Mr. Takahiro 
Ueda (DIN 08685990), CMD and President & CEO of the 
Company 

to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as special resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 196, 197,
203 and any other applicable provisions of the companies act, 2013
and the rules made thereunder, including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force,
read with schedule V of the companies act, 2013 and  seBi (listing
obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015, and
subject to the approval of the central Government, if required, and
such other approvals and sanctions as may be necessary, approval 
of the shareholders be and is hereby accorded for the appointment 
of Mr. takahiro ueda (diN 08685990) as president & ceo of the
company, liable to retire by rotation, with effect from February 01,
2020 (re-designated as cMd and president & ceo with effect from
april 01, 2020) and for payment of remuneration, for a period of five
years effective from  February 01, 2020 on the following terms and
conditions as recommended by the Nomination and remuneration
committee:   
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Salary

Basic

Salary reimbursement 
to Japan

Perquisites

Housing and Hard
Furnishing

Special Allowance

Medical 
reimbursement

Membership fee for
Japanese Association

Club Fee 

Personal Accident 
Insurance

Insurance of 
Household Goods

Medical Insurance

Reimbursement of 
Expenses Incurred on
Joining Duty And 
Returning to home 
country after 
completion of tenure

` 75,000/- (rupees seventy Five
thousand only) per month

Not exceeding ` 12,00,000/- (rupees
twelve lakh only) per month to be
reimbursed on actual  basis.

as per company rules.

Not exceeding ` 12,50,000/- (rupees
twelve lakh Fifty thousand only) per
month.

actual medical expenses to be borne 
by the company

` 1000/- (rupees one thousand only)
per month.

admission fee, monthly and annual
charges, for one club.

premium not to exceed ` 2,000/- 
(rupees two thousand only) per annum.

premium not to exceed ` 750/- 
(rupees seven hundred Fifty only) per
annum.

premium not to exceed ` 10,000/- 
(rupees ten thousand only) per annum.

cost of air ticket (economy class) 
and actual expenses incurred on travel
pertaining to self and family and on
packing, forwarding, loading/unloading
as well as freight, insurance, customs
duty, clearing expenses, local
transportation and installation expenses
in connection with the moving of personal
effects for self and family for joining duty in
india, in case these have not been
claimed from the previous employer.
after completion of the tenure, such
expenses would be reimbursed if the
director leaves for the home country.

NOTICE

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of directors, which term
shall include the committee of the Board duly constituted, be and 
is hereby authorized to alter and vary from time to time during 
the  tenure of appointment of Mr. takahiro ueda, the terms 
and conditions of appointment including as to the remuneration in
such manner as in the best interest of the company and in
accordance with the laws in force from time to time and acceptable
to Mr. takahiro ueda, provided that the remuneration after such
alteration shall not exceed the limits prescribed under  the
companies act, 2013.



RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the remuneration as aforesaid, shall be
paid as minimum remuneration, if necessary, with the approval of 
the central Government, for any year in the event of absence or 
inadequacy of profits for such year.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of directors and the
company secretary be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts
and deeds as may be necessary, expedient or desirable, in order to
give effect to this resolution or otherwise as considered by the Board
to be in the best interest of the company.”

6. Appointment of Mr. Ravi Prakash Mehrotra as an Independent
Director of the Company

to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as an ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 149, 150,
152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the companies 
act, 2013 (‘act’), and the rules made thereunder (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in
force), read with schedule iV of the act and seBi (listing obligations
and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015, Mr. ravi prakash
Mehrotra (diN 06823899) who was appointed as an additional 
director of the company with effect from March 31, 2020 for 
appointment as independent director effective from the said date for a
period of five years from the said date, to hold office up to the date 
of this annual General Meeting in terms of section 161(1) of the 
act and who has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria
for independence as provided in section 149(6) of the act and who is
eligible for appointment, be and is hereby appointed as an 
independent director of the company, not liable to retire by rotation, to
hold office for a term of 5 years commencing from March 31, 2020 to
March 30, 2025. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of directors and 
company secretary be and are hereby authorized to finalize and 
issue the letter of appointment to the concerned director and to do
all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, expedient and
desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.”

7. Revision in remuneration of Mr. Vinay Mittal, Whole Time 
Director (DIN 05242535)

to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modi fication(s),
the following resolution as  a special resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of  section 197, 198
and schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
companies act, 2013 or any amendment(s) or modification(s) thereof
and subject to the approvals as may be necessary and pursuant to the
approval of the Nomination and remuneration committee and the
Board of directors of the company, approval of the shareholders be
and is hereby accorded for payment of remuneration to Mr. Vinay
Mittal, Whole time director (diN 05242535) of the company, for the
period from 01.04.2020 to 31.03.2021 (both days inclusive)  as per the
following particulars:  

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT personal accident insurance, 
Medical insurance, car (including driver, Maintenance and fuel), 
telephone, provident Fund, superannuation Fund, Gratuity, leave, 
interest subsidy on housing loan, Variable pay shall be paid as per
company policy.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the reimbursement  of leave travel
concession and other perquisites, benefits, leave accrued to 
Mr. Vinay Mittal till 31.03.2020, not availed by him,  be and are hereby
approved to be carried forward.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the remuneration as aforesaid, shall 
be paid as minimum remuneration for any year in the event of 
absence or inadequacy of profits during the financial year ending 
on 31st March, 2021.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of directors and the
company secretary of the company be and are hereby authorised to
do all such acts and deeds as may be necessary, expedient or
desirable, in order to give effect to this resolution or otherwise as
considered by the Board to be in the best interest of the company.”

8. To approve and ratify payment of  remuneration to the Cost 
Auditors  

to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as an ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 148 and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the companies act, 2013 and the
companies (audit and auditors) rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force),
the remuneration payable to M/s rakesh singh & co., cost 
accountants appointed by the Board of directors of the company 
to conduct the audit of the cost records of the company for the
financial year 2020-21, amounting to ̀ 1,26,000/- (rupees one lakh
twenty six thousand only) (plus applicable taxes and
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses incurred by them for
carrying out the audit), be and is hereby ratified and confirmed.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of directors and the
company secretary of the company be and are hereby authorized to
do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or
expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

9. Related Party Transactions:

to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as an ordinary resolution:

4

Special Allowance

Medical reimbursement

Child Education

Washing Allowance

Leave Travel 
Concession

` 3,39,635/- (rupees three lakh
thirty Nine thousand six hundred
thirty Five only) per month.

` 1,250/- (rupees one thousand
two hundred Fifty only) per month.

` 200/- (rupees two hundred only)
per month.

` 2,000/- (rupees two thousand
only) per month.

` 57,731/- (rupees Fifty seven 
thousand seven hundred thirty one
only) per month.

Basic Salary

Perquisites
Housing Allowance

` 4,61,851/- (rupees Four lakh sixty
one thousand eight hundred Fifty
one  only) per month.

` 2,30,926/- (rupees two lakh thirty
thousand Nine hundred twenty six
only) per month.



“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of regulation 23 of the
securities and exchange Board of india (listing obligations and
disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015, (including any statutory
modification(s) or amendments(s) or re-enactments(s) thereof, for
the time being in force), approval of the members be and is hereby
accorded to the related party transactions entered into during the

financial year and the Material related party transactions entered
into/to be entered into and carried out/to be carried out in the ordinary
course of business and at arm’s length basis with the related parties,
as defined under section 2(76) of the companies act, 2013 and
regulation 2 (zb) of the listing regulations, during the period from 
april 01, 2019 to March 31, 2022:
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Name 
of the 
related 
party

Name of
Relation

Nature, duration and 
particulars of the 

contract/arrangement

royalty

export commission

technical Guidance Fee

purchase of raw Material, 
components, consumables

purchase of finished goods 
and spares

purchase of capital goods

reimbursements received
and paid including warranty
expenses

export sale of finished goods 
& spares

Model fee

purchase of raw Material, 
components, consumables,
spares

purchase of finished goods

reimbursements received
and paid including warranty
expenses

export sale of finished goods
& spares

export sale of finished goods
& spares

purchase of finished goods
and spares

reimbursements received
and paid including warranty
expenses

FY 2019-20
For 

Ratification

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,244

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

FY 2020-21

4,200

4,200

1,000

7,000

2,800

100

1,300

1,600

140

5,500

7,000

200

110

45,000

50

350

FY 2021-22

4,620

4 ,620

1,100

7,700

3,080

110

1,430

1,760

140

6,050

7,700

220

121

49,500

55

385

Basis

6% on sale price  adjusted for other
cost per agreememe as  last year
as existing contact

8% on FoB value of export sale.
same last year as per existing con-
tact

Monthly labour cost of technicians
and actual expenses  incurred

cost plus basis.

cost plus basis.

cost plus basis.

actual basis.

pricing/terms & conditions are not
more favorable than the sales
made to unrelated party

lumpsum fee as per agreement

cost plus basis.

cost plus basis.

actual basis.

pricing/terms & conditions are not
more favorable than the sales
made to unrelated party 

pricing/terms & conditions are not
more favorable than the sales
made to unrelated party 

cost plus basis.

actual basis.

Explanation

6% on sale price  adjusted for other
cost per agreememe as last year
as existing contact

8% on FoB value of export sale.
same last year as per existing
contact

Monthly labour cost of technicians
and actual expenses  incurred

cost plus basis.

cost plus basis.

cost plus basis.

actual basis.

pricing/terms & conditions are not
more favorable than the sales
made to unrelated party

lumpsum fee as per agreement

cost plus basis.

cost plus basis.

actual basis.

pricing/terms & conditions are not
more favorable than the sales
made to unrelated party 

pricing/terms & conditions are not
more favorable than the sales
made to unrelated party 

cost plus basis.

actual basis.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of directors and the company secretary of the company be and are hereby authorized to do all acts and
take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution”.

By order of the Board
for Honda Siel Power Products Limited,

place:  New delhi Sd/-
date:  June 23, 2020 Sunita Ganjoo

Company Secretary 

NOTES

1. None of the directors, Key Managerial persons or their relatives have
any concern, financial or otherwise and does not have any conflict of
interest in item No. 4 to item No. 9 except as expressed under the
respective items in the explanatory statement.

2. the explanatory statement setting out the material facts pursuant to
section 102 of the companies act, 2013, (‘the act’) concerning the
special Business in the Notice is annexed hereto and forms part of 
this Notice.

3. In view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its circular dated 
May 05, 2020 read with circulars dated April 08, 2020 and
April 13, 2020 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”)
permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
through VC/OAVM, without the physical presence of the
Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing
Regulations”) and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is
being held through VC/OAVM.

4. information regarding variation/revision in the remuneration of
director(s) and the directors  seeking  appointment/re-appointment  at
the forthcoming annual General Meeting, requiring disclosure in
terms of the secretarial standard 2, and the seBi listing obligations
are annexed hereto.

5. since this aGM is being held pursuant to the Mca circulars 
through Vc/oaVM, physical attendance of Members has 
been dispensed with. accordingly, the facility for appointment 
of proxies by the Members will not be available for the aGM and
hence the proxy Form and attendance slip are not annexed to 
this Notice.

6. institutional/corporate shareholders (i.e. other than individuals/
huF, Nri, etc.) are required to send a scanned copy (pdF/JpG 
Format) of its Board or governing body resolution/authorization etc.,
authorizing its representative to attend the aGM through Vc/oaVM 
on its behalf and to vote  through remote e-voting. the said
resolution/authorization shall be sent to the scrutinizer by email
through its registered email address to mail@tanujvohra.com with a
copy marked to  helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

7. the register of Members and share transfer Books of the 
company will remain closed from september 15, 2020 to 
september 21, 2020 (both days inclusive). the   ‘record date’ for
determining entitlement of members to dividend for the financial year
ended March 31, 2020, if approved at the aGM, has been fixed as
tuesday, september 15, 2020.

8. if the dividend, as recommended by the Board of directors, is 
approved at the aGM, payment of such dividend, subject to 
deduction of tax at source will be made on  Monday, october 19, 2020
as under: 

Name 
of the 
related 
party

Name of
Relation

Nature, duration and 
particulars of the 

contract/arrangement

sale of finished goods &
spares

reimbursements received
and paid including warranty
expenses

receipt of support service
fees

purchase of spare

interest receive on loan

loan

FY 2019-20
For 

Ratification

-

-

-

-

-

-

FY 2020-21

800

75

270

60

1,100

16,000
(renewal)

FY 2021-22

880

83

297

66

1,210

16,000
(renewal)

Basis

cost plus basis.

actual basis.

pricing/trerms & conditions are
not more favorable than the sales
made to unrelated party 

cost plus basis.

Market rates

Funds availability

Explanation

the company’s margin (op/tc)
compared with companies engaged
in similar  manufac tur ing activities.

evidence/representation that price
recovered is the actual cost incurred
for warranty/other expenses

evidence/representation that price
recovered is the actual cost incurred
for warranty/other expenses

the company’s margin (op/tc)
compared with companies engaged
in similar  manufacturing activities.

pricing/terms & conditions are
favourable than market rates

pricing/terms & conditions are
favourable than market rates
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i. to all Beneficial owners in respect of shares held in dematerialized
form as per the data as may be made available by the National
securities depository limited (“Nsdl”) and the central depository
services (india) limited (“cdsl”), collectively “depositories”, as of
the close of business hours on september 14, 2020.

ii. to all Members in respect of shares held in physical form after
giving effect to valid transfer, transmission or transposition 
requests lodged with the company as of the close of business
hours on september 14, 2020.

9. Members are requested to note that, dividends if not encashed 
for a consecutive period of 7 years from the date of transfer to 
unpaid dividend account of the company, are liable to be transferred
to the investor education and protection Fund (“iepF”). the shares in
respect of such unclaimed dividends are also liable to be 
transferred to the demat account of the iepF authority. in view of this,
Members are requested to claim their dividends from the 
company, within the stipulated timeline. the Members, whose 
unclaimed dividends/shares have been transferred to iepF, may
claim the same by making an online application to the iepF 
authority in web Form No. iepF-5 available on www.iepf.gov.in.  

the company has already transferred unclaimed dividends upto 
financial year 1994-95 to the General revenue account of the 
central Government, and for the financial years 1995-96 to 2011-12 to
iepF. Following are the details of dividends paid by the company and
respective due dates for transfer of unclaimed dividend to iepF:

in terms of provisions of section 124(6) of companies act, 2013 and
investor education and protection Fund authority (accounting, audit,
transfer and refund) rules, 2016, shares on which dividend has not
been encashed/claimed for a continuous period of last seven years i.e.
from F.Y. 2011-12 has been transferred by the company to investor
education and protection Fund.

in accordance with the aforesaid iepF rules, the company had sent
notices to all the shareholders whose shares were due to be
transferred to the iepF authority and a newspaper advertisement in
this regard was also published.

the details of the shareholders as mentioned above, is also available
on the website of the company (www.hondasielpower.com).

the company, in compliance with the aforementioned provisions
shall transfer the shares on which dividend has not been
encashed/claimed for a continuous period of seven years i.e. from
F.Y. 2011-12 alongwith the dividend thereof to the investor education
and protection Fund.

Further, the company shall not be in a position to entertain the claims
of the shareholders for the unclaimed dividends, which have been
transferred to the credit of iepF. accordingly, the shareholders are
advised to send all the uncashed dividend warrants pertaining to the
years 2012-13 and upto 2018-19 to our share transfer agent at New
delhi for issuing demand drafts in lieu thereof and en-cash them
before the due dates for transfer to iepF.

10.as per regulation 40 of seBi listing regulations, as amended,
securities of listed companies can be transferred only in
dematerialized form with effect from, april 01, 2019, except in case of
request received for transmission or transposition of securities. in view
of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares,
members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider
converting their holdings to dematerialized form. Members can contact
the company or company’s registrar and transfer agent, M/s Mas
services ltd. for assistance in this regard.

11. to support the ‘Green initiative’, Members who have not yet
registered their email addresses are requested to register the same
with their dps in case the shares are held by them in electronic form
and with the company’s registrar and transfer agent, M/s Mas
services ltd. in case the shares are held by them in physical form.

12.Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their
name, postal address, email address, telephone/mobile numbers,
permanent account Number (paN), mandates, nominations, power of
attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and branch details,
bank account number, Micr code, iFsc code, etc., to their dps in
case the shares are held by them in electronic form and to the
company’s registrar and transfer agent, M/s Mas services ltd. in
case the shares are held by them in physical form.

13. in case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only one of such joint
holders who is higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote.

14. in compliance with the aforesaid Mca circulars and seBi circular
dated May 12, 2020, Notice of the aGM along with the annual report
2019-20 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members
whose email addresses are registered with the company/
depositories. Members may note that the Notice and annual report
2019-20 will also be available on the company’s website
www.hondasielpower.com, websites of the stock exchanges i.e. Bse
limited and National stock exchange of india limited at
www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively, and on the
website of cdsl www.cdslindia.com.

15.Members attending the aGM through Vc/oaVM shall be counted for the
purpose of reckoning the quorum under section 103 of the act.

16.pursuant to the companies (amendment) act, 2017 with effect from
May 07, 2018, no resolution is being proposed for ratification of
appointment of statutory auditors at the thirty-fifth aGM.

17.Pursuant to Finance Act, 2020, dividend income will be taxable in
the hands of shareholders w.e.f. April 01, 2020 and the Company
is required to deduct tax at source from dividend paid to
shareholders at the prescribed rates. For the prescribed rates
for various categories, the shareholders are requested to refer to
the Finance Act, 2020 and amendments thereof. The
shareholders are requested to update their PAN with the
Company/Company’s RTA (in case of shares held in physical
mode) and depositories (in case of shares held in demat mode). 

A Resident individual shareholder with PAN and who is not 
liable to pay income tax can submit a yearly declaration in Form
No. 15G/15H, to avail the benefit of non-deduction of tax at
source by email to info@masserv.com by 11:59 p.m. IST on
September 14, 2020. Shareholders are requested to note that in
case their PAN is not registered, the tax will be deducted at a
higher rate of 20%. Non-resident shareholders can avail
beneficial rates under tax treaty between India and their country
of residence, subject to providing necessary documents i.e. 
No Permanent Establishment and Beneficial Ownership
Declaration, Tax Residency Certificate, Form 10F, any other
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Dividend 
year

2012-13
2013-14
2014-15
2015-16
2016-17
2017-18
2018-19

Date of
Declaration
05.08.2013
05.08.2014
12.08.2015
11.08.2016
04.08.2017
13-08-2018
07-08-2020

Due date for 
transfer to IEPF

04.09.2020
04.09.2021
11.09.2022
10.09.2023
03.09.2024
12-09-2025
06-09-2026



document which may be required to avail the tax treaty benefits
by sending an email to info@masserve.com. The aforesaid
declarations and documents need to be submitted by the
shareholders by 11:59 p.m. IST on September 14, 2020.

18.since the aGM will be held through Vc/oaVM, the route Map is not
annexed in this Notice.

19.documents referred to in the accompanying notice are open for
inspection on the website and at the registered office of the
company during normal business hours (9:00 am to 5:00 pm) 
on any working day, except saturday, upto the date of aGM of the
company.  

20.the Board of directors  of the  company has appointed Mr. tanuj
Vohra, Managing partner of M/s tVa & co. llp, practising company
secretaries as scrutiniser to scrutinise the remote e-voting 
process in a fair and transparent manner and he has communicated 
his willingness to be appointed and will be available for the 
said purpose.

21. instructions for e-voting and joining the aGM are as follows:

A. VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS 

i. in compliance with the provisions of section 108 of the act, read with
rule 20 of the companies (Management and administration)
rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, and regulation 44 of
the seBi listing regulations, the Members are provided with the
facility to cast their vote electronically, through the e-voting services
provided by cdsl, on all the resolutions set forth in this Notice.
the instructions for e-voting are given herein below:

ii. the Members can join the aGM in the Vc/oaVM mode 15 minutes
before and after the scheduled time of the commencement of the
Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. the
facility of participation at the  aGM through Vc/oaVM will be made
available to at least 1000 members on first come first served basis.
this will not include large shareholders (shareholders holding 2%
or more shareholding), promoters, institutional investors,
directors, Key Managerial personnel, the chairpersons of the
audit committee, Nomination and remuneration committee and
stakeholders relationship committee, auditors etc. who are
allowed to attend the  aGM without restriction on account of first
come first served basis.

iii. the attendance of the Members attending the aGM through
Vc/oaVM will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining the
quorum under section 103 of the companies act, 2013.

iv. those Members, who will be present in the aGM through Vc/
oaVM facility and have not cast their vote on the resolutions
through remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing
so, shall be eligible to vote through e-voting system during the
aGM. 

v. the Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to
the aGM may also attend/ participate in the aGM through Vc/
oaVM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 

vi. the voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares
in the paid-up equity share capital of the company as on the 
cut-off date. 

vii. any person, who acquires shares of the company and becomes 
a Member of the company after sending of the Notice and
holding shares as on the cut-off date, may obtain the login id and 
password by sending a request at ho.legal@hspp.com. however,

if he/she is already registered with cdsl for remote e-voting then
he/she can use his/her existing user id and password for casting
the vote. 

viii. the details of the process and manner for remote e-voting are 
explained herein below:

THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDRES FOR REMOTE 
E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

(i) please note the e-voting period commences on Friday, 
September 18, 2020 (9:00 A.M. IST) and ends on Sunday,
September 20, 2020 (5:00 P.M. IST).

during this period shareholders of the company, holding 
equity shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form,
as on the cut-off date i.e. september 15, 2020, may cast their
vote electronically. the remote e-voting module will be disabled
by cdsl for voting thereafter. once the vote on a resolution is
cast by the member, the member will not be allowed to change
it subsequently.

(ii) the shareholders should log on to the e-voting website
www.evotingindia.com.

(iii) click on “shareholders” module.

(iv) Now enter your user id 
a. For cdsl: 16 digits beneficiary id, 
b. For Nsdl: 8 character dp id followed by 8 digits client id,
c. shareholders holding shares in physical Form should enter 

Folio Number registered with the company.

(v) Next enter the image Verification as displayed and click on login.

(vi) if you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to
www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting of any
company, then your existing password is to be used. 

(vii) if you are a first time user follow the steps given below:
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paN

dividend 
Bank details
or date of 
Birth (doB)

enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *paN
issued by income tax department
(applicable for both demat shareholders
as well as physical shareholders)

• shareholders who have not 
updated their paN with the 
company/depository participant
are requested to send an 
e-mail to company’s rta at
info@masserv.com to obtain a
sequence number for such login.

enter the dividend Bank details or date
of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as
recorded in your demat account or in the
company records in order to login.

• if both the details are not recorded
with the depository or company
please enter the member id/folio
number in the dividend Bank 
details field as mentioned in 
instruction (iii).

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form and
Physical Form



(viii) after entering these details appropriately, click on “suBMit”
tab.

(ix) shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly
reach the company selection screen. however, shareholders
holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘password
creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter
their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that
this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting
for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible
to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through cdsl
platform. it is strongly recommended not to share your
password with any other person and take utmost care to keep
your password confidential.

(x) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details
can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in
this Notice.

(xi) click on the eVsN for the honda india power products limited.

(xii) on the voting page, you will see “resolutioN
descriptioN” and against the same the option “Yes/No”
for voting. select the option Yes or No as desired. the option
Yes implies that you assent to the resolution and option No
implies that you dissent to the resolution.

(xiii) click on the “resolutioNs File liNK” if you wish to view
the entire resolution details.

(xiv) after selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click
on “suBMit”. a confirmation box will be displayed. if you wish to
confirm your vote, click on “oK”, else to change your vote, click
on “caNcel” and accordingly modify your vote.

(xv) once you “coNFirM” your vote on the resolution, you will not
be allowed to modify your vote.

(xvi) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “click
here to print” option on the Voting page.

(xvii) if a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then
enter the user id and the image verification code and click on
Forgot password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xviii)Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s 
mobile app “m-Voting”. The m-Voting app can be 
downloaded from respective Store. Please follow the 
instructions as prompted by the mobile app while Remote
Voting on your mobile.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE E-MAIL 
ADDRESSES ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE
DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR 
E-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN THIS
NOTICE: 

1. For physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like
Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share 
certificate (front and back), paN (self attested scanned copy of
paN card), aadhar (self attested scanned copy of aadhar card)
by email to the company/rta.

2. For demat shareholders-, please provide demat account details
(cdsl-16 digit beneficiary id or Nsdl-16 digit dpid + clid),

Name, client master or copy of consolidated account statement,
paN (self attested scanned copy of paN card), aadhar (self
attested scanned copy of aadhar card) to company/rta 
through email.

3. the company/rta shall co-ordinate with cdsl and provide the
login credentials to the above mentioned shareholders.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM
THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1. shareholder will be provided with a facility to attend 
the aGM through Vc/oaVM through the cdsl e-Voting 
system. share holders may access the same at
https://www.evotingindia.com under shareholders/members 
login by using the remote e-voting credentials. the link for
Vc/oaVM will be available in shareholder/members login 
where the eVsN of company will be displayed.

2. shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through
laptops/ipads for better experience.

3. please note that participants connecting from Mobile devices or
tablets or through laptop connecting via Mobile hotspot may
experience audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective
network. it is, therefore, recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or laN
connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

4. shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions
during the meeting may register themselves as a speaker by
sending their request in advance at least 10  days prior to meeting,
mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number,
email id, mobile number at ho.legal@hspp.com. the shareholders
who do not wish to speak during the aGM but have queries may
send their queries 10 days prior to meeting mentioning their 
name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile 
number at ho.legal@hspp.com. these queries will be replied to by
the company suitably by email. 

5. those shareholders who have registered themselves as a
speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions
during the meeting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING DURING
THE AGM  ARE AS UNDER:-

1. the procedure for e-Voting on the day of the aGM is same as the
instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.

2. only those shareholders, who are present in the aGM through
Vc/oaVM facility and have not casted their vote on the
resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred
from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system
available during the  aGM.

3. if any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting
available during the aGM and if the same shareholders have not
participated in the meeting through Vc/oaVM facility, then the
votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as
the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the
shareholders attending the meeting.

4. shareholders who have voted through remote e-Voting will be
eligible to attend the aGM. however, they will not be eligible to
vote at the aGM.
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(xviii) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians

• Non-individual shareholders (i.e. other than individuals,
huF, Nri etc.) and custodians are required to log on to
www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the
“corporates” module.

• a scanned copy of the registration Form bearing the 
stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

• after receiving the login details a compliance user should 
be created using the admin login and password. the 
compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for
which they wish to vote on.

• the list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the 
accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 

• a scanned copy of the Board resolution and power of 
attorney (poa) which they have issued in favour of the 
custodian, if any, should be uploaded in pdF format in the
system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

• alternatively non-individual shareholders are required to
send the relevant Board resolution/authority letter etc. 
together with attested specimen signature of the duly 
authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the 
scrutinizer and to the company at the email address viz;
mail@tanujvohra.com and ho.legal@hspp.com if they
have  voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the
cdsl e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

in case you have any queries or issues regarding 
e-voting, you may refer the Frequently asked Questions
(“FaQs”) and e-voting manual available at 
www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an
email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call
1800225533.

all grievances connected with the facility for voting by 
electronic means may be addressed to Mr. rakesh 
dalvi, Manager (cdsl) central depository services 
(india) limited, a Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, 
Mafatlal Mill compounds, N M Joshi Marg, lower parel
(east), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call 1800225533.

22. M/s Mas services ltd. is registrar and share transfer agent of the
company. all investor related communication may be addressed to:

M/s Mas Services Limited
unit: honda siel power products limited
t-34, 2nd Floor, okhla industrial area, phase-ii, New delhi-110 020
ph:- 011 26387281/82/83, Fax:- 011 26387384
email:- info@masserv.com, Website: www.masserv.com

23. in terms of section 72 of the companies act, 2013 Members of the
company may nominate a person to whom the shares held by
them shall vest in the event of death of a member. in case you
wish to avail of the nomination facility in respect of shares held by
you, please write to M/s Mas services ltd., registrar and share
transfer agent of the company. in the case of joint holders all the
holders thereof should sign the request.

24.Members holding shares in more than one folio in the same
name(s) are requested to send the details of their folios along with
share certificates so as to enable the company to consolidate
their holding into one folio.

Other Instructions 

1. the scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at
the aGM, first count the votes cast during the aGM, thereafter
unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and make, not
later than 48 hours of conclusion of the aGM, a consolidated
scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if
any, to the chairman or a person authorised by him in writing, who
shall countersign the same.

2. the result declared along with the scrutinizer’s report shall be
placed on the company’s website www.hondasielpower.com and
on the website of cdsl https://www.evotingindia.com immedi-
ately. the company shall simultaneously forward the results to
National stock exchange of india limited and Bse limited, where
the shares of the company are listed.

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”) 

the following statement sets out all material facts relating to the special
Business mentioned in the Notice:

the statement of the particulars pertaining to items nos. 4 to 9 below,
pursuant to the companies act, 2013, regulation 36(3) of seBi (listing
obligations and disclosure requirements) regulation, 2015 and
secretarial standard on the General Meetings forms part of annual
General Meeting Notice.

ITEM NO. 4  

the Board of directors at its meeting held on January 28, 2020 on the
recommendation of the Nomination and remuneration committee,
appointed Mr. takahiro ueda as an additional director of the company
w.e.f. February 01, 2020, subject to the approval of the shareholders. 

Notice under section 160 of the companies act, 2013 has been received
from a member proposing his candidature for the office of director of the
company.

the Board of directors is of the considered opinion and confident that
Mr. ueda’s guidance would be beneficial to the company and
recommends the resolution for your approval.

except Mr. takahiro ueda none of the directors, Key Managerial personnel
of the company and their relatives are concerned or interested, financial or
otherwise, and does not have any conflict of interest in the resolution.   

the Board recommends the resolution for your approval.

ITEM NO. 5 

the Board of directors at its meeting dated January 28, 2020, on the
recommendation of the Nomination and remuneration committee,
appointed Mr. takahiro ueda as Managing director, to be designated as
president & ceo of the company for a period of five years effective
February 01, 2020, on the terms and conditions as set out in the resolution. 

pursuant to the recommendation of Nomination and remuneration
committee, the Board further approved the remuneration of Mr. takahiro
ueda with effect from February 01, 2020, subject to approval of Members.
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Further, in view of Mr. siddharth shriram resigning as the chairperson 
of the company subject to his resignation as director on the Board of
the company, the Board of directors in their Meeting held on april 01,
2020 re-designated Mr. ueda as the cMd and president & ceo of the
company, subject to approval of amendments to articles of association
and applicable corporate/ other actions, as were required in this regard.
the Members through postal Ballot/e-voting approved the amendments
to articles of association of the company and the results thereof were
declared on May 26, 2020.

except Mr. takahiro ueda none of the directors, Key Managerial personnel
of the company and their relatives are concerned or interested, financial or
otherwise and does not have any conflict of interest in the resolution.

Your directors recommend the resolution for your approval.

ITEM NO. 6 

the Board of directors of the company on March 30, 2020, on the
recommendation of the Nomination and remuneration committee, 
has appointed Mr. ravi prakash Mehrotra (diN 06823899) as an
additional director of the company with effect from March 31, 2020
under the category of independent director, pursuant to the provisions 
of section 161 and 149 of the act and articles of the association of 
the company.

in the opinion of the Board, Mr. ravi prakash Mehrotra fulfills the
conditions specified in the act, the companies (appointment and
Qualification of directors) rules, 2014 and seBi (listing obligations 
and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015 for his 
appointment as an independent director of the company and is
independent of the management. the Board considers that based 
on his varied experience, his association would be of immense benefit 
to the company.

in accordance with the provisions of sections 149 and 152 of the act read
with the companies (appointment and Qualification of directors) rules,
2014, an independent director shall not be liable to retire by rotation.

the company has received from Mr. ravi prakash Mehrotra (i) consent 
in writing to act as director in Form dir-2 pursuant to rule 8 of 
companies (appointment and Qualification of directors) rules, 2014, 
(ii) intimation in Form dir-8 pursuant to companies (appointment 
and Qualification of directors) rules, 2014, to the effect that he is not 
disqualified under section 164(2) of the act and (iii) a declaration to the 
effect that he meets the criteria of independence as provided under section
149(6) of the act and seBi (listing obligations and disclosure 
requirements) regulations, 2015. the company has also ensured that 
he is not debarred from holding the office by virtue of any order by seBi 
or any other authority.

as an independent director, Mr. ravi prakash Mehrotra shall be entitled
to sitting fee for attending Board/committee meetings and commission, 
if any, paid in terms of the provisions of the act.

the terms and conditions of his appointment are available for inspection
and also placed on website of the company. 

accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution as set out at item 
No. 6 of the Notice for approval by the Members of the company as 
ordinary resolution.

None of the directors, Key Managerial person and their relatives, are in
any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the 
proposed resolution.

ITEM NO. 7 

the Members had approved the remuneration of Mr. Vinay Mittal as 
Whole-time director of the company from 01.04.2019 to 31.03.2020 at
the annual General Meeting of the company held on august 07, 2019.

pursuant to the recommendation of Nomination and remuneration 
committee and the Board of directors, remuneration to be paid to 
Mr. Vinay Mittal from 01.04.2020 to 31.03.2021 was approved by the
Board on april 23, 2020.

the reimbursement of leave travel concession and other perquisites,
benefits, leave accrued to him till 31.03.2020, not availed by him, have also
been approved to be carried forward.

it is proposed to pay the same remuneration in the event of inadequacy or
absence of profits to Mr. Vinay Mittal.

except Mr. Vinay Mittal, none of the other directors/Key Managerial
personnel of the company/their relatives are, in any way, concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the aforementioned resolution. 

the Board recommends the special resolution set out at item No. 7 of 
the Notice for approval by the members.

ITEM NO. 8

pursuant to section 148 of the act, the company is required to have 
the audit of its cost records conducted by a cost accountant in practice. 
on the recommendation of the audit committee, the Board of directors
appointed M/s. rakesh singh & co., as the cost auditor of the company
to conduct audit of cost  records maintained by the company for the
Financial Year 2019-20, at a remuneration of ` 1,26,000/- (rupees 
one lakh twenty six thousand only) (plus applicable taxes and
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses incurred by them for carrying
out the audit). the remuneration to the cost auditor requires your
ratification and confirmation. the Board recommends the resolution set
out at item No. 8 of the accompanying Notice for ratification.

None of the directors, Key Managerial personnel of the company and
their relatives are concerned or interested, financial or otherwise and
does not have any conflict of interest in the resolution.

ITEM NO. 9

pursuant to section 188 of the act read with the companies (Meetings of
Board and its powers) rules, 2014 (‘rules’), the company is required to
obtain consent of the Board of directors and prior approval of the
members by way of ordinary resolution, in case certain transactions with
related parties exceeds such sum as specified in the rules. the
transactions entered into/to be entered into with the related parties are in
the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis. however,
pursuant to regulation 23 of the listing regulations, approval of the
members through ordinary resolution is required for all material related
party transactions. all the related party transactions entered into/to be
entered into by the company are/would be at arm’s length basis and in the
ordinary course of business and prior approval of the audit committee and
subsequent approval by the Board is/will be obtained, wherever required.

the transactions as described in the resolution above for the period from
april 01, 2019 to March 31, 2021 have exceeded/ are likely to exceed
the materiality threshold as prescribed by listing regulations. thus, in
terms of the provisions of listing regulations, these transactions would 
require the approval of the members by way of an ordinary resolution and
all entities falling under the definition of related parties shall abstain from
voting on the resolution.
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12

Information regarding variation in the terms of remuneration of Directors and the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at 
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and in accordance with provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standards, as on the date of Notice.

Mr. Vinay Mittal 
05242535

53

01-04-2017

Mr. Mittal has around 29 years of wide
and varied experience in the field of
Finance & accounting, direct &
indirect tax, imports, secretarial and
General Management in various
industries.

- Graduate in commerce from 
delhi university

- Fellow Member of the icai
- alumni of iMd, switzerland 

Nil

honda siel power products limited

- stakeholders relationship 
committee - Member

- corporate social responsibility 
committee - Member 

- Board committee on Financial 
Matters - Member

- risk Management 
committee - Member

Nil

Nil

5

details of remuneration provided 
in the resolution
` 12.34 lakh  p.m.

Mr. Ravi Prakash Mehrotra
06823899

69

31-03-2020

Mr. Mehrotra has over 38 years of rich
experience in  marketing, ranging
from direct sales, market/channel
expansion and management, across 
a wide range of verticals extending
from heavy capital goods to
consumer goods, auto mobiles
(commercial vehicles) etc. and
general management.
B.sc. electrical engineering-
Banaras hindu university

p.G.d.M (MBa)- iiM Kolkata

Nil

honda siel power products limited

- Nomination and remuneration 
committee - Member

- stakeholders relationship 
committee - chairperson

- corporate social responsibility 
committee - Member

200

Nil

Nil

except sitting fees no remuneration is
paid
Not applicable 

Mr. Takahiro Ueda
08685990

51

01-02-2020

Mr. ueda has expertise in sales and
marketing, sales network building,
export business, business planning,
and product planning. Besides 
power products operations, he has
experience in automobile operations
and Motorcycle operations.

Graduate - economics

Nil

honda siel power products limited

- audit committee - Member
- stakeholders relationship 

committee - Member
- Board committee on Financial

Matters - chairperson
- corporate social responsibility

committee - chairperson 
- risk Management 

committee - chairperson

Nil

Nil

Nil

details of remuneration provided in
the resolution
` 19.06 lakh p.m.

Name of the Director
diN
age/Years
date of appointment/
re-appointment
expertise in specific
functional areas/brief
resume

Qualifications

Name of other indian
companies in which
directorship held
chairman/Member of
Board committees in
indian  companies

shareholding in the
company
relationship with other
directors, Manager and
other Key Managerial
personnel of the
company
the number of Meetings
of the Board attended
during the year
remuneration to be paid

remuneration last drawn
relationship there are no inter-se relationships between the directors and other Board Members

None of the directors or any of the Key Managerial personnel of the
company or their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise and does not have any conflict of interest in the 
resolution.

however, Mr. takahiro ueda, Mr. hiroyoshi sugimizu and Mr. Vinay 
Mittal may be deemed to be concerned in their capacity as nominees 
of honda Motor co. ltd., Japan.

By order of the Board
For Honda Siel Power Products Limited,

Sd/-
Sunita Ganjoo

Company Secretary



Your directors are pleased to present the 35thannual report together with
audited Financial statements of the company for the year ended March
31, 2020.

1. Financial Highlights

(` in lakhs)

Financial statements for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2020
have been prepared in accordance with ind as prescribed under
section 133 of the companies act, 2013 and companies (indian
accounting standards) rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions
thereof. 

Results of Operations and the state of Company’s affairs

Your company achieved aggregate revenue from operations of 
84,864 lakh in 2019-20 (as against ̀ 81,588 lakh in 2018-19). this
marks a growth of 4% over the previous year.

during the year, your company performed satisfactorily across all
key categories in spite of severe market conditions. Business outlook
continues to remain challenging. however, your company will 
persevere in its quest to seek opportunities for growth.

the company’s operations were temporarily shut down with effect
from March 23, 2020, on account of nationwide lock down due to
outbreak of pandemic coVid-19. With partial opening of lock
down, the operation resumed on May 12, 2020 after obtaining
permission as per state Government Guidelines.

the company has assessed the possible impact of coVid-19, 
internal and external, on liquidity position, carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment, inventories, receivables and other current
assets. Based on current economic conditions, the company 
expects to recover the carrying amount of these assets. accordingly,
as on date, the management doesn’t foresee any material impact
on its financial statement.

a detailed report on operations titled ‘Management discussion and
analysis report’ is annexed to the Board’s report as Annexure - A
and forms part hereof.

Termination of Joint Venture Agreement

the Joint Venture agreement (the ‘agreement’) dated october 25,
1997 (as amended/ restated from time to time) entered between
honda Motor co. ltd., Japan and usha international limited to 
create and operate the company as a Joint Venture entity, has been
terminated vide termination agreement executed on March 31, 2020
effective april 01, 2020.

Change of name of the Company

pursuant to the approval of the Members by way of postal Ballot,
name of your company was approved to be changed to honda india
power products limited.  Fresh certificate of incorporation in this
regard is awaited from the Ministry of corporate affairs.

2. Dividend

Your directors recommend a dividend of ̀ 12.5/- per equity share of 
` 10/- each (125%) for the year ended 31st March, 2020 (previous
year 100%). the total outgo on this account will be ̀ 1,268 lakh.

3. Transfer of Amounts to Investor Education and Protection Fund

in compliance with section 125 of the companies act, 2013,
reminders were sent to the members requesting them to claim
unclaimed dividend for the year 2011-12. some members claimed
their unclaimed dividends. the payments were made directly to their
bank accounts wherever the particulars were available, under
intimation to those entitled. the balance remaining unclaimed of 
` 6,94,251/- was transferred to the investor education & protection
Fund (iepF) within the stipulated time.

4. Transfer of Shares to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund

in terms of provisions of section 124(6) of companies act, 
2013 and investor education and protection Fund authority
(accounting, audit,transfer and refund) rules, 2016, shares of
the company, in respect of which dividend entitlements have
remained unclaimed for seven consecutive years or more, were
transferred by the company to investor education and protection
Fund during the year 2019-20.

in terms of aforementioned provisions /rules, individual notices were
sent to concerned shareholders providing them an opportunity to
claim dividend for the financial year 2011-12 onwards. the said notice
along with the details of concerned share holders was published in the
leading newspapers having wide circulation. details were also 
updated on the website of the company (www.hondasielpower.com)
simultaneously.

No shares are lying with Nsdl/cdsl in demat suspense account or
unclaimed suspense account as on the date of this report.

5. Environment Protection and Safety

Your company is committed towards protection and preservation 
of environment and the improvement of working conditions of its
associates. all associates strive to minimize adverse
environmental impact, arising out of manufacturing processes,
products and services the company provides, by controlling
emissions, effluents and waste generation, and supporting
environmental protection activities by optimum utilization of
resources and adopting means to conserve energy and recycle,
reuse of natural resources. Your company has been achieving
continuous improvement in environmental performance by
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Particulars

revenue from operations
other income
profit before depreciation and
exceptional items
depreciation
profit before exceptional items 
and tax
profit before tax
tax expenses
profit after tax
other comprehensive income
total comprehensive income for
the year
Balance of profit brought 
forward
dividend
tax on dividend
Balance carried to Balance sheet

March 31,
2020

84,864
1,576

10,814

2,208

8,606

9,043
2,391
6,652
(179)

6,473

38,213

1,014
208

43,464

March 31,
2019

81,588
1,766

10,794

2,113

8,681

8,331
2,916
5,415

(49)

5366

33,948

913
188

38,213
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Year Ended



regularly upgrading the operation standards and environmental
management systems to comply with applicable legal/regulatory
and compliance obligations. awareness is being created regularly
regarding importance of environment protection throughout the
organization and with all stakeholders. 

a statement on environmental protection and safety, conservation
of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and
outgo is annexed as Annexure - B and forms part of this report.

6. Occupation health and safety

Your company strives to be a ‘Zero accident company’. it’s vision is
to improve health and safety standards for the people associated
with the company and working at all the levels. efforts are made to
nearly extinguish any activity which may adversely affect the health
and safety in work place or adversely impact the life of communities
living near our Workplaces. to promote this, the company has
created occupational safety & health Management system
(oshMs) and formed a safety & health organization in the
company. awareness of the oshMs has been created through
trainings, at all evels and by regular education to all for adopting
safety and health measures at work place and in their life with the
vision “every one is precious”.

7. Extract of Annual Return

pursuant to section 92 (3) of the companies act, 2013 (‘the act’) 
and rule 12 (1) of the companies (Management and 
administration) rules, 2014, extract of annual return is 
annexed as Annexure - C and forms part of this report. the same is
available on website of the company www.hondasielpower.com in 
‘investors’ section.

8. Details of Board Meetings

during the year five Board meetings were held. in case of urgent
business, resolutions were passed by circulation. compliance
reports of all laws applicable to the company were reviewed by the
Board at each meeting.

the Board has been given presentations/briefed on areas covering
operations of the company, business strategy and risk management
practices, before approving the quarterly/annual financial results of the
company.

the agenda and notes there on were circulated to directors as 
per the requirement of relevant laws in the defined agenda format.
all material information was incorporated in the agenda for
facilitating meaningful and focused discussions at the meeting.
Where it was not practicable to attach any document to the agenda
i.e. the document which contains price sensitive information and in
respect of which consent of the Board of directors was obtained for
providing the same at a shorter notice of less than 7 days, it was
placed before the meeting with specific reference to this effect in the
agenda.

the company secretary recorded minutes of proceedings of each
Board and committee meeting. draft minutes were circulated to
Board/Board committee members for their comments. the minutes
were duly entered in the Minutes Book within 30 days from the
conclusion of the meeting.

during the year under review, Board Meetings were held as per the
following details:

during the year, four resolutions by circulation were passed by the
Board of directors on May 02, 2019 , June 18, 2019, august 22, 2019
and March 30, 2020.

all statutory and other important items/information were placed 
before the Board for approval/review.

9. Committees of the Board

the details of composition of the committees of the Board i.e. audit
committee; stakeholders relationship committee; Nomination and
remuneration committee; corporate social responsibility
committee; Board committee on Financial Matters; and risk
Management committee, brief terms of references thereof and details
of meetings held and attended by the Members during the year are
provided in the corporate Governance report forming part hereof.

in view of the changes in constitution of the Board of directors, the
committees of the Board were reconstituted on January 28, 2020
and april 01, 2020 respectively,.

10. Managing the Risks of Fraud, Corruption and Unethical 
Business Practices

the company has following policies in place to adhere to ethical
standards in order to ensure integrity, transparency, independence
and accountability in dealing with all stakeholders:

(a) Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy

the company has in place an established and effective Vigil
Mechanism/Whistle Blower policy (policy) in the name of
Business ethics proposal line (Bepl). the mechanism under
the policy has been appropriately communicated within the
organization as well as with all other stakeholders of the
company. the purpose of this policy is to provide a framework to
promote responsible whistle blowing by employees. it protects
employees and other stakeholders,  wishing to raise a concern
about serious irregularities, unethical behavior, actual or
suspected fraud within the company. 

the chairman of the audit committee is the ombudsman 
and direct access has been provided to the complainant to 
contact him through e-mail, post and telephone for reporting 
any matter.

the detailed policy is posted on the company’s website at
https://www.hondasielpower.com.

(b) Risk Management Policy

the company has in place the risk management process/policy.
the key risk areas are monitored and assessed periodically,
prudentially and effectively.
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Date of the 
meeting

april 01, 2019
May 28, 2019
august 07,2019
November 06, 2019 
January 28, 2020

Total No. of 
Directors on 
the Board 

6
6
6
6
6

No.of 
Directors

attended the
meeting

6
5
6
6
6



With a view to review the adequacy and effectiveness of 
policies and management procedures and to monitor and
assess Business risks of the company, to ensure that the 
key risk areas were well identified and managed, as a practice 
the company during the financial year 2019-20 carried out 
a risk assessment covering all the functions across 
the organization. an extensive program of internal audits,
process review and Management reviews further supports 
the same.

Further, in pursuance to section 177(4) (vii) of the companies
act, 2013, regulation 18 (3) and schedule ii part - c of seBi
(listing obligations and disclosure requirements)
regulations, 2015, audit committee/Board reviews and
evaluates the internal financial controls and risk management
system of the company.

risk Management  policy of the company may be accessed at
company’s website at the link https://www.hondasielpower.com.

11. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

pursuant to the requirement of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of section
134 of the companies act, 2013, your directors confirm that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended
31.03.2020, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed and there are no material departures;

(b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied
them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company and profit and loss of the 
company as at 31.03.2020;

(c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the companies act, 2013 for safeguarding
the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going
concern basis;

(e) the directors have laid down internal financial controls to be
followed by the company and that such internal financial 
controls are adequate and are operating effectively;

(f) the directors have devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systems are adequate and operating effectively; and

(g) the company has complied with the secretarial standard-i
(Meetings of Board of directors), secretarial standard-ii
(General Meeting) issued and amended from time to time, by the
institute of company secretaries of india.

12. Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments made under
Section186 of the Companies Act, 2013

details of the loans given in compliance with the section 186 of
the companies act, 2013 and other applicable laws/regulations,
during the financial year ended March 31, 2020 are given in the
Note 5(d) of the notes to the financial statements forming part of
annual report.

13. Auditors

(i) Statutory Auditors

the company in its 32nd annual General Meeting held 
on august 04, 2017 approved the appointment of 
M/s. price Waterhouse chartered accountants, llp (FrN
012754N/N500016), as the statutory auditors of the company
for a term of 5 years i.e. from the conclusion of 32nd annual
General Meeting till the conclusion of 37th annual General
Meeting of the company. 

the report of the auditors on the Financial statements of the
company is part of the annual report. there has been no
qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by
the auditors in their report.

during the year under review, the auditors had not reported
any matter under section 143 (12) of the act, therefore no detail
is required to be disclosed under section 134 (3)(ca) of the act.

ii) Cost Auditors

in terms of the provisions of section148 of the companies act,
2013 read with the companies (cost records and audit)
amendment rules, 2014, the Board of directors of the company
has on the recommendation of the audit committee, approved the
appointment of M/s rakesh singh & co.,cost accountants as
cost auditors of the company for the Financial Year 2020-21.
M/s rakesh singh & co., have vast experience in the field of cost
audit and have conducted the audit of the cost records of the
company for the past several years. a certificate from M/s
rakesh singh & co., has been received to the effect that their
appointment as cost auditors of the company, if made, would
be in accordance with the limits specified under section141of
the companies act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder.

their remuneration as mentioned in the Notice convening 35th

annual General Meeting shall be subject to the approval of the
Members.

iii) Secretarial Auditor and Secretarial Audit Report

the secretarial audit was carried out by M/s tVa & co. llp for
the financial year 2019-20.

the report given by the secretarial auditors is annexed as
Annexure - D and forms an integral part of this Board’s report.
there has been no qualification, reservation or adverse remark
or disclaimer in their report. 

during the year under review, the secretarial auditors had not
reported any matter under section 143 (12) of the act, therefore
no detail is required to be disclosed under section 134 (3) (ca) of
the act. 

in terms of section 204 of the act, read with the companies
(appointment and remuneration of Managerial personnel)
rules, 2014, the audit committee recommended and the
Board of directors appointed M/s. tVa & co., llp, as the
secretarial auditors of the company for the financial year
ending March 31, 2021. the company has received their
written consent that the appointment is in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the act and rules framed thereunder.

14. Related Party Transactions

in line with the requirements of the companies act, 2013 and listing
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regulations, all related party transactions are entered into, on arm’s
length basis and in the ordinary course of business. accordingly, no
transactions are being reported in Form aoc-2 in terms of section
134 of the companies act, 2013 read with rule 8 of the companies
(accounts) rules, 2014.

pursuant to seBi (listing obligations and disclosure requirements)
regulations (lodr), 2015 and lodr amendment regulations,
2018 prior approval of the audit committee/Board has been obtained
for all related party transactions. a report on the transactions,
specifying the nature, value and terms and conditions of the same,
done during the quarter vis- à-vis the approval granted were
presented to the audit committee on a quarterly basis for its review.
the transactions which were likely to cross materiality threshold, as
proscribed, were placed before the Members for their approval.

the related party transactions policy, may be accessed at the
company’s website at https://www.hondasielpower.com.

15. Details in respect of adequacy of Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting

the company has put in place the process of internal control over
Financial reporting (icoFr) framework, commensurate with the
size, scale and complexity of its operations. the framework has been
designed to provide reasonable assurance with respect to recording
and providing reliable financial and operational information,
complying with applicable laws, safeguarding assets from
unauthorized use and embezzlement, executing transactions with
proper authorization and ensuring compliance with corporate
policies while maintaining appropriate segregation of duties in all
the transactions at the recording level. Furthermore, this process is
reviewed during the year to be in sync with the changing business
environment, regulatory developments and economic conditions.

the systems, standard operating procedures and controls
implemented by the company are reviewed by the internal auditors
whose findings and recommendations are placed before the audit
committee. the Management in consultation with the internal
auditors develop an annual audit plan based on the continuously
changing risk profile of the business activities. the internal audit plan
is approved by the audit committee, which also reviews compliance to
the plan. the internal auditors monitor and evaluate the efficacy and
adequacy of internal control systems in the company, its compliance
with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all
locations of the company. Based on the report of internal auditor,
process owners undertake corrective action(s) in their respective
area(s) and thereby strengthen the controls. significant audit
observations and corrective action(s) thereon are presented to the
audit committee. the audit committee reviews the reports submitted
by the internal auditors in each of its meeting alongwith the comments
by the Management thereon.

the controls, based on the prevailing business conditions and
processes have been tested during the year and no reportable
material weakness in the design or effectiveness was observed. the
frame work on icoFr has been reviewed by the internal and
statutory auditors. 

16. Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives

in compliance with section 135 of the companies act, 2013 read
with the companies (corporate social responsibility policy) rules
2014, the company has established corporate social responsibility
(csr) committee and statutory disclosures with respect to the csr

committee and an annual report on csr activities forms part of
this report as Annexure–E.

the csr policy may be accessed on the company’s website at the
link https://www.hondasielpower.com.

17. Criteria for appointment of Directors and remuneration to be paid
to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees

Your company has put in place policies on ‘criteria for appointment
of directors’ and ‘remuneration for directors, KMps and all other
employees of the company’.

the policies inter-alia stipulates the directors to be of high integrity with
relevant expertise and experience so as to have a diverse Board. the
policies further lay down the positive attributes/criteria which the 
Nomination and remuneration committee takes into consideration
while recommending the candidature for the appointment as director.

the policy on ‘criteria for appointment of directors’ and 
‘remuneration to be paid to directors, Key Managerial personnel
(KMp) and other employees etc.’ may be accessed on the
company’s website at the link https://www.hondasielpower.com.

18. Criteria of Board independence 

Based on the assessment of the Nomination and remuneration
committee and the confirmation/disclosures received from the 
directors as stipulated in section 149(6) of the companies act, 2013
and on evaluation of the relationships disclosed by the directors,
the following Non-executive directors are independent:

1) Mr. Manoj arora 
2) Ms. alka M. Bharucha
3) Mr. ravi prakash Mehrotra. 

in the opinion of the Board, the independent directors fulfil the
conditions specified under the companies act, 2013, the rules made
thereunder and seBi (listing obligations and disclosure
requirements) regulations, 2015, and are independent of the
management.

determination of independence is being re-assessed when any new
interests or relationships are disclosed by a director.

20. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

i) Cessation of Directors

a) Mr. Yoshifumi iida (diN 03024621), president, ceo and
Md of the company on completion of his assignment in the
company has resigned from the Board w.e.f. close of
business hours on January 31, 2020.

the Board placed on record its appreciation for the efforts
and the valuable contributions made by Mr. Yoshifumi iida
under whose dynamic leadership the company was able
to achieve significant growth.

b) Mr. siddharth shriram (diN  00027750) was appointed as an
independent director of the company w.e.f.  april 01, 2019
for a term of 5 (Five) years. however, on account of his
personal reasons and other commitments, he has stepped
down from the position of the independent director of the
company and has resigned from his directorship with effect
from close of business hours on March 31, 2020.
subsequent to his cessation, Mr. siddharth shriram has
also ceased to be the chairperson of the company.
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the Board placed on record its deep appreciation for the
services rendered and the guidance provided by him during
his tenure as director and chairperson of the Board. his
contribution has been immense all through and he has been
a pillar of strength for the company. his support, guidance
and personality will surely be missed by the company.

ii) Retirement by Rotation

in accordance with the provisions of  the companies act, 2013
and applicable regulations issued by the seBi, Mr. Vinay Mittal
(diN 05242535), Whole time director of the company will retire
by rotation at the forth coming annual General Meeting (‘aGM’)
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. the Board
recommends his re-appointment.

Necessary resolution for the re-appointment of Mr. Mittal and
disclosure in terms of the secretarial standard ii, the seBi
(listing obligations and disclosure requirements)
regulations, 2015, are given in the Notice convening the
annual General Meeting.

as per the confirmation received from Mr. Mittal, he is not 
disqualified for being appointed as director as specified in
section 164 (2) (a) and (b) of the companies act, 2013.

iii) Appointment of Director

the Board of directors on recommendation of the Nomination
and remuneration committee has recommended
appointment of directors as per the following details for
approval by the Members:-

- appointment of Mr. takahiro ueda as executive director of
the company effective February 01, 2020.

- appointment of Mr. ravi prakash Mehrotra as an
independent director with effect from March 31, 2020.

Necessary declarations in this regard, including confirmation
from Mr. Mehrotra that he meets the criteria of independence
prescribed under the act and the listing regulations, has
been received from the above directors.

(iv) Revision in remuneration of Whole Time Director 

the Board of directors in its Meeting held on april 23, 2020, on
the recommendation of Nomination and remuneration
committee, approved revision in remuneration of Mr. Vinay
Mittal, Whole time director of the company, from 01.04.2020
to 31.03.2021 (both days inclusive).

revision in remuneration of Mr. Vinay Mittal from 01.04.2020 
to 31.03.2021 (both days inclusive), as per the details provided
in the Notice convening the annual General Meeting, is
recommended for your approval.

21. Board/ Directors’ Evaluation

pursuant to the applicable provisions of the act and the listing 
regulations, the Board has carried out an annual evaluation of its
own performance, performance of the directors and the working of its
committees on the evaluation criteria defined by the Nomination
and remuneration committee (Nrc) for performance evaluation
process of the Board, its committees and directors, including 
independent directors.

the Board’s functioning was evaluated on various aspects,
including inter-alia the structure of the Board, meetings of the 
Board, functions of the Board, degree of fulfilment of key
responsibilities, establishment and delineation of responsibilities to
various committees, effectiveness of Board processes, information
and functioning. the committees of the Board were assessed on
the degree of fulfilment of key responsibilities, adequacy of
committee composition and effectiveness of Meetings. the
directors were evaluated on aspects such as attendance,
contribution at Board/ committee Meetings and guidance/support
to the Management outside Board/committee Meetings. the
performance evaluation of independent directors was done by 
the entire Board of directors excluding independent director 
being evaluated.

the performance assessment of Non-independent directors, Board
as a whole and the chairman were evaluated in a separate 
meeting of independent directors. the same was also discussed in
the meeting of the Board. performance evaluation of independent 
directors was done by the entire Board, excluding the independent 
director being evaluated.

the review concluded by affirming that the Board as a whole, the
committees of the Board as well as all of its Members, individually,
continued to display commitment to good governance, ensuring a
constant improvement of processes and procedures. it was further
acknowledged that every individual Member of the Board and the
committee thereof contribute its best in the overall growth of the
organization.

22. Explanations or comments on qualifications, reservations 
or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by the Auditors in their
reports.

there were no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks by
the auditors in their respective reports.

23. Deposits

the company has not accepted any deposits from the public/members
under section 73 of the companies act, 2013 read with companies
(acceptance of deposits) rules, 2014 during the year.

24. Buy Back of Securities

the company has not bought back any of its securities during the
year under review.

25. Sweat Equity

the company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the
year under review.

26. Bonus Shares

No Bonus shares were issued during the year under review.

27. Employees Stock Option Scheme

the company has not provided any stock option scheme during
the year under review.

28. Significant and material orders passed by the regulators

during the year under review, no significant and material orders were
passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and company’s operations.
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29. Corporate Governance

the company is committed to maintain the highest standards of
corporate Governance and adhere to the same. the new
companies act, 2013 and seBi (listing obligations and disclosure
requirements) regulations, 2015 have strengthened the
governance regime in the country. Your company is in compliance
with the governance requirements provided under the new law and
had proactively adopted many provisions of the new law, in time. 
a separate section on corporate Governance is annexed to this
report as Annexure–F.

the auditors’ certificate certifying the company’s compliance with the
requirements of corporate Governance in terms of the listing 
regulations, is annexed as Annexure – J. and forms part of the
Boards’ report.

30. Business Responsibility Report

pursuant to regulation 34(2)(f) of seBi (listing obligation and
disclosure requirement) regulations, 2015 the Board is pleased
to present its first Business responsibility report in line with the
National Voluntary Guidelines on social, environmental and
economic responsibilities of Business (NVGs). Your company
adheres to the three aspects of sustainability i.e. economic,
environmental and social along with ethics and good governance
practices. this report gives a brief on the Business responsibility
performance of the company for the Financial Year 2019-2020
annexed as Annexure- K and forms part hereof.

31. Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace

as per the requirement of the sexual harassment of Women at
Workplace (prevention, prohibition & redressal) act, 2013 (‘shWW
act’), your company has a robust mechanism in place to redress
complaints reported under it. an internal complaints committee
(icc) has also been set up to redress complaints received on sexual
harassment.  during the financial year 2019-20 no case of sexual
harassment was reported in the company. during the course of the
year, several initiatives were undertaken to demonstrate the 
company’s zero tolerance philosophy against sexual harassment,
which included creation of comprehensive and easy to understand
training.  

32. a. Code of Conduct and Ethics

the Board of the company has adopted code of conduct and
ethics for the directors and senior executives of the company. the
object of the code is to conduct the company’s business ethically
and with responsibility, integrity, fairness, transparency and 
honesty. the code sets out a broad policy for one’s conduct in
dealing with the company, fellow directors and employees and in
the environment in which the company operates. the code is
available on the company’s website www. hondasielpower.com. 
a declaration signed by cMd and president & ceo of the
company with regard to the compliance with the code by the
Members of the Board and senior executives is annexed as
Annexure–H and forms part hereof.

b. Code of Conduct on Insider Trading

the company has instituted a comprehensive code of conduct in
compliance with the seBi regulations on prevention of insider
trading. the code lays down guidelines, which advise on
procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made, while

dealing in shares of the company and cautions on the
consequences of non-compliances.

33. Respecting Human Rights 

aspects of human rights such as child labour, forced labour, and non-
discrimination are covered by the code of conduct, diversity policy and
various other applicable policies. the company promotes respect
for human rights  by establishing policies and processes to make sure
that its activities does not harm others and that the company
conducts business with dignity and respect for human rights.

34. Compliance Management 

the company has a strong focus on zero non-compliance. an
electronic legal compliance management system is used to track
compliances with applicable regulations. the system has provisions
for early warning, checks and balances, reporting and ecalation. a
report on compliances with the applicable laws/rules/regulations is
submitted to the Board on a quarterly basis.

35. Particulars of Employees

particulars of employees and the ratio of the remuneration of 
each director to the median employee’s remuneration and other
details in terms of section 197 of the companies act, 2013 read with
rule 5 (1) of the companies (appointment and remuneration of
Managerial personnel) rules, 2014 are annexed as Annexure–L
hereof. particulars of employees under section 197 (12) read with
rule 5 (2) of the companies (appointment and remuneration of
Managerial personnel) rules, 2014, forms part of this report.
however, in terms of section 136 (1) of the companies act, 2013, the
report and accounts are being sent to the members and others
entitled thereto, excluding this statement. the details are available for
inspection by the Members at the registered office of the company
during working hours on working days for a period of 21 days before
the ensuing annual General Meeting. however, a copy of the
statement shall be made available to any member on demand.

36. Material changes and commitments affecting the financial
position of the Company after 31st March 2020

there were no material changes and commitments affecting the
financial position of the company after 31st March 2020.
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DOMESTIC BUSINESS

GENERATOR

• the portable generator business has been growing due to an increase
in back-up demand caused by a string of natural disasters that have hit
the country in recent years. institutional business opportunities from
Government and corporate customers are also being increasingly
progressed by your company. the business during the year was
helped by power outages consequent to weather disturbances and
natural disasters in some parts of the country. these factors helped
grow sales over the previous year. 

Opportunities

• improvement in power scenario has brought focus upon primary
applications of portable Gensets such as outdoor usage and also
added to the back-up demand in rural areas. Your company is actively
seeking such prospects and promoting its superior and
technologically advanced products.

• Focus on digitization of economy is dramatically changing
Government’s procurement process with shift towards “e-
procurement” through Government. online portal “e-GeM” (Govt.
electronic Market place). Your company has started to receive
business through this portal. 

Concerns

• power deficit has shown a declining trend and the demand for our
products in urban areas has reduced.

Outlook

• Growth of generator business is expected to continue, driven by
application based sales, inclement weather conditions and the need for
uninterrupted and portable power. Further, the rural market offers
opportunities for growth.

GENERAL PURPOSE ENGINES AND WATER PUMPING SETS

• Gasoline fueled engine and Water pump business continues to
perform well and thereby facilitating transition from kerosene-
powered products. Water pump sales were encouraging due to
increasing acceptance of gasoline-fueled products and support for
agriculture and horticulture sectors from various state Governments.
our gasoline engines are also making inroads into the construction
segment. such acceptance has boosted the company’s efforts to
gradually shift its line-up from kerosene to gasoline.

• engine sales to original equipment Manufacturers (oeM) was
impacted due to uncertain subsidy policy and its disbursement for
agriculture centered products.

• in the construction segment efforts are focused on promoting
engines to power compact and light construction machines. this will
lead to efficiency at the user end.

• engine sales for Marine applications have also been gaining traction
and your company has been working tirelessly to develop this
application to provide relief to small fishermen by accelerating shift
from manual to mechanized rowing.

• in its endeavor to come closer to the end customer, your company
conducted extensive demonstrations in rural areas targeting the
farming community. this has helped to build awareness about our
products and show case their utility for farm operations.  

Opportunities

• infrastructure growth, farm mechanization, increasing rural incomes,
Government support, scarcity of farm labour and environmental
concerns  are triggers for the increasing demand of  our engines and
water pumps.

• the gasoline engine fueled  based pumping sets and engines are 
ex pected to boost demand in areas where kerosene availability is
scarce. 

Concerns

• unpredictable monsoon, uncertain subsidy policy and its allocation/
disbursal.

Outlook

• agriculture and infrastructure sectors are expected to continue
receiving support from the Government.  

considering the competitive cost structure in india, the oeM (original
equipment Manufacturer) market for agricultural and construction
segments is also developing. Your company is looking at increasing its
presence in these segments by working closely with good quality
manufacturers.  

BRUSH CUTTERS

• honda Brush cutters have been well accepted as providers of
affordable and efficient mechanized solution for farm activities like
de-weeding and harvesting. honda products are endowed with
environment friendly, cutting edge “4 stroke” technology and fuel
efficient features.

• the company further strengthened its presence in this category by
launching the country’s first 4 stroke powered, heavy-duty Brush
cutter with revolutionary GX50 engine for the indian farmer. the new
model offers unmatched fuel efficiency along with 2ps power for
continuous heavy-duty usage.

• response to this New Model has been encouraging and your company
expects to promote the New Model to many more farmers in this year.

TILLERS

• honda tillers are registering promising growth and acceptability
across the country.

• honda tillers are creating a place for themselves amongst small
farmers growing vegetables and cash crops. tiller business is
expected to accelerate due to availability of various Government
schemes that promote mechanization amongst small farmers.

• Your company has been providing tiller attachments for multiple
applications, helping boost farm productivity. the company is seeking
avenues to provide competitively priced attachments to complement
farmer requirement.

EXPORT BUSINESS

• Generator business continues to be the highest amongst all  product
categories. Business from North american and european markets is
encouraging.

• production transfer of GX mid-size engine from honda thailand has
considerably added to company’s sales volumes from american
market.

• diversification efforts with tillers & small engine have been
successful in markets such as Nepal, indonesia, Vietnam, taiwan
and Korea. With increasing customer acceptability of our tillers in
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terms of usefulness to small farmers and ease of operations in hilly
terrains, expect to increase this business further in the future.

Concerns

• price competitiveness in emerging markets is an area of concern. 

Outlook

• Your company is making efforts to expand the  export mix with
gasoline  fueled engines and Water pumps especially in south West
asian Markets.

RISKS AND AREAS OF CONCERN

the company’s risk Management framework encompasses practices
relating to the identification, analysis, evaluation, treatment, mitigation
and monitoring of the strategic, external and operational controls risks to
achieving our key business objectives.  

the company has a robust risk mitigation plan to minimize identified
risks through continuous monitoring and mitigating actions.

the risk Management committee of the Board assists the Board in its
oversight of various risks. the risk Management committee reviews
compliance with risk policies, monitors risk tolerance limits, reviews and
analyzes risk exposures related to specific issues and provides oversight
of risk across the organization. the company has a Board approved
operational risk Management framework.  

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND SYSTEMS

Your company has a proper and adequate system of internal controls. 
the company maintains appropriate policies, procedures and systems to
ensure orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to company’s policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of 
accounting records. the internal control system has been designed 
to ensure that the financial and other records are reliable for 
preparing financial and other statements and for maintaining
accountability of assets in proper manner.

an independent internal audit function is an important element of your
company’s internal control system. the internal control system is
supplemented through an extensive internal audit programme 
and periodic review by Management and audit committee. all 
these measures facilitate timely detection of any irregularities and 
early remedial steps.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

during the year 2019-20 sale of products was ̀ 82,748 lakh as against 
` 80,146 lakh in the previous year. this represents an increase of 3% in
terms of value over previous year. 

profit before tax and exceptional items for the year was ` 8, 606 lakh
as against ̀ 8,681 lakh   in 2018-19.  

there are no Key financial ratios of the company which has significant
change (i.e. more than 25% change) compared to last year.

details of return on Net Worth as compared to the immediately previous
financial year along with a detailed explanation thereof are as under:

HUMAN RESOURCES 

today’s business landscape is exceptionally dynamic. responsive
human capital strategy is the root to content high customer expectation.
Your company constantly endeavors to grade and harmonize the working
environment resonating the company’s principles. Your company is
committed to strongly challenge the adverse and carve out a self-reliant
constitution to be the best place to work.

Working experience is the prime factor for workforce engagement and a key
indicator for organizational growth. positive shift of associates towards
highly engaged category in 2019 dipstick survey projects the commitment
of your company towards nurturing the associate working environment.

availability and retaining of talent is critical to any organization. Your
company is determined to sail through futuristic progression channels to
create a niche for performance-orientated culture. it continuously
challenges the laid down processes to move towards excellence in
culture. Your company has focussed on transparent and objective
performance Management by emphasizing on two-way communication
and continuous feedback system. Your company is stringently focussed
and have worked upon succession planning to ease any prospective
void of talent. career development planning with long-lasting vision of
succession is instigated at lower and middle management level and is
being driven thoroughly to spark the latent aptitude to take up higher
roles in the hierarchy. Job rotation policy has been implemented towards
the polishing of leadership potential.

Your company relentlessly drives the skill enhancement initiatives for
comprehensive development of associates. Moving towards the ease in
learning, latest technological advancements are appraised. Your
company always endeavours to embrace diversified talent to bring in
creativity across. in the coming years your company will be stringently
working towards enhancement of diversified environment.

the company always maintains a conducive and an open environment for
any dialogue. Generating more harmony in the process, Works
committee is actively participating in concluding the wages settlement by
way of bipartite discussion.

human capital is the most critical asset to any business. coVid-19 has
emerged as the greatest threat to humanity gripping the entire world,
causing the unseen socio-economic disaster, challenging the scientific
progressions that humans claim. Your company is taking all permissible
measures for the safeguard of the associates.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Your company is comprehensively embracing information technology
to leverage its potential and sail through the changes. Business continuity
is the utmost priority. Your company has strengthened the network and
data security through advance security operations centre, wherein the
installation of advance antivirus patches and operating system patches
have been automated in the first phase and further multiple level security
controls are planned

the company as on March 31, 2020 had 779 associates.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

statements in this Management discussion and analysis report
describing the company’s objectives, projections, estimates and
expectations may be ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of
applicable laws and regulations. actual results might differ substantially or
materially from those expressed or implied. important developments that
could affect the company’s operations include significant changes in
political and economic environment in india and key markets abroad, tax
laws, litigation, labour relations and interest costs.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

(a) Conservation of energy

(b) Technology Absorption

(c) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
during the year, the total foreign exchange used was ̀ 27,653 lakh and the total foreign exchange earned was ̀ 34,034 lakh. 
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(i)

(ii)

(iii)

the steps taken for impact on 
conservation of energy

the steps taken by the company
for utilizing alternate sources of
energy
the capital investment on 
energy conservation equipments

Following energy conservation measures were taken to reduce the energy consumption:
1. installation of timers and logic modification for stoppage of idle running of hydraulic Motors in Machine

shop, leading to 2,067 KWh (6.28%) energy saving per year.
2. installation of new energy efficient raw water pump 2.2 KW in place of 4.0 KW    pump, leading to 4,216

KWh (45.0%) energy saving per year.
3. installation of new energy efficient motor (3.85 KW) for weld shop cooling tower in place of old Motor

(5.25KW) leading to 2,873KWh (26.67%) energy saving per year.
4. installation of led tube lights in place of conventional tube lights at areas like   assembly, paint, Weld, Qa,

aluminum, pdc & die Maintenance etc. and led   street lights in place of conventional street lights.
energy saving per year by these   activities is 11,855 KWh (50.0%) and 2,610 (58.86%) respectively.

hazardous waste ( paint sludge & effluent treatment plant’s  sludge) quantity generated per unit
production  reduced by 9.3% w.r.t last year due to effective drying of sludge by  greenhouse effect of
natural sunlight received through transparent sheets above roof.
Following capital investments were made for energy conservation equipments:
1. ` 4.2 lakhs : as detailed in (i)(1-3) above 
2. ` 2.5 lakhs : as detailed in (i) (4) above

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

the effort made towards
technology absorption 

the benefits derived like product
improvement, cost reduction,
product development or import
substitution

in case of imported technology
(imported during the last three
years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year) 
(a) the details of technology

imported 
(b) the year of import 

(c) Whether the technology
been fully absorbed 

(d) if not fully absorbed, area
where absorption has not
taken place and the reasons
thereof 

the expenditure incurred on
research and development 

- the company has availed the service of technical specialists from the foreign collaboration who
impart on the job training and guidance to the company’s engineers and technicians.

- For development of the new technology model and to improve the manufacturing quality of 
in-plant/out plant parts, new manufacturing facility has been added in the following areas:
- adoption of technology to produce General purpose engine for usa Market.
- localization and cost reduction of parts of engines and Generators.
- adoption of global concept for domestic engines with e10 Gasoline.
- upgrading existing Generator models to continuously meet the regulation of advance countries such

as: -
• epa carB and evaporation for usa Market.
• aNsi /pGMa for usa Market.
• Meeting rohs compliance for uae Market.

the benefits derived related to: 
- Meeting customer as well as regulatory requirement in all product ranges like engine and Generator.
- producing environment friendly product by managing hazardous substance.
- cost reduction through indigenization. 
- enhancement of the sales feature of the products.

Following information is furnished in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years
reckoned from the beginning of the financial year): 

Manufacturing of portable inverter Generator, ohV General purpose engines, Water pump sets and
agriculture products such as tiller, Backpack sprayer etc. 
technology is being imported since beginning of the collaboration agreement dated 18.10.1985, as is
renewed/revamped from time to time and valid for a period of 5 years till March 31, 2022. 
No, this is in the process of being absorbed gradually.

technology is further to be absorbed for localization of high technology engine components and in
producing the country specific products / models like:

- For engines- ohV technology- cost reduction parts.
- For Generator – Fuel injection system technology- increase the efficiency of parts by Value

engineering.
- to increase the value of the product, Bluetooth and co sensor enabled product development for us.
- For Water pump- high performance self-priming pumps for indian farmers.

Nil
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended 31st March, 2020                                                                                                                                          

[pursuant to section 92(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the companies (Management and administration) rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
i) ciN: l40103dl2004plc203950
ii) registration date: 19/09/1985
iii) Name of the company: honda siel power products limited
iv) category / sub-category of the company: public listed company
v) address of the registered office and contact details: 409, tower B, dlF commercial 

complex, Jasola, New delhi – 110025, 
tel. +91 011 41082210, 0120 2590211

vi) Whether listed company: Yes
vii) Name, address and contact details of registrar and Mas services limited, t-34, 2nd Floor, 

transfer agents (rta), if any: okhla industrial area, phase-ii, 
New delhi 110020, tel. 011-26387281-83 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

Sl. No. Name and Description of main NIC Code of the Product/ % to total turnover 
Products /Services Service of the Company

1. Generators 27101 62
2. engines 28110 15
3. Water pumps 28132 10
4. tillers/Back pack sprayer 28212/ 28231 1

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

Sl. No. Name and address  CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary/ % of shares Applicable
of the company Associate held Section

1. honda Motor co. ltd. N. a. holding 66.67 2(46)

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 

(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the  No. of Shares held at the %
Shareholders beginning of the year end of the year Change

Demat Physical Total % of Demat Physical Total % of during
Total Total the
Shares Shares year

A. Promoters
(1) Indian
(a) individual/huF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
(b) central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
(c) state Govt (s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
(d) Bodies corp. 1,01,433 0 1,01,433 1.00 1,01,433 0 1,01,433 1.00 0.00
(e) Banks / Fi 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
(f) any other…. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
Sub-total (A) (1):- 1,01,433 0 1,01,433 1.00 1,01,433 0 1,01,433 1.00 0.00
(2) Foreign
(a) Nris -individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
(b) other –individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
(c) Bodies corp. 67,62,000 0 67,62,000 66.67 67,62,000 0 67,62,000 66.67 0.00
(d) Banks / Fi 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
(e) any other…. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
Sub-total (A) (2):- 67,62,000 0 67,62,000 66.67 67,62,000 0 67,62,000 66.67 0.00
total shareholding of
promoter (a) = 68,63,433 0 68,63,433 67.67 68,63,433 0 68,63,433 67.67 0.00
(a)   (1)+(a)(2)
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Category of No. of Shares held at the  No. of Shares held at the %
Shareholders beginning of the year end of the year Change

Demat Physical Total % of Demat Physical Total % of during
Total Total the
Shares Shares year

B. Public Shareholding
1. Institution
(a) Mutual Funds 6,41,135 20 6,41,155 6.32 9,05,645 20 9,05,665 8.93 2.61
(b) alternate investment Funds 1,50,000 0 1,50,000 1.48 1,26,241 0 1,26,241 1.24 (0.24)
(c) Foreign portfolio investors 34,450 0 34,450 0.34 35,899 0 35899 0.35 0.01
(d) Banks / Fi 6,803 200 7,003 0.07 7780 200 7980 0.08 0.01
(e) central Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(f) state Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(g) Venture capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(h) insurance companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(i) Fiis 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(j) Foreign Venture capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(k) others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (B)(1) 8,32,388 220 8,32,608 8.21 10,75,565 220 10,75,785 10.61 2.40
2. Non-Institutions
(a)  Bodies Corporate

(i) indian 1,23,251 322 1,23,573 1.22 91,132 322 91,454 0.90 (0.32)
(ii) overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(b) Individuals
(i) individual shareholders
holding nominal share 19,03,424 1,26,099 20,29,523 20.01 17,25,717 113741 18,39,458 18.14 1.87
capital upto ̀ 2 lakh
(ii) individual shareholders 
holding nominal share capital 81,000 0 81,000 0.80 75,000 0 75,000 0.74 (0.06)
in excess of ̀ 2 lakh
(iii) NBFc registered with rBi 4,620 0 4,620 0.05 900 0 900 0.01 (0.04)

(c) Others (specify)
clearing member 20,581 0 20,581 0.20 20,771 0 20,771 0.20 0
Nri 1,22,778 19,634 1,42,412 1.40 1,11,871 19,134 1,31,005 1.29 (0.11)
trust 5,080 0 5,080 0.05 1,518 0 1,518 0.01 (0.04)
unclaimed suspense a/c/ iepF 40,241 0 40,241 0.40 43,747 0 43,747 0.43 0.03
Sub-total (B)(2):- 23,00,975 1,46,055 24,47,030 24.13 20,70,656 1,33,197 22,03,853 21.73 (2.4)
Total Public
Shareholding 31,33,363 1,46,275 32,79,638 32.33 31,46,221 1,33,417 32,79,638 32.33 0.00
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)
C. Shares held by 
Custodian for NOT APPLICABLE
GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total 
(A+B+C) 99,96,796 1,46,275 1,01,43,071 100 1,00,09,654 1,33,417 1,01,43,071 100 0

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

SI. Shareholders Shareholding at the Shareholding at the %
No. Name beginning of the year end of the year Change

No. of % of total % of Shares No. of % of total % of Shares in share
Shares Shares of the Pledged / Shares Shares of the Pledged/ holding

company encumbered company encumbered during
to total shares to total shares the year

1. honda Motor co., ltd., 67,62,000 66.67 Nil 67,62,000 66.67 Nil Nil
Japan

2. usha international limited 1,01,433 1.00 Nil 1,01,433 1.00 Nil Nil

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

there were no changes in promoter shareholding during the financial year 2019-20.
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters) 

Sl. Name of Shareholder Shareholding at the Reason of Change in shareholding Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year (No. of Shares) during the year

No. of % of total Date of Initial Buy Sell No. of % of total 
shares shares of the holding/ shares shares of the 

company Buy/Sell Company
1 reliance capital trustee 6,28,609 6.20 30-03-2019 - -

co. ltd.- Nippon india
17-05-2019 399 -
24-05-2019 2,000 -
31-05-2019 1,000 -
14-06-2019 1,000 -
21-06-2019 5,000 -
28-06-2019 22,200 -
26-07-2019 2,981 -
31-07-2019 1,462 -
02-08-2019 3,622 -
09-08-2019 16,663 -
23-08-2019 9,915 -
30-08-2019 150 -
20-09-2019 3,844 -
27-09-2019 4,813 -
30-09-2019 1,684 -
04-10-2019 2,970 -
11-10-2019 6,030 -
18-10-2019 13,576 -
25-10-2019 5,000 -
01-11-2019 2,000 -
08-11-2019 2,724 -
15-11-2019 16,298 -
22-11-2019 13,453 -
29-11-2019 3,040 -
06-12-2019 4,508 -
13-12-2019 1,400 -
20-12-2019 5,000 -
27-12-2019 1,460 -
24-01-2020 5,591 -
31-01-2020 4,706 -
27-02-2020 4,592 -
14-02-2020 14,503 -
21-02-2020 7,937 -
28-02-2020 5,000 -
06-03-2020 3,395 -
13-03-2020 779 -
20-03-2020 4,684 -
27-03-2020 1,390 -

Total 2,06,769 - 8,35,378 8.24
2 iiFl re organize india 1,50,000 1.48 30-03-2019 - -

equity Fund 21-06-2019 - 1,663
28-06-2019 - 2,502
12-07-2019 - 771
19-07-2019 - 2,322
09-08-2019 - 4,304
16-08-2019 - 1,170
23-08-2019 - 4,076
30-08-2019 - 1,332
06-09-2019 - 1,319
03-01-2020 - 4,300

Total - 23,759 1,26,241 1.25
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Sl. Name of Shareholder Shareholding at the Reason of Change in shareholding Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year (No. of Shares) during the year

No. of % of total Date of Initial Buy Sell No. of % of total 
shares shares of the holding/ shares shares of the 

company Buy/Sell Company
3 tata /mutual Fund 50,000 0.5 28-02-2020 - -

06-03-2020 2,600 -
13-03-2020 10,500 -
20-03-2020 617 -
27-03-2020 6,550 -

Total 20,267 - 70,267 0.69
4 laxmichand Kunverji Kenia 30,000 0.30 - - - 30,000 0.30
5 parag p parekh huF 17,500 0.17 30-03-2019 - -

19-07-2019 1,500 -
09-08-2019 750 -
27-09-2019 250 -
18-10-2019 1,000 -
15-11-2019 2,000 -
22-11-2019 1,000 -

Total 6,500 - 24,000 0.24
6 amit Jasani 21,000 0.21 - - - 21,000 0.21
7 pulkit.N.sekhsaria 20,000 0.20 - - - 20,000 0.20
8 panna Bankim 19,000 0.19 - - - 19,000 0.19
9 F l dadabhoy 19,200 0.19 30-03-2019 -

04-10-2019 - 600
Total - 600 18,600 0.18

10 the emerging Markets 16,776 0.17 - - - 16,776 0.17
TOTAL 9,72,085 9.58 - 2,33,536 24,359 11,81,262 11.65

Movement of Shareholders holding position in top ten shareholders as on March 31, 2020 in comparison to shareholding as on
March 31, 2019

11 Jayantilal premji shah 30,000 0.30 30-03-2019 -
14-06-2019 - 30,000 - -

Total - - NIL NIL

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl. Name of For Each of the Directors and KMP Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. Director/KMP beginning of the year during the year

No. of % of total No. of % of total 
shares shares of the shares shares of the 

Company Company
1. Mr. siddharth shriram at the beginning of the year 50 Negligible 50 Negligible

date wise increase/decrease in 
shareholding during the year 
specifying the reasons for increase/ 0 0 0 0
decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/ 
bonus/sweat equity etc)
at the end of the year 50 Negligible 50 Negligible

2. Ms. sunita Ganjoo at the beginning of the year 1 Negligible 1 Negligible
date wise increase /decrease in 
shareholding during the year 
specifying the reasons for increase/ 0 0 0 0
decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/
bonus/ sweat equity etc): 
at the end of the year 1 Negligible 1 Negligible

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

the company had no indebtedness with respect to secured or unsecured loans of deposits during the financial year 2019-20. 
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors

Sl. Particulars of  Name of MD/WTD Total
No. Remuneration Amount (`)

Yoshifumi Iida* Takahiro  Ueda** H. Sugimizu Vinay Mittal
1. Gross salary (`)

(a) salary as per provisions  
u/s section 17(1) 1,02,15,406 1,3,42,135 1,21,82,892 62,26,694 2,99,67,127
of the income-tax act,1961

(b) Value of perquisites 
u/s 17(2) income-tax 57,93,074 4,33,633 9,49,792 10,03,602 81,80,101
act, 1961

(c) profits in lieu of salary under 
section 17(3) of the income 1,07,85,165 5,63,302 87,97,091 73,65,701 2,75,11,259
tax act, 1961

2. stock option 0 0 0 0 0
3. sweat equity 0 0 0 0 0
4. commission

- as % of profit 0 0 0 0 0
- others 

5. others (exempted Benefits) (`) 48,584 3,93,827 6,72,819 2,11,991 13,27,221
Total (A) 2,68,42,229 27,32,897 2,26,02,594 1,48,07,988 6,69,85,708
ceiling as per the act the remuneration paid is well within the limits prescribed under companies act, 2013.  

* ceased to be director with effect from close of business hours on January, 31, 2020.
**appointed as president, ceo & Md with effect from February 01, 2020. re-designated as cMd & president & ceo of the company effective 

april 01, 2020.

B. Remuneration to other directors:

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total
Remuneration (1) Amount (`)
Independent Directors Manoj Arora Alka M. Bharucha Sidhharth Shriram
Fee for attending Board Meeting 3,00,000 3,00,000 2,40,000 8,40,000
audit committee 2,40,000 2,40,000 1,80,000 6,60,000
stakeholders relationship committee - - 1,00,000 1,00,000
Nomination and remuneration committee 1,50,000 1,50,000 1,00,000 4,00,000
Board committee on Financial Matters - - - -
csr committee - - 50,000 50,000
independent director’s Meeting 50,000 50,000 50,000 1,50,000
commission Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (B) 7,40,000 7,40,000 7,20,000 22,00,000
total Managerial remuneration A + B*   6,91,85,708

in terms of the provisions of the companies act, 2013, the remuneration payable to directors
other than executive directors shall not exceed 1% of the net profits of the company. the
remuneration paid is well within the said limits.

*total remuneration to cMd and president, & ceo, Whole time directors and directors (being the total of a and B)

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than President & CEO and Whole Time Directors

Sl. Particulars of  Remuneration Key Managerial Person
No.
1 Gross salary (`)

(a) salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the    income-tax act, 1961 6,83,742
(b)  Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the income-tax act, 1961 -
(c)  profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the income-tax act, 1961 7,76,460

2 stock option Nil
3 sweat equity Nil
4 commission

- as % of profit Nil
- others

5 others : exempted Benefits (`) 1,82,281 
Total (`) 16,42,483

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

there were no penalties/punishments/compounding of offences for breach of any section of the companies act, 2013 against the company or its
directors or other officers in default, if any, during the year 2019-20. 

overall ceiling as per the act
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Annexure - D to Board’s Report

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2020

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,
The Members
Honda Siel Power Products Limited 
CIN: L40103DL2004PLC203950
409, DLF Tower B,
Jasola Commercial Complex,
New Delhi-110025

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by honda
siel power products limited (hereinafter called “the company”). secretarial audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also
the information provided by the company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report
that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the company has proper board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company for the financial year
ended on 31st March, 2020 according to the provisions of:

(i) the companies act, 2013 (the act) and the rules made thereunder;
(ii) the securities contract (regulation) act, 1956 (‘scra’) and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) the depositories act, 1996 and the regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv) the Foreign exchange Management act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign direct investment, 

overseas direct investment and external commercial Borrowings;
(v) the following regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the securities and exchange Board of india act, 1992 (‘seBi act’):-

(a) the securities and exchange Board of india (substantial acquisition of shares and takeovers) regulations, 2011;
(b) the securities and exchange Board of india (prohibition of insider trading) regulations, 2015;
(c) the securities and exchange Board of india (issue of capital and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2018;
(d) the securities and exchange Board of india (share Based employee Benefits) regulations,2014;
(e) the securities and exchange Board of india (issue and listing of debt securities) regulations, 2008;
(f) the securities and exchange Board of india (registrars to an issue and share transfer agents) regulations, 1993 regarding the 

companies act, 2013 and dealing with the client;
(g) the securities and exchange Board of india (delisting of equity shares ) regulations, 2009;
(h) the securities and exchange Board of india (Buy Back of securities) regulations, 2018; and
(i) the securities and exchange Board of india (listing obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015.

(vi) We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the company and on examination of the relevant documents and
records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the company has complied with following acts, laws and regulations applicable specifically to
the company:-
(a) the explosives act, 1884 and rules made thereunder;
(b) the Boilers act, 1923 and rules made thereunder;
(c) the petroleum act, 1934 and rules made thereunder;
(d) legal Metrology act, 2009 and rules thereunder
(e) the electricity act, 2003 and rules made thereunder; and 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) secretarial standards issued by the institute of company secretaries of india.
(ii) the listing agreements entered into by the company with Bse ltd. and National stock exchange of india ltd. (Nse).
(iii) codes and policies adopted by the company.

We report that during the period under review the following regulations and Guidelines were not applicable to the company:
(i) rules and regulations prescribed by the reserve Bank of india under Foreign exchange Management act, 1999 with respect to the

overseas direct investment and external commercial Borrowing;
(ii) the securities and exchange Board of india (issue of capital and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2018;
(iii) the securities and exchange Board of india (share Based employee Benefits) regulations, 2014;
(iv) the securities and exchange Board of india (issue and listing of debt securities) regulations, 2008;
(v) the securities and exchange Board of india (delisting of equity shares) regulations, 2009; and
(vi) the securities and exchange Board of india (Buy-back of securities) regulations, 2018

We further report that during the period under review the company has complied with the provisions of the act, rules, regulations, Guidelines,
standards, etc. mentioned above.



We further report that the Board of directors of the company is duly constituted with proper balance of executive directors, Non-executive directors
and independent directors. the changes in the composition of the Board of directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the act.

We further report that adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least
seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and
for meaningful participation at the meeting. decisions carried through by the Board do not have any dissenting views and hence no relevant recordings
were made in the minutes book maintained for the purpose.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines framed thereunder. 

We further report that during the audit period there were following event/action in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines,
standards, etc, having a major bearing on the company’s affairs.

Change in management

during the period under review, Mr. ravi prakash Mehrotra was appointed as an independent director of the company with effect from the start of working
hours on March 31, 2020, subject to the approval of shareholders. 

Mr. siddharth shriram was appointed as an independent director of the company w.e.f april 1, 2019 for a term of 5 (Five) years. Further, he has
stepped down from the position of the independent director of the company and has resigned from the directorship with effect from the closing hours
of March 31, 2020. subsequent to his cessation, Mr. siddharth shriram has also ceased to be the chairperson of the company. 

Mr. Yoshifumi iida, designated as president, ceo & Managing director, has ceased to be the director of the company with effect from the close of working
hours on January 31, 2020 and Mr. takahiro ueda has appointed as an additional director designated as president, ceo & Managing director with effect
from February 01, 2020 subject to the approval of shareholders. 

Further, the shareholders, at the annual General Meeting of the company held on august 07, 2019, have approved the re-appointments of Mr. Manoj
arora and Ms. alka Marezban Bharucha as independent directors for a second term of 5 (Five) years with effect from March 01, 2019 and september
15, 2019 respectively and Mr. hiroyoshi sugimizu as Whole time director for a further term of 5 (Five) years with effect from april 01, 2019.

For TVA & Co. LLP
Company Secretaries

Delhi, June 18, 2020 sd/-
Tanuj Vohra

Partner
M. No.: F5621, C.P. No.: 5253
UDIN: F005621B000352374

PR 708/2020

Note: this report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘annexure - a’ and forms an integral part of our report. 

Annexure – A
To,
The Members,
Honda Siel Power Products Limited
CIN: L40103DL2004PLC203950
409, DLF Tower B
Jasola Commercial Complex
New Delhi-110025

1 our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the company for ensuring the various compliances but the
maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the company. our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
secretarial records based on our audit.

2 We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of
the secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion and the compliance of
the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules and regulations is the responsibility of the management of the company. our
examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

3 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial records and Books of accounts of the company.
4 We have obtained necessary management representation about the compliance of various laws, correctness of information shared and happening

of events, wherever required.
5 compliance with respect to the filings of various reports, returns, forms, certificates and documents under the various statutes as mentioned in our

report is the responsibility of the management of the company. our examination was limited to checking the execution and timeliness of filing and
we have not verified the contents of such reports, returns, forms, certificates etc.
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6 secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For TVA & Co. LLP
Company Secretaries

sd/-
Tanuj Vohra

Delhi, June 18, 2020 Partner
M. No.: F5621, C.P. No.: 5253
UDIN: F005621B000352374

PR 708/2020
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Annexure – E to Board’s Report

Annual Report on CSR Activities of the Company

1.

2. the composition of the csr committee Name Category/Director
(as on the date of Board report) Mr. takahiro ueda executive chairperson

Mr. ravi prakash Mehrotra independent Member
Mr. Vinay Mittal executive Member

3. average net profit of the company for 
` 9466.87 lakhlast three years 

4. prescribed csr expenditure (two per cent  
of the amount as in item 3 above) ` 190.00 lakh

5. details of csr spent during the year 
1)  amount to be spent for the year ` 190.00 lakh

2) amount unspent, if any Nil
3) Manner in which the amount spent during

` 190.00 lakh contribution towards prime Minister’s National relief Fund.the financial year

this is to state that the implementation and monitoring of csr policy, is in compliance with csr objectives and policy of the company.

Sd/ Sd/
Takahiro Ueda Ravi Prakash Mehrotra

CMD and President & CEO/Chairman CSR Committee Independent Director

a brief outline of the company’s csr policy,
including overview of projects or programs
proposed to be undertaken and a reference
to the web link to the csr policy and project or
programmes

the company’s csr policy has been framed within the objectives prescribed under
schedule Vii of the companies act, 2013 as per the following vision and objective:

1. Vision:
to be an active contributor in raising the country’s human development index and 
fulfill the role of a socially responsible corporate, with environment concerns.

2. Objective:
2.1. to align and integrate the honda-csr activities with the honda philosophy

and make them outcome oriented.
2.2. to sustain and continuously improve the quality of life and economic well being

of the local populace.
2.3. to create a brand image of honda which society will want to exist as a

socially responsible image.

csr activities proposed to be undertaken by the company shall be in pursuance to
section 135 read with schedule Vii of the companies act, 2013. 

the policy is also posted on the company’s website at www.hondasielpower.com
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Annexure- F to Directors’ Report

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
1. Company’s Philosophy on Code of Governance

corporate Governance ensures fairness, transparency and integrity of the Management. the company believes that it is imperative to manage the 
business and its affairs in the most transparent manner with a firm commitment to our values. sound corporate Governance is critical for enhancing and
retaining investors trust and thus seeks to ensure that its performance goals are met with integrity. the company maintains highest level of transparency,
accountability and good Management practices through the adoption and monitoring of corporate strategies, goals and procedures to comply with its
legal, social and ethical responsibilities. the company is always working towards building trust with shareholders, employees, customers, suppliers and
all other stakeholders based on the principles of good corporate Governance.

the company strives to foster a corporate culture in which high standards of ethical behavior, individual accountability and transparent disclosures are
ingrained in all its business dealings and shared by its Board of directors, Management and employees at all levels.

the company has set to itself the objective of expanding its capacities and becoming globally competitive in its business. the company is committed
to meet the aspirations of all the stakeholders. this is also embodied in the corporate vision of the company, which states that “honda siel power 
products limited would like to be a company which society would want to exist.”

the directors fully endorse and support the essentials of corporate Governance and accordingly herein below give a true and fair report on corporate
Governance.

2. Board of Directors

the Board of directors (‘the Board’) is at the core of corporate Governance practices. the Board is entrusted with the ultimate responsibility of management,
general affairs, direction and performance of the company and has been vested with the requisite powers, authorities and duties.Your company firmly 
believes that Board independence is essential to bring objectivity and transparency in the management and in the affairs of the company.  

Your company has established appropriate systems and procedures to ensure that its Board is well informed and well equipped to fulfil its overall 
responsibilities and to provide Management with the strategic direction needed to create long term shareholders value.

the Board of your company is broad-based and well diversified, consisting of seven members as on 31st March, 2020, with an ideal composition of three
executive directors and four Non-executive directors, including a woman director. the composition of the Board represents an optimal mix of
professionalism, knowledge and experience and enables the Board to discharge its responsibilities and provide effective leadership to the business. Four
Non-executive directors are independent i.e. they do not have any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the company, its promoters, its
Management or related persons except receiving sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board, which in the opinion of the Board will not affect the
independence of judgement of the said directors. the Board Members possess the skills, experience and expertise necessary to guide the affairs of the
company.   

None of the independent directors of your company serves as an independent director in more than seven listed entities.

particulars of the directors who are being appointed / re-appointed at the ensuing annual General Meeting (‘aGM’) in terms of the secretarial standard
2 issued by the institute of company secretaries of india (secretarial standard), the securities and exchange Board of india (listing obligation and 
disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015 (the regulations) are provided in the notice convening the aGM.

Board Meetings

there is a well-organized system for seeking Board approval, which facilitates and provides room for sound and informed decision making by the Board
and its committees. agenda and other relevant reports are circulated at least seven days ahead of the meeting. the quantum and quality of information
supplied by the management to the Board goes well beyond the minimum requirement stipulated under companies act, 2013, secretarial standards
and the regulations. Where expedient, the Board also approves resolutions by way of circulation between two successive Board meetings, as permitted
by law, which are noted and confirmed in the subsequent Board Meeting.  

the notice of Board / committee Meetings is given well in advance to all the directors. the agenda of the Board / committee Meetings is set by the
company secretary in consultation with the Management of the company. the Board agenda includes an action taken report comprising of actions
taken on decisions arrived at the Board Meetings and updates thereof. 

during the financial year, five Board Meetings were held on april 01, 2019, May 28, 2019, august 07, 2019, November 06, 2019, and January 28, 2020.
the maximum interval between any two Meetings was well within the maximum gap allowed of 120 days. during the year, four resolutions by circulation
were passed by the Board of directors on May 02, 2019, June 18, 2019, august 22, 2019 and March 30, 2020 respectively. all statutory and other important
items/ information were placed before the Board for approval/review. 

the number of directorship(s), committee Membership(s)/chairmanship(s) of all directors is within respective limits prescribed under the companies
act, 2013 and the listing regulations. the composition of the Board of directors, attendance of the directors at the Board Meetings and annual 
General Meeting, number of directorships in indian public limited companies, Name of the listed companies where director is holding directorship, 
category of directorship in other listed companies and Membership of committee(s) (audit and stakeholders relationship committee) of the Board of
such companies are as follows:
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Note:

a. directorships held by directors as mentioned above do not include alternate directorship, directorships of Foreign companies, section 8
companies and private limited companies.

b. in accordance with regulation 27 of securities and exchange Board of india (listing obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015,
Membership (chairmanship) of audit committee and stakeholders relationship committee of public limited companies have been considered.

c. None of the directors is a member of more than ten Board level committees of public limited companies in which they are directors nor is 
chairman of more than five such committees.

d. there has been no inter-se relationship between or among directors of the company.

* Particulars of change in directorship during the year: 

Mr. siddharth shriram, independent director, chairperson of the audit committee, stakeholders relationship committee and Mr. Manoj arora, 
independent director, chairperson of Nomination and remuneration committee attended the annual General Meeting of the company.

the company does not pay any remuneration to its Non-executive/independent directors except ` 60,000/-(rupees sixty thousand only) per 
Meeting as sitting fees for attending Meetings of the Board and audit committee Meetings and ̀ 50,000/-(rupees Fifty thousand only) per Meeting as
sitting fees for attending meetings of its other committees. No commission on the net profit of the company is paid to any director. there are no 
pecuniary relationships or transactions of the Non- executive directors vis-à-vis the company. 

S. 
No.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Name of the Director

Mr. Yoshifumi iida

Mr. takahiro ueda

Mr. ravi prakash Mehrotra

Mr. siddharth shriram

Category

Non-id/ed

Non-id/ed

id/Ned

id/Ned

Date of  Appointment/
Cessation

February 01, 2020

February 01, 2020

March 31, 2020

april 01, 2020

Remarks

ceased to be director from the close of business hours on
31st January, 2020
appointed as president, ceo & Md w.e.f. 1st February,
2020.  re-designated as cMd and president & ceo of 
the company effective april 01, 2020
appointed as independent director from start of working
hours on March 31, 2020
ceased to be the director/chairperson effective 
april 01, 2020

Name of
Director/
Member

siddharth
shriram
Manoj 
arora

alka 
Marezban
Bharucha

ravi
prakash
Mehrotra*
Yoshifumi
iida*
hiroyoshi
sugimizu
Vinay
Mittal
takahiro
ueda*

Category

id/Ned

id/Ned

id/Ned

id/Ned

Non-
id/ed
Non-
id/ed
Non-
id/ed
Non-
id/ed

Attendance
at the last
AGM

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No. of
Board

Meetings
attended

4

5

5

Nil

5

5

5

Nil

Number of
Directorship

in other
public

Companies
2

1

8

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Number of
Directorship

in other 
listed 

companies
Nil

Nil

4

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Name of 
other listed 

companies where
he/she is a 
director

Nil

Na

1. ultratech cement
ltd.

2. orient electric
limited

3. Birlasoft 
ltd.

4. hindalco
industries ltd.

Nil

Na

Na

Na

Na

Category of
Directorship 
in other listed
companies

Na

Na

1. id

2. id

3. id

4. id

Nil

Na

Na

Na

Na

Number of
Committees
Membership
including

(Chairmanship)
Nil(2)

2

5(3)

Nil

2

Nil

1

2(Nil)

Number 
of shares

held

50

Nil

Nil

200

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

id- independent director ed- executive director Ned- Non- executive director
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Key Board Skills, Expertise and Competencies:

the Board comprises qualified members who bring in the required skills, competence and expertise to enable them to effectively contribute in deliberations
at Board and committee meetings. the below matrix summarizes a mix of skills, expertise and competencies expected to be possessed by our individual
directors, which are key to corporate governance and board effectiveness:

in the opinion of the Board, the independent directors fulfil the conditions as specified in the regulations and are independent from Management.

Mr. siddharth shriram, independent director and chairperson of the company due to his personal reasons and other commitments resigned, before 
the expiry of his tenure, from the Board with effect from close of business hours on March 31, 2020. 

one-third of the directors who are liable to retire by rotation, retire every year and are eligible for re-election as prescribed under the companies act, 2013
(the act) and in terms of the articles of association of the company.

Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors

all new independent directors are familiarized about the nature of the industry in which the company operates, business model of the company,
roles / rights / responsibilities of independent directors when they join the Board of your company.

the directors of the company are updated periodically on the company’s operations and other information including those pertaining to statutes/
legislations and economic environment and on matters affecting the company, to enable them to take well-informed and timely decisions.  

Further, the familiarization programme for independent directors in terms of regulation 25(7) of the regulations is uploaded on the website of the
company and can be accessed at: www.hondasielpower.com.

Meeting of Independent Directors

during the year, the independent directors (ids) met once on November 6, 2019, without the presence of Non-independent directors and members of
the Management. at this meeting, the ids inter-alia evaluated the performance of the Non-independent directors and the Board of directors as a
whole, evaluated the performance of the chairperson of the Board and discussed aspects relating to the quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of
information between the company, the Management and the Board.

a certificate from a company secretary in practice as annexed in Annexure -G has been taken that none of the directors on the Board of the company
have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as director of the companies by the Board/Ministry of corporate affairs or
any such statutory authority.

Committees of the Board

the Board committees play a crucial role in the governance structure of the company and have been constituted to deal with specific areas / activities
as mandated by applicable regulation; which concern the company and need a closer review. 

during the year, all recommendations of the committees of the Board which were mandatorily required have been accepted by the Board.

Mr. Manoj
Arora

ü
-
-

ü

ü

-
-
-

ü
-

-
-
-

ü

Ms. Alka M.
Bharucha

ü
-
-

ü

ü

-
-
-

ü
-

-
-
-

ü

Mr. Ravi P
Mehrotra

ü
ü
-

ü

ü

-
ü
ü

ü
-

-
-
ü

ü

Mr. Takahiro
Ueda

ü
ü
ü

ü

ü

ü
ü
ü

ü
ü

ü
ü
ü

ü

Mr. Hiroyoshi
Sugimizu

ü
ü
ü

ü

ü

ü
ü

ü
ü

ü
ü

ü

Mr. Vinay
Mittal

ü
ü
ü

ü

ü

ü
ü
ü

ü
-

-
ü
-

ü

General
Board efficiency and effectiveness
General management  
Global/emerging Markets management
experience
Governance
understanding of legal, ethical and
fiduciary duties 
risk management
Technical
health and safety
supply chain
Marketing, sales and customer service
–  in relation to power products industry
Financial  
Manufacturing /
engineering acumen
Industry Experience
Manufacturing
logistics / distribution / supply chain
international trade  
Diversity
optimal mix of skills, expertise and
experience   
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ii. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

in terms of section 178 of the act and the regulations, the company has constituted the Nomination and remuneration committee. the committee 
mainly discharges the duties related to recommendation regarding nomination of directors to the Board, formulating criteria for determining 
qualifications, attributes and independence of directors, formulation of criteria for performance of directors and further submission of report thereon 
to the Board.  

the remuneration paid to the executive director is determined keeping in view his/her professional qualification, relevant industry experience, size of
the company and current remuneration standards for such senior executive positions in the relevant industry. perquisites and retirement benefits are
paid according to the company’s policy as applicable to the employees.

the committee further coordinates and oversees the annual evaluation of performance of the individual directors.

in compliance with requirements of the act, the constitution, terms of reference, role and scope of committee are in line with those prescribed by the 
act and regulation 19 of regulations and are available on the company’s website at www.hondasielpower.com. the committee comprises of
three Non-executive directors, all three are independent directors. the chairman of the committee is an independent director. 

the company secretary acts as the secretary to the committee.

during the year under review, the committee met on april 01, 2019, May 28, 2019 and January 28, 2020. a resolution by circulation was passed on March
30, 2020 by the committee which are noted and confirmed in the subsequent committee Meeting.

constitution of the committee and attendance of the Members at the meetings were as under:  

the Board has established the following statutory and non-statutory committees:

• audit committee;
• stakeholders relationship committee;
• Nomination and remuneration committee;
• corporate social responsibility committee; 
• Board committee on Financial Matters; and
• risk Management committee

each of these committees function within the defined terms of reference and the minutes of the committee Meetings are put up to the Board for noting
at its Meeting held subsequent to the date of such meetings. the role and composition of these committees, including the number of meetings held 
during the financial year and the attendance of its members are provided below:

i.  Audit Committee

the primary objective of the committee is to monitor and provide an effective supervision of the Management’s financial reporting process, to ensure
accurate and timely disclosures, with the highest levels of transparency, integrity and quality of financial reporting.  the committee is also responsible
for evaluation of internal financial control system, risk management, performance of statutory and internal auditors and internal audit functions.  

composition of the audit committee and terms of reference meet with the requirements of regulation 18 of the regulations and provisions of the act.
the terms of reference to the audit committee as approved by the Board are available on the company’s website at www.hondasielpower.com. 

the chief Financial officer, statutory auditors, internal auditors and cost auditors attend the meetings of audit committee. company secretary acts as
the secretary to the committee. 

during the Financial Year 2019-20, audit committee met four times on May 28, 2019, august 07, 2019, November 06, 2019 and January 28, 2020. in each
of these meetings at least two independent directors were present. the Board accepted all the recommendations made by the audit committee. 
constitution of the committee and attendance of the members at the meetings were as under:

Name of the Member
siddharth shriram
Mr. Yoshifumi iida*
Mr. Manoj arora
Ms. alka Marezban Bharucha
Mr. takahiro ueda**

Status
chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member

Number of Meetings Attended
3
4
4
4
0

Name of the Member
Mr. Manoj arora
Mr. siddharth shriram  
Ms. alka Marezban Bharucha

Status
chairperson

Member
Member

No. of meetings attended 
3
2
3

*resigned as the president, ceo & Md with effect from close of business hours on January 31, 2020.
**appointed as president, ceo & Md w.e.f. February 01, 2020.  re-designated as cMd and president & ceo of the company effective 

april 01, 2020.
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Performance Evaluation Criteria

the Nomination and remuneration committee has laid down the criteria for performance evaluation of independent directors and other directors, Board
as a whole and the committees thereof. the criteria for performance evaluation cover the areas relevant to their functioning as independent directors
or other directors, Member of Board or committees of the Board. 

in accordance with the evaluation framework laid down by the Nomination and remuneration committee, the Board of directors undertook the evaluation
of its own performance, its committees and all the individual directors, including independent directors. the evaluation of the performance of each 
director was based on level of participation in meetings, understanding the roles and responsibilities, understanding the strategic issues and challenges
in the company.

the independent directors at their meeting also discussed the performance of the Non-executive directors including the chairman of the Board.
Based on the above broad parameters, the effectiveness of the Board and its committees were found satisfactory.

the performance evaluation of independent directors was done by the entire Board of directors excluding independent director being evaluated. Broad
parameters for reviewing the performance of independent directors amongst other include participation at the Board/committee meetings, understanding
their roles and responsibilities and business of the company, effectiveness of their contribution/ commitment, effective management of relationship with
stakeholders, integrity and maintaining of confidentiality, exercise of independent judgment in the best interest of the company, ability to contribute to
and monitor corporate Governance practice, adherence to the code of conduct for independent directors, bringing independent judgement during Board
deliberations on strategy, performance, risk Management, etc.

the evaluation of the performance of Board was based on Board composition, experience and competencies, understanding of business and competitive
environment, quality of discussions at the Board Meetings, time spent by the Board on the company’s long term goals and strategies. 

Details of remuneration paid to Directors for the year 2019-20

A. Executive Directors

the details of the remuneration paid to the Whole time director(s) during the year 2019-20 are as under:

(Amount in ̀ )

B. Non-Executive Directors

the Non-executive directors receive sitting fees for attending the meeting of the Board and committees thereof.

details of sitting fees paid during the year 2019-20 for attending the Meetings of Board of directors and of its committees were as under:
(Amount in ̀ )

Name

Yoshifumi iida

hiroyoshi sugimizu

Vinay Mittal

takahiro ueda

Salary 

7,50,000 

9,00,000 

49,58,580 

1,06,034 

Benefits 

1,43,75,856 

1,30,97,594 

18,48,581 

20,70,161 

Bonus 

-

-

-

-

Stock
Options 

-

-

-

-

Fixed
Components 

1,01,13,602 

86,05,000 

71,79,072 

5,56,702 

Variable Pay 

-

-

8,21,755 

-

Service Contract

01.04.2015 to
31.03.2020

01.04.2019 to
31.03.2024

01.04.2017 to
31.03.2022

01.02.2020 to
31.01.2025

Name of the 
Director

Mr. siddharth 
shriram
Mr. Manoj 
arora
Ms. alka 
Marezban 
Bharucha

Board

2,40,000

3,00,000

3,00,000

Audit
Committee

1,80,000

2,40,000

2,40,000

Stakeholders
Relationship
Committee

1,00,000

-

-

Nomination and
Remuneration
Committee

1,00,000

1,50,000

1,50,000

CSR
Committee

50,000

-

Independent
Directors
Meeting

50,000

50,000

50,000

Total

7,20,000

7,40,000

7,40,000

*resigned as the president, ceo & Md with effect from close of business hours on January 31, 2020
**appointed as president, ceo & Md w.e.f. February 01, 2020. re-designated as cMd and president & ceo of the company effective april 01, 2020 

there are no pecuniary relationships or transactions of the non-executive directors vis-à-vis the company.
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iii. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

the remit of the committee as prescribed under regulation 20 of  the regulations & seBi (listing obligation and disclosure requirements)
regulations, 2018 (amendment regulations) is to consider various aspects of interest of the security holders of the company, including resolving
complaints relating to transfer of shares, consolidation, splitting, transmission (except for cases of transmission where the heirs of the deceased
shareholder do not produce full documentary evidence of their title to shares), re-materialization of shares, endorsement on Fully paid share
certificates which have further been sub-delegated by the committee to the company secretary of the company. 

composition of the stakeholders relationship committee and terms of reference meet with the requirements of regulation 20 of regulations and
provisions of the act.

during the Financial Year 2019-20, the committee met twice on august 07, 2019 and January 28, 2020. in each of the meetings of the committee
at least one independent director was present. composition of the committee and attendance of the members at the meetings were as follows:

iv. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

the committee discharges the duties stipulated under section 135 of the companies act, 2013 which includes formulation and recommendation 
to the Board, a corporate social responsibility (csr) policy indicating the activities to be undertaken by the company as per schedule Vii to the act;
recommendation of the amount of expenditure to be incurred; and monitoring the csr policy of the company.

during the year under review, corporate social responsibility committee met once on January 28, 2020. 

composition of the committee and attendance of the members at the meeting is as under:

*resigned from the post of president, ceo & Md w.e.f. January 31, 2020.
**appointed as president, ceo & Md w.e.f. February 01, 2020.  re-designated as cMd and president & ceo of the company effective april 01, 2020.

the company secretary acts as the secretary to the committee.

*resigned as the president, ceo & Md with effect from close of business hours on January 31, 2020.
**appointed as president, ceo & Md w.e.f. February 01, 2020.  re-designated as cMd and president & ceo of the company effective april 01, 2020.

the company secretary acts as the secretary to the committee.

resolutions by circulation were passed on May 09, 2019, June 21, 2019, august 05, 2019, september 26, 2019 and January 23, 2020.

Compliance Officer

Ms. sunita Ganjoo, company secretary is the compliance officer for complying with the requirements of securities & exchange Board of india
(prohibition of insider trading) regulations, 2015, including the amendments/modifications thereof and securities and exchange Board of india 
(listing obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015.

Investor Grievance Redressal

as on March 31, 2020, your company had 15,403 investors.  during the year under review, the status of complaints was as follows:

Name of the Member
Mr. siddharth shriram  
Mr. Yoshifumi iida*
Mr. Vinay Mittal
Mr. takahiro ueda**

Status
chairman
Member
Member
Member

No. of Meetings attended 
2
2
2
0

Name of the Member
Mr. siddharth shriram
Mr. Yoshifumi iida*
Mr. Vinay Mittal
Mr. takahiro ueda**

Status
chairman
Member
Member
Member

No. of Meetings Attended
1
1
1
0

Number of investor
complaints pending
at the beginning of
the year

1

Number of investor
complaints received
during the year

13

Number of investor
complaints disposed 
off during the year

14

Number of investor 
complaints not redressed 
upto the satisfaction of 
shareholders during the year

0

Number of investor 
complaints pending at the 
end of the year.

0
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v. Board Committee on Financial Matters

the terms of reference inter-alia include opening and closing of bank accounts, investment of surplus funds, authorization to company’s personnel
for operation of Bank accounts etc. 

the Board committee on Financial Matters met three times during the year on april 29, 2019, July 01, 2019, and February 18, 2020. attendance 
of the Members at the meeting was as follows:

*resigned as president, ceo & Md w.e.f. January 31, 2020.
**appointed as president, ceo & Md w.e.f. February 01, 2020.  re-designated as cMd and president & ceo of the company effective april 01, 2020.

the company secretary acts as the secretary to the committee.

vi. Risk Management Committee

the company has constituted risk Management committee including a Non-Board member for ensuring better corporate Governance practices.
the roles and responsibilities of the committee are as prescribed under regulation 21 of the regulations and amendment regulations, 2018
which include monitoring and reviewing of risk management plan covering cyber security and reporting the same to the Board of directors
periodically as it may deem fit. the risk Management plan is being monitored by the committee of the company. the Board of directors review the
risk Management plan annually.

the committee met once during the year on March 06, 2020.

constitution of the committee and attendance of the members at the meeting was as follows:

*resigned as the president, ceo & Md w.e.f. January 31, 2020.
**appointed as president, ceo & Md w.e.f. February 01, 2020.  re-designated as cMd and president & ceo of the company effective april 01, 2020

3. Code of Conduct

Guided by the fundamental belief of “respect for the individual” and “the three Joys” (“the Joy of Buying, “the Joy of selling”, “the Joy of
creating”), the company has laid down honda conduct Guidelines that serve as a guide for the business actions in a global, complex and changing
environment. the code sets forth company’s commitment to the principles of business ethics and transparency in all areas of activity and
establishes a set of principles and guidelines for conduct, designed to ensure ethical and responsible behavior.  

Further, in compliance with securities and exchange Board of india (listing obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015, the
company’s Board has laid down a code of conduct for all Board members and designated senior management of the company. the code of
conduct is available on the website of the company www.hondasielpower.com. all Board members and senior management personnel have affirmed
compliance with the code of conduct. a declaration signed by the chief executive officer to this effect is attached to this report.

in terms of securities and exchange Board of india (prohibition of insider trading) regulations, 2015 and further amendments/modifications
thereof, the company has formulated a code of conduct to regulate, Monitor, and report trading by insiders to deter the insider trading in the
securities of the company based on the unpublished price sensitive information. the code envisages procedures to be followed and disclosures to
be made while dealing in the securities of the company. during the year under review there has been due compliance with the provisions of the
aforementioned code which is available on website of the company www.hondasielpower.com.

Name of the Member
Mr. Yoshifumi iida*
Mr. takahiro ueda**
Mr. Vinay Mittal
Mr. hiroyoshi sugimizu

Status
chairman
chairman
Member
Member

No. of Meetings attended 
2
1
3
3

Name of the Member
Mr. Yoshifumi iida*, president & ceo
Mr. takahiro ueda**, president, ceo& Md
Mr. Vinay Mittal, Whole time director & cFo
Mr. Nitin Jain, assistant General Manager

Status
chairman 
chairman
Member
Member

No. of meetings attended
0
1
1
1
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4. General Body Meetings

the last three annual General Meetings of the company were held as under:

No resolution was passed through postal Ballot during the year 2019-20. the resolutions to approve the change of name of the company and 
for re-classification of promoter and promoter Group category to (public) category are envisaged to be passed through postal ballot as on the date
of this report.

5. Means of Communication

1. the quarterly, half-yearly and annual results of the company are published in leading newspapers in india, which include Financial express,
Jansatta and Business standard. the company has sent financial results to the stock exchanges within thirty minutes of closure of the meeting
in which these were approved by the Board of directors of the company.

2. the results of the company are displayed on the company’s website www.hondasielpower.com and website of National stock exchange of
india ltd. (www.nseindia.com), Bse limited (www.bseindia.com). the company’s website also displays the official news releases. 

3. the company made no presentation to the analysts during the Financial year 2019-20.

4. annual report containing inter-alia, Financial statements, directors’ report, auditors’ report and other important information is circulated to
Members and others entitled thereto.  the Management discussion & analysis report forms part of the annual report and is provided elsewhere
in this annual report.

6. General Shareholders’ Information

i.    35th Annual General Meeting

day, date & time : Monday, september 21, 2020, 1100 hours

Venue /Means : Video conferencing /other audio Visual Means (Vc/oaVM)

Financial Year :  Year ended March 31, 2020

Book closure :  september 15, 2020 to september 21, 2020 (both days inclusive)

dividend payment date :  october 19, 2020

ii.   Tentative Financial Calendar 2020-21

in view of the current lockdown situation due to coVid-19, no tentative dates for approval of unaudited / audited Financial results for 2020 - 21
could be fixed.

iii.  Dividend Details

unclaimed dividends up to financial year 1995-96 have been transferred to the General revenue account of the central Government and for the
financial years 1996-97 to 2011-12 to investor education and protection Fund constituted by the central Government. details of unclaimed dividend
as on March 31, 2020 are given hereunder:

Financial
Year

2018-19

2017-18
2016-17

Date

august 07, 2019

august 13, 2018
august 04, 2017

Time

1100 hours

1100 hours
1100 hours

Special Resolution Passed

1. re-appointment of Mr. Manoj arora as an independent
director (diN 00844279)

2. re-appointment of Ms. alka Marezban Bharucha as an
independent director (diN 00114067)

3. appointment of Mr. siddharth shriram as an independent
director (diN 00027750)

4. re-appointment and fixing of remuneration of Mr. hiroyoshi
sugimizu as Whole time director of the company (diN
06848213) 

5. revision in remuneration of Mr. Vinay Mittal, Whole time
director (diN 05242535)

No special resolution was passed
No special resolution was passed

Kamani
auditorium

No. 1,
copernicus

Marg, 
New 

delhi-110001

Location
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Period
2012-13
2013-14
2014-15
2015-16
2016-17
2017-18
2018-19

Rate (%)
40
40
60
60
75
90

100

Date of declaration
05-08-2013
05-08-2014
12-08-2015
11-08-2016
04-08-2017
13-08-2018
07-08-2019

Unclaimed dividend (`)
3,78,496.00
3,91,316.00
5,54,802.00
5,61,240.00
7,36,883.00
6,74,550.00
5,80,380.00

Date of payment
02.09.2013
02.09.2014
08-09-2015
07-09-2016
01-09-2017
10-09-2018
04-09-2019

Month(s)

april-19
May-19
June-19
July-19

august-19
september-19

october-19
November-19
december-19
January-20
Februray-20

March-20

High
1,179.70
1,142.95
1,016.00

945.35
961.95

1,114.40
1,203.95
1,359.95
1,338.40
1,307.40
1,292.00
1125.00

Low
1,035.00
1,000.00

870.00
820.00
819.00
923.55

1,030.10
1,112.00
1,200.00
1,170.00
1,084.00

701.60

Volume(Nos.)
3,424
4,239

29,117
3,913
9,348
5,150
5,169

19,601
7,269
8,130

59,822
10522

High
1,176.7
1,080.00
1,024.7

942.85
959.85

1,125.00
1,200.00
1,358.9
1,358.00
1,310.00
1,260.00
1,154.90

Low
1,045.1

990.1
865.00
812.95
817.85
917.00

1,040.05
1,101.6
1,195.1
1,168.00
1,080.00

726.00

Volume(Nos.)
31,396
43,812
60,112
65,994

1,14,829
56,999
85,083

1,93,861
75,942

1,09,602
99,972

1,19,161

iv.   Listing on Stock Exchanges and Stock Codes

the names and addresses of the stock exchanges on which the equity shares of the company are listed and the respective stock codes are
as under:

listing fees for the year 2020 – 2021 has been paid to Bse and to Nse respectively.

v.    Stock Market Data

Monthly high and low quotations as well as the volume of shares traded at Bse and Nse were as under:
(Amount in ̀ /Share)

Name & Address of the Stock Exchange
Bse limited (Bse)
phiroze Jeejeebhoy towers, 25th Floor, dalal street, Fort, Mumbai – 400 001.
the National stock exchange of india ltd. (Nse)
5th Floor, exchange plaza, Bandra Kurla complex, Bandra (e), Mumbai - 400 051

Stock Code
522064

hoNdapoWer

BSE NSE

vi.  Performance comparison: BSE Sensex Vs. Honda Siel Power Products’ Share Price

1,500.00

1,400.00

1,300.00

1,200.00

1,100.00

1,000.00

900.00

800.00

700.00

42,000
41,500
41,000
44,500
40,000
39,500
39,000
38,500
38,000
37,500
37,000
36,500
36,000
35,500
35,000
34,500
34,000
33,500
33,000
32,500
32,000
31,500
31,000
30,500
30,000
29,500
29,000

apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 aug-19 sep-19

Month

S
ha
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 (`
)
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en

se
x

seNseX share pprice (`)
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vii.  Registrar and Share Transfer Agents

the company has appointed M/s Mas services ltd. as its registrar and share transfer agent (rta). share transfer in physical form, in case 
of request received for transmission or transposition of securities, and other communications regarding shares, dividends, change in 
address, etc. may be addressed to:

Mr. Narender Rastogi  
Mas Services Limited
unit:  honda siel power products limited 
t-34, 2nd Floor, okhla industrial area, phase - ii,
New delhi - 110 020
ph:- 011-26387281/82/83, Fax:- 011-26387384
email:- info@masserv.com, website : www.masserv.com

viii. Investors’ Service and Share Transfer System

the company has a system of attending to and redressing all investors’ related grievances/correspondences within a period of 7 to 15 days from
the date of receipt of the same. the investors can personally contact or send their grievance/correspondence either to rta at their address or to
the secretarial department of the company at the following address:

honda siel power products limited,
secretarial & legal department, 
plot No. 5, sector 41 (Kasna), Greater Noida industrial development area,
distt. Gautam Budh Nagar, u.p. -201 310.
phone Nos: 0120-2590211, 2341055-59; email : ho.legal@hspp.com

the shares for transfer received in physical mode by the company/rta, are transferred expeditiously, provided that the documents are
complete and ownership of shares under transfer is not under dispute. the share certificates duly endorsed are returned immediately.
confirmation in respect of the request for dematerialization of shares is sent to the respective depositories, Nsdl/cdsl within 15 days. the
company obtains a certificate of compliance with the share transfer formalities as required under regulation 40(9) of securities and exchange
Board of india (listing obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015 on half yearly basis from a company secretary in practice
and files a copy of the certificate with the stock exchanges. 

ix.  Distribution of shareholdings as on March 31, 2020

x.   Pattern of shareholding as on March 31, 2020

No. of
Shareholders

14,720
394
161

45
26
13
22
22

15,403

% to Total

95.566
2.558
1.045
0.292
0.169
0.084
0.143
0.143

100.000 

Shareholding of Nominal
Value of ̀
1 to   5,000

5,001 to  10,000
10,001 to  20000
20,001 to  30,000
30,001 to  40,000
40,001 to  50,000

50,001 to 1,00,000
1,00,001 aNd aBoVe

TOTAL

No. of Shares

9,97,105
2,92,935
2,35,332
1,08,788

91,160
60,268

1,59,129
81,98,354

1,01,43,071

Amount 
in ̀

99,71,050
29,29,350
23,53,320
10,87,880

9,11,600
6,02,680

15,91,290
8,19,83,540
10,14,30,710

% to 
Total
9.830
2.888
2.320
1.073
0.899
0.594
1.569

80.827
100.000

Categories
promoters
Mutual Funds
alternate investment Funds
Foreign portfolio investors
Financial institutions / Banks
individuals  
NBFc registered with rBi
Bodies corporate
Nris, Fiis, ocBs etc.
iepF
others (clearing Members & trust)

Total

No. of  Shares
68,63,433

9,05,665
1,26,241

35,899
7,980

19,14,458
900

91,454
1,31,005

43,747
22,289

1,01,43,071

Shareholding (%)
67.67

8.93
1.24
0.35
0.08

18.88
0.01
0.90
1.29
0.43
0.21

100.00



40

xi.  Dematerialization of shares and liquidity

98.68% of total equity capital is held in dematerialised form with Nsdl and cdsl as on March 31, 2020. during the year, (i.e. from 01-04-2019 to
31-03-2020) 267 share certificates involving 12858 shares were dematerialized (including 55 share certificate consisting of 3653 shares transferred
to iepF)  by the shareholders representing 0.13% of the total share capital of the company.

demat isiN in Nsdl and cdsl : iNe634a01018

xii.  the company has not issued any Gdrs/adrs/Warrants or any convertible instruments in the past and hence as on March 31, 2020, the 
company does not have any outstanding Gdrs/adrs/Warrants or any convertible instruments.

xiii.during the period under review, the company has not dealt in any commodity hedging activities and there are no commodity price risks undertaken
by the company.

xiv. Plant location

plot No. 5, sector 41 (Kasna), 
Greater Noida industrial development area, 
distt. Gautam Budh Nagar, u.p. -201 310.

7.   Disclosures

(i) related parties and transactions with them as required under accounting standard 18 and regulation 23 of securities and exchange Board 
of india (listing obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015, are furnished under Note No. 30 of ‘Notes to Financial statement’
for the year ended March 31, 2020.

(ii) the above transactions have no potential conflict with the interest of the company.

(iii) there has not been any non-compliance, penalties, strictures imposed on the company by stock exchange or seBi or any other statutory 
authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three years.

(iv) the company promotes ethical behavior in all its business activities and has a whistle blower/vigil mechanism, in the name of Vigil 
Mechanism/Business ethics proposal line (Bepl) in place. all the employees of the company through this mechanism are free to report 
violation of laws, rules, regulations or unethical conduct of any employee of the company.   

(v) the company has complied with all mandatory requirements as stipulated in securities and exchange Board of india (listing obligations and
disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015.

(vi) the company does not have any subsidiary company.

(vii) the policy framed for the dealing with related party transactions is displayed on the website of the company at: www.hondasielpower.com.

(viii) the company, during the Financial Year 2019-2020, has not issued any debt instruments or has not taken  Fixed deposits or has not mobilized
funds under any scheme or proposal . hence, no credit ratings were obtained.

ix) during the Financial Year 2019-2020, no funds were raised through preferential allotment or on allotment of securities to qualified institutions 
placement as specified under regulation 32(7a).

x) during the year, the Board has accepted all such proposals as recommended by the audit committee of the Board.

xi) during the Financial Year 2019-2020, the company has paid a total fees of ̀ 47.60 lakhs to M/s price Waterhouse chartered accountants, llp,
towards the audit fees and other services.

8. the status of adoption of the non-mandatory requirements as prescribed in regulation 27(1) of securities and exchange Board of india 
(listing obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015 is as under: 

Audit Qualification

the company is in the regime of unqualified financial statements.

Separate Posts of Chairperson and CEO

the company has appointed separate persons to the post of chairperson and of Managing director/ceo for the financial year 2019-2020.
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Reporting of Internal Auditor

the internal auditors, on a quarterly basis, report directly to the audit committee of the company. 

9. the company has complied with all the applicable corporate Governance requirements as specified in regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to 
(i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 of securities and exchange Board of india (listing obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations,
2015 with zero non-compliance.

10.Quarterly Compliance Report

the company has been submitting the compliance report on corporate Governance on quarterly basis to the stock exchanges within 15 days from
the close of the relevant quarter. it is also regularly uploaded on the website of the company.

11.Compliance with Code of Conduct

a declaration by the president & ceo that all directors and senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct of 
Board of directors and senior Management for the year ended March 31, 2020 is annexed as Annexure-H.

12.CEO/CFO Certification 

in terms of regulation 17(8) of the seBi (listing obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015, the Board of directors have reviewed
the certificate submitted by the chief executive officer (ceo) and chief Financial officer (cFo) of the company certifying various covenants
about financial/ cash flow statements, internal controls, financial reporting, etc.  the certificate is annexed as Annexure-I.

13.Compliance Certificate of Practicing Company Secretary

the company has obtained a certificate from practicing company secretary regarding compliance of conditions of corporate Governance as 
stipulated in securities and exchange Board of india (listing obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015. the certificate is annexed
as Annexure-J.

ANNEXURE-G
T.V. NARAYANASWAMY,
COMPANY SECRETARY.

CERTIFICATE

on the basis of the declarations made by the respective directors on the 31st March, 2020 which declarations were taken note of by the Board of 
directors of honda siel power products limited ( l40103 dl2004plc203950) on the 1st april, 2020, i certify that none of the directors on the Board 
of the company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of the said company.

Sd/-
(T V NARAYANASWAMY) 
COMPANY SECRETARY 

CP No: 203
F000121B000263725

ANNEXURE-H

CERTIFICATE AND DECLARATION

i, takahiro ueda, in my capacity as cMd and president & ceo of honda siel power products limited do hereby confirm and declare that as stipulated
under regulation 34(3) read with schedule V(d) of the seBi (listing obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015, to the best of 
my knowledge and belief, Members of the Board of directors and senior Management personnel of the company have affirmed compliance, as on 
March 31, 2020, with the provisions of code of conduct as adopted by the company.

this declaration has been issued on the basis of acknowledgement and confirmation, with respect to the compliance with the provisions of code of 
conduct of the company, received from respective members of Board of directors and senior Management. 

For Honda Siel Power Products Limited

Date: June 15, 2020 Sd/-
Takahiro Ueda

CMD and President & CEO          
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ANNEXURE-I  

CERTIFICATE

We, takahiro ueda, cMd and president & ceo and Vinay Mittal, Whole time director and chief Financial officer of honda siel power products
limited hereby declare and confirm- 
a. that we have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

1. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be misleading; 
2. these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable

laws and regulations. 
B. that there are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or

violative of the company’s code of conduct. 
c. that we accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting. We have evaluated the effectiveness of internal

control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the
design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

d. that we have indicated to the auditors and the audit committee: 
1. significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;
2. significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and
3. instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a

significant role in the company’s internal control system over financial reporting. 
this certificate has been issued in compliance with the provisions of regulation 17(8) of the seBi (listing obligations and disclosure requirements)
regulations, 2015. 

For Honda Siel Power Products Limited,

June 15, 2020 Sd/- Sd/-
Vinay Mittal Takahiro Ueda
Whole time director &             cMd and president & ceo
chief Financial officer

ANNEXURE-J
T.V. NARAYANASWAMY,
coMpaNY secretarY.
(cp 203)

CERTIFICATE
to the Members of honda siel power products limited,

i have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate Governance by honda siel power products limited for the year ended March 31, 2020 as
stipulated in securities and exchange Board of india (listing obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015.

the compliance of the conditions of corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. My examination was limited to the procedure and
implementation thereof adopted by the company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of corporate Governance. it is neither an audit nor an
expression of the opinion on the financial statements of the company.

in my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, i certify that the company has complied with the
conditions of corporate Governance as stipulated in the abovementioned listing agreements. i state that no investor grievance was pending for a period
exceeding one month against the company as per the records maintained by shareholders’/investors’ relations committee.

i further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor its efficiency or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the company.

sd/-
(T V NARAYANASWAMY) 
COMPANY SECRETARY 

F000121B000354453

New Delhi
June 18, 2020.
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Annexure – K to Boards’ Report

Business Responsibility Report for the Financial Year 2019-2020

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(2)(f) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015]

honda siel power products limited (the company) recognizes its role as a corporate citizen and endeavors to adopt the best practices and the
highest standards of corporate Governance through transparency in business ethics, accountability to its customers, government and others.  over all,
the company strives for holistic growth of its business, welfare and prosperity of all of its stakeholders. the company strives to achieve  all three
aspects of sustainability i.e. economic, environmental and social along with ethics and good governance practices.

Your company takes pride in presenting its first Business responsibility report (Brr), in line with the National Voluntary Guidelines on social,
environmental and economic responsibilities of Business (NVGs) and the Brr requirement of the listing regulations. this report gives a brief on the
Business responsibility performance of the company for the Financial Year 2019-2020.

SECTION A: GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

Sl.
No.

1.
2.
3.

4.
5.
6.
7.

8.

9.

10.

Particulars

corporate identity Number (ciN) of the company
Name of the company
registered address

Website
e-mail id
Financial Year  
sector(s) that the company is engaged in (industrial activity 
code-wise)

list three key products/services that the company manufactures/
provides (as in balance sheet)
total number of locations where business activity is undertaken by
the company
Number of international locations :
Number of National locations :
Markets served by the company – local/state/National/international

Company Information

l40103dl2004plc203950
honda siel power products limited
409, dlF tower B Jasola commercial complex 
New delhi - 110025.
www.hondasielpower.com
ho.legal@hspp.com
2019-2020
Manufacturing of electrical equipment, General purpose and
special purpose Machinery & equipment, transport equipment 
(c 10).
portable Generators, General purpose engines & Water 
pumps.

35
18
the company serves the local, state, National & international
markets.

SECTION B: FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY

SECTION C: OTHER DETAILS

Sl.
No.

1.
2.
3.
4.

5.

Particulars

paid up capital as on March 31, 2020
total turnover
total profit after taxes
total spending on corporate social responsibility (csr) as
percentage of profit after tax (%)

list of activities in which expenditure in 4 above has been 
incurred

Company Information

` 1,01,43,071
` 84,864 lakhs
` 6,473 lakhs
company spent 190 lakhs on csr activity during Financial Year
2019-20. this was 2.06% of the average net profits of the company
for last three Financial Years.
contribution to prime Minister’s National relief Fund

Sl.
No.

1.

2.

3.

Particulars

does the company have any subsidiary company/ 
companies?
do the subsidiary company/companies participate in the Br
initiatives of the parent company? if yes, then indicate the number of
such subsidiary company(s)
do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors etc.) that 
the company does business with, participate in the Br initiatives 
of the company? if yes, then indicate the percentage of such
entity/entities? 

Company Information

No

N.a.

company’s suppliers and distributors are not involved in our Br
initiatives.
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SECTION D: BR INFORMATION

1. Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR

the corporate social responsibility (csr) committee is responsible for Br activities of the company.  the composition of csr committee is mentioned
below:

Sl.
No.
1.
2.
3.

Name

Mr. takahiro ueda 
Mr. ravi prakash Mehrotra 
Mr. Vinay Mittal

Designation

cMd and president & ceo 
independent director
senior Vp, Whole time director &cFo

DIN

08685990
06823899
05242535

List of Principles

principle 1: Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with ethics, transparency and accountability.
principle 2 : Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their life cycle
principle 3: Businesses should promote the well-being of all employees
principle 4: Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who are disadvantaged, vulnerable

and marginalized.
principle 5: Businesses should respect and promote human rights.
principle 6: Business should respect, protect, and make efforts to restore the environment
principle 7: Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner
principle 8: Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development 
principle 9: Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner

2. Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy/Policies

principles to assess compliance with social, environmental and economic responsibilities of the company

P1: Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability

• code of conduct for directors and employees
• Whistle Blower policy
• Business ethics policy/ anti-Bribery policy 
• policy for determining Materiality of events and information
• code of practices and procedures for Fair disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information and code of conduct for regulating, Monitoring,

and reporting trading by insider
• terms of appointment of independent directors
• policy for evaluation of independent directors, Board of directors and committees thereof.

P2: Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their life cycle

• environmental policy
• Quality policy

P3: Businesses should promote the well-being of all employees

• safety policy
• employee Welfare policy
• prevention of sexual harassment
• honda code of conduct

P4: Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who are disadvantaged, 
vulnerable and marginalized

• corporate social responsibility policy

P5: Businesses should respect and promote human rights

• diversity policy 
• prevention of sexual harassment

P6: Business should respect, protect, and make efforts to restore the environment

• environmental policy

P7: Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner

• code of conduct
• Whistle Blower policy
• Business ethics policy/ anti-Bribery policy 
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Note 1: company has an extensive programme for engaging with its customer, handling customer grievance and improving customer experience through
customer satisfaction surveys.

No.
1.
2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

Questions
do you have a policy/policies for
has the policy being formulated in consultation with the 
relevant stakeholders?
does the policy conform to any national / international standards? 
if yes, specify?  
has the policy been approved by the Board?
if yes, has it been signed by Md/ owner/ ceo/ appropriate 
Board director?
does the company have a specified committee of the Board/
director/ official to oversee the implementation of the policy?

P1
Y
Y

Y

Y

Y

P2
Y
Y

Y

Y

Y

P3
Y
Y

Y

Y

Y

P4
Y
Y

Y

Y

Y

P5
Y
Y

Y

Y

Y

P6
Y
Y

Y

Y

Y

P7
Y
Y

Y

Y

Y

P8
Y
Y

Y

Y

Y

P9
Y
Y

Y

Y

Y

indicate the link for the policy to be viewed online?  

the aforesaid policies can be accessed at the link https://www.hondaindiapower.com/policies. however, policies described for 
principal 2, 5, 6 and 9  above, are published on the intranet of the company and are available for viewing to all the employees 
of the company.
has the policy been formally communicated to all relevant internal
and external stakeholders?
does the company have in-house structure to implement the policy/
policies?
does the company have a grievance redressal mechanism related
to the policy/ policies to address stakeholders’ grievances
has the company carried out independent audit/ evaluation of the
working of this policy by an internal or external agency?

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Note 1

Y

P8: Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development

• corporate social responsibility policy
• diversity policy

P9: Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner

Your company has an extensive programme for engaging with its customer, handling customer grievance and improving customer experience through
customer satisfaction survey.

(a) Details of compliance

(b) if answer to the question at serial number 1 against any principle, is ‘No’, please explain why:

No.
1.
2.

3.

4.
5.
6.

Questions
the company has not understood the principles
the company is not at a stage where it finds itself in a position to
formulate and implement the policies on specified principles
the company does not have financial or manpower resources
available for the task
it is planned to be done within next 6 months
it is planned to be done within the next 1 year
any other reason 

P1
-
-

-

-
-
-

P2
-
-

-

-
-
-

P3
-
-

-

-
-
-

P4
-
-

-

-
-
-

P5
-
-

-

-
-
-

P6
-
-

-

-
-
-

P7
-
-

-

-
-
-

P8
-
-

-

-
-
-

P9
-
-

-

-
-
-

(c) Governance related to BR

Sl.
No. 
1.

2.

Particulars

indicate the frequency with which the Board of directors, committee
of the Board or ceo to assess the Br performance 
of the company. 
does the company publish a Br or a sustainability report? 
What is the hyperlink for viewing this report? how frequently 
it is published?

Information

the Board of directors and the senior Management of the
company shall review the Br performance annually. 

Brr is applicable to the company w.e.f. december 26, 2019,
Brr for the F.Y. 2019-2020 shall form an integral 
part of the annual report and would be published from
forthcoming financial years. the report is accessible at
www.hondasielpower.com.
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SECTION E: PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE

PRINCIPLE 1: BUSINESSES SHOULD CONDUCT AND GOVERN THEMSELVES WITH ETHICS, TRANSPARENCY AND ACCOUNTABILITY

1.  Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption cover only the company? Does it extend to the Group/Joint Ventures/ 
Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs /Others?

policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption covers, the company, all suppliers, contractors and Vendors. 

2.  How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and what percentage was satisfactorily resolved by the
management? If so, provide details thereof.

during the Financial Year 2019-20, company received 13 complaints from investors and all these were resolved. 

during the period under review, no complaint was received by the internal complaints committee.

under the Whistle Blower policy/Vigil Mechanism/Business ethics proposal line of the company, one complaint was received in 2019-20 and the
same was closed after following the due process. 

PRINCIPLE 2: BUSINESSES SHOULD PROVIDE GOODS AND SERVICES THAT ARE SAFE AND CONTRIBUTE TO SUSTAINABILITY
THROUGHOUT THEIR LIFECYCLE

1. List up to 3 of your products or services whose design has incorporated social or environmental concerns, risks and/or 
opportunities.

environmental and social concerns are an integral part of the company’s product development policy. aspects like raw material, energy, water and
waste are taken into consideration during the product design and manufacturing process.  as required, following are the three products whose 
design has incorporated environmental concerns:

a. Portable Generators
b. Water Pumps
c. General Purpose Engines

the company has a safety & environmental policy which assures the safety and environmental sustainability of the products, the material
used in production as well as the manufacturing process deployed.  all the products of the company meet the environmental norms specified by
the concerned authorities wherever company conducts its business.  

2. Does the company have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing (including transportation)? If yes, what percentage of your inputs
was sourced sustainably?

Your company adopts sMQcd procedure for selection of vendors and service providers.  this ensures that all the services/inputs used by the 
company for converting raw material into finished products is sourced from responsible third parties. products which are made from recycled or
remanufactured materials are preferred by your company. raw materials and other ancillary goods are procured by sustainable sourcing
method only. Your company has sourced around 90% of raw material by way of sustainable sourcing during the year.

3. Has the company taken any steps to procure goods and services from local & small producers, including communities surrounding their
place of work? If yes, what steps have been taken to improve their capacity and capability of local and small vendors?

Your company focuses on indigenization of components and local sourcing. a predominant section of the supplier base is located within a 
100-kilometer radius of our manufacturing sites. the company adheres to MsMe act, 2006 while dealing with MsMes. this helps in optimizing
cost and reducing environmental footprint associated with logistics. it also creates employment opportunities for the local communities. 

4. Does the company have a mechanism to recycle products and waste? If yes, what is the percentage of recycling of products and waste?

Your company have put processes in place to minimise the generation of hazardous waste and its proper management and disposal. plant 
operated by the company has a closed-loop water recycling design to ensure minimal discharge of water. aluminium and steel scrap generated
during manufacturing process is recycled in clean and efficient manner and energy generated from recycling is utilised for internal air conditioning
process inside the factory.

Your company is dedicated towards reducing its energy footprint, with energy saving initiatives being regularly undertaken at manufacturing site.  

Your company had established a New supplier assessment process in FY 2018-19, for assessing suppliers based on select social indicators
amongst other standard criteria. in FY 2019-20, several suppliers were assessed for their social impacts. there is only 0.33% increase in energy
consumption per equated production, 5.15% increase in water consumption per equated production, 9.39% reduction in hazardous waste 
generation per equated production and 6.89% reduction in general waste per equated production.

PRINCIPLE 3:  BUSINESSES SHOULD PROMOTE THE WELL-BEING OF ALL EMPLOYEES

1. Please indicate the Total number of employees, employees hired on temporary/contractual/casual basis, Number of permanent
women employees and number of permanent employees with disabilities.

a committed and productive workforce is the backbone of the company. as on March 31, 2020, the total workforce with the company was
1398. out of this, we have 693 employees hired on temporary/contractual/casual basis, 46 permanent women employees, and 01 permanent 
employee with disabilities.
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4. What percentage of your under mentioned employees were given safety & skill up-gradation training in the last year?

a. permanent employees
b. permanent Women employees
c. casual/temporary/contractual employees
d. employees with disabilities

the company provides regular trainings to its employees for the upgradation of their skills and knowledge, and safety related issues. training is
provided by in-house experts and external agencies according to an annual calendar. during the year, 100% of the permanent employees and 100%
of women employees received training on the above-mentioned aspects. We also trained our contractual and temporary employees on safety and
other relevant aspects.

PRINCIPLE 4: BUSINESSES SHOULD RESPECT THE INTERESTS OF, AND BE RESPONSIVE TOWARDS ALL STAKEHOLDERS, ESPECIALLY
THOSE WHO ARE DISADVANTAGED, VULNERABLE AND MARGINALISED

1. Has the company mapped its internal and external stakeholders?

the company has identified internal and external stakeholders and they are classified into six broad categories: 

1. employees and their families, 
2. shareholders and investors, 
3. local community and society, 
4. environment and regulatory authorities,
5. dealer, suppliers and other business partners and
6. customers  

2. Out of the above, has the company identified the disadvantaged, vulnerable & marginalized stakeholders.

Your company has identified following two categories of stakeholders as disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized:

1. certain sections of local community around our areas of operation and

2. socio-economically disadvantaged sections of the society.

3. Are there any special initiatives taken by the company to engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized stakeholders?
If so, provide details thereof,

in line with our csr policy, we have identified broad areas of intervention for the local communities. these include road safety, environmental
sustainability, children’s education, healthcare, local area development, and livelihood development. Your company also initiated road safety week
to raise awareness about traffic rules and to reduce the number of road accidents. to have the larger impact of the company’s initiatives towards
this direction the company is making donations to prime Minister’s National relief Fund which ensures that the financial assistance can be provided
to the most needy person in the country who genuinely needs such assistance.

PRINCIPLE 5: BUSINESSES SHOULD RESPECT AND PROMOTE HUMAN RIGHTS 

1. Does the policy of the company on human rights cover only the Company or extend to the Group/Joint Ventures/Suppliers/
Contractors/NGOs/Others?

Your company fully adheres to globally recognized principles of human rights. in addition to this, code of conduct of the company upholds the
principles of human rights and fair treatment. the principles of human rights are followed in the same spirit within as well as outside the organization
when engaging with business partners. 

in line with our commitment, we have laid down policies/codes like code of conduct for directors and senior Management, policy on prevention
of sexual harassment, employee Welfare policies, csr policy, etc. 

No. 

1.
2.
3.

Category

child labour/forced labour/involuntary labour
sexual harassment
discriminatory employment

No of complaints filed during the
financial year

0
0
0

No of complaints pending as on
end of the financial year

0
0
0

2. Do you have an employee association that is recognized by management? What percentage of your permanent employees is member
of this recognized employee association?

Your company do not have any employee association. We strive to maintain our stance as a company committed to practicing fairness and sincerity
with respect to rights of its associates. Your company follows all statutory requirements and communicate regularly with all its employees.

3. Please indicate the Number of complaints relating to child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual harassment in the last
financial year and pending, as on the end of the financial year.
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2. How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and what percent was satisfactorily resolved by the 
management?

during the Financial Year 2019-20, company received 13 complaints from investors and all these were resolved. 

during the period under review, no complaint was received by the internal complaints committee.

under the Whistle Blower policy/Vigil Mechanism/Business ethics proposal line of the company, one complaint was received in 2019-20 and the
same was closed after following the due process. 

PRINCIPLE 6:  BUSINESSES SHOULD RESPECT, PROTECT AND MAKE EFFORTS TO RESTORE THE ENVIRONMENT

1. Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the Company or extends to the Group/Joint Ventures/Suppliers/Contractors/
NGOs/others?

company’s environment policy showcases our commitment to implement initiatives related to resource efficiency, cleaner production, and
waste reduction and management; awareness generation; and training of employees on environmental issues. We encourage all our stakeholders
to implement robust environmental practices across their operations.

2. Does the company have strategies/ initiatives to address global environmental issues such as climate change, global warming, etc.?
If yes, please give hyperlink for webpage.

efforts to lower energy consumption in manufacturing units and shop floors were made to the extent possible. through our energy saving
measures, there is only 0.33% increase in energy consumption per equated production, 5.15% increase in water consumption per equated
production, 9.39% reduction in hazardous waste generation per equated production and 6.89% reduction in general waste per equated
production. Water from the sewage treatment plant (stp) is also used for gardening, air-handling units (ahu), boilers, cooling towers, and in toilets.  

3. Does the Company identify and assess potential environmental risks?

the potential environmental risks are identified internally and mitigation measures are undertaken.

4. Does the company have any project related to Clean Development Mechanism? If Yes, whether any environmental compliance 
report is filed?

the company undertook various initiatives to make sure that all the processes of the company are clean and does not impact the environment
negatively. the company has laid down procedures to ensure statutory compliance with the central pollution control Board/ state pollution control
Board on emissions, air and noise quality, and waste generation. We also ensure proper segregation, recycling and disposal of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste generated at the plant of your company.

5. Has the company undertaken any other initiatives on – clean technology, energy efficiency, renewable energy, etc.? If yes, please give
hyperlink for web page etc.

Your company has internally adopted clean energy and waste recycling initiative and regularly determines the techniques to improve the efficiency
and effectiveness of the initiative. under the ambient of this initiative, waste generated during the manufacturing operations is recycled in safe and
responsible manner and energy generated during such activity is utilized in cooling mechanism in the plant of your company. information regarding
such activity is not disseminated on public domain to maintain confidentiality. 

6. Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the company within the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB for the financial year being
reported?

during the year, all emissions and waste generated by your company were within the permissible limits prescribed by cpcB and up pollution
control Board (uppcB).

7. Number of show cause/ legal notices received from CPCB/SPCB which are pending as on end of Financial Year.

during the year company has not received any show cause/ legal notices received from cpcB/spcB. however, during the year 2018-19 one show
cause Notice was received by the company which is being contested by the company in hon’ble supreme court.

PRINCIPLE 7:   BUSINESSES, WHEN ENGAGED IN INFLUENCING PUBLIC AND REGULATORY POLICY, SHOULD DO SO IN A RESPONSIBLE
MANNER

1. Is your company a member of any Trade and Chamber or Association?

Your company is a member of the confederation of indian industry (cii). We aim to contribute to the development of policies and regulations,
implementation plans, etc. through regular engagement with the associations.  

2. Have you advocated/lobbied through above Associations for the advancement or improvement of public good?

Your company’s approach to advocacy is guided by its code of conduct. the code of conduct provide that any contact by the company or its
business associates with government, legislators, regulators or NGos must be done within the limits of applicable laws.
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PRINCIPLE 8: BUSINESSES SHOULD SUPPORT INCLUSIVE GROWTH AND EQUITABLE DEVELOPMENT

1. Does the company have specified programmes/initiatives/projects in pursuit of the policy related to Principle 8?

Your company has a clearly articulated csr policy in line with the companies act, 2013 and the rules made there under. our broad areas of
intervention and details on initiatives implemented in FY 2019-20 are described under principle 4.

2. Are the programmes/projects undertaken through in-house team/own foundation/external NGO/government structures/any other
organization?

in FY 2019-20, the company spent iNr 190 lakhs on csr activities by contributing the same to prime Minister’s National relief Fund (pMNrF).
the resources of the pMNrF are utilized primarily to render immediate relief to families of those killed in natural calamities like floods, cyclones
and earthquakes, etc. and to the victims of the major accidents and riots. assistance from pMNrF is also rendered, to partially defray the expenses
for medical treatment like heart surgeries, kidney transplantation, cancer treatment and acid attack etc.

3. Have you done any impact assessment of your initiative?

assessment of the progress and impacts of the csr contribution is not practically feasible, since the entire contribution becomes the part of the
pMNrF corpus and any disbursement amount from such fund is at sole discretion of Government of india. hence the company cannot foresee
progress and impact during the disbursement of such fund.

4. What is your company’s direct contribution to community development projects- Amount in INR and the details of the projects
undertaken? Have you taken steps to ensure that this community development initiative is successfully adopted by the community?

during the year 2019-20 company has not contributed directly to any community development initiative.

PRINCIPLE 9:   BUSINESSES SHOULD ENGAGE WITH AND PROVIDE VALUE TO THEIR CUSTOMERS AND CONSUMERS IN A RESPONSIBLE
MANNER

1. What percentage of customer complaints/consumer cases are pending as on the end of financial year?

Your company has a formal and well-defined process in place for addressing customer grievances. complaints filed by customers through
online platform or other service channels are thoroughly analysed to provide timely resolutions till customer’s satisfaction. Your company uses
a combination of channels, which includes product labels, websites, customer care phone numbers and/or consumer leaflets to communicate openly
with its consumers. during the year 2019-20, 2548 complaints were received, out of which 2306 complaints were duly resolved.

2. Does the company display product information on the product label, over and above what is mandated as per local laws?

all the product literature, including safety information is disclosed to the customers through owner manuals and company’s website. the
dealers also orient the customers on products’ features and performance during pre-sales interactions and product delivery.

3. Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against the company regarding unfair trade practices, irresponsible advertising and/or
anti-competitive behaviour during the last five years and pending as on end of financial year?

during the last five financial years no case of unfair trade practices was received by the company.

4. Did your company carry out any consumer survey/ consumer satisfaction trends?

Your company/its dealers regularly undertake customer satisfaction surveys at different locations throughout india. target customer satisfaction
level (cMl) is defined by the company and we ensure that csl score is well above the targeted level. in case of low satisfaction scores, we take
corrective actions and resolve them within 15 days.

on behalf of the Board

Sd/-
Takahiro Ueda

date: June 23, 2020 cMd and president & ceo
place: New delhi (diN: 08685990)
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Annexure-L to Boards’ Report

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND 

REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

1

2

3

4

5

6

the ratio of the remuneration of each director to the
median remuneration of the employees of the company
for the financial year;

the percentage increase in remuneration of each
director, chief Financial officer, chief executive officer,
company secretary in the financial year;

the percentage increase in the median remuneration of
the employees  in the Financial Year

the number of permanent employees on the rolls of the
company
average percentile increase already made in the salaries
of employees other than managerial person nel in the last
financial year and its compari son with the percentile
increase in the managerial remunera tion and justification
thereof and point out if there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the managerial
remuneration
affirmation that remuneration is as per the
remuneration policy of the company

ceo
director

cFo
cs

ceo
director

cFo
cs

the median remuneration of the employees in the financial year
was increased by 8.5%. the calculation of percentage increase in
median remunderation is done based on the comparable
employees. For this we have excluded employees who were not
eligible for any increment.
the number of employees on the rolls of the company, including
Japanese expats were 779.
average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees
other then managerial personnel, in the financial year was 8%.
increase in salaries of managerial personnel was also made at the
same percentage. the average increase every year is an
outcome of the performance of company and company’s reward
philosophy. 

it is affirmed that remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of
the company

15x
12x
8x
1x

Japanese expats, salary not increased
Japanese expats, salary not increased

9%
11%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF HONDA SIEL POWER PRODUCTS LIMITED
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of  honda siel power products limited (“the company”), which comprise the balance sheet
as  at March 31, 2020 and the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

2. in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information
required by the companies act, 2013 (“the act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in india, of the state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2020 and total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and
other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing (sas) specified under section 143(10) of the act. our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the institute of chartered accountants of india together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the code of ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters 

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current
period. these matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter

First-time adoption of ind as 116 – leases

(refer note 4(a) to the Financial statements)

‘ind as 116 – leases’ becomes effective from reporting
periods beginning april 1, 2019. ind as 116 introduces a new
lease accounting model, where lessees are required to
recognize a right-of-use (rou) asset and a lease liability
arising from a lease on its balance sheet.

the company applied ind as 116 on april 1, 2019 using the
modified retrospective approach and comparative
information is not restated. the application of the new
standard gives rise to a right of use asset of ̀  496 lakhs and a
corresponding increase in lease liabilities of ̀ 119 lakhs as at
March 31, 2020.  

We considered the first time application of ind as 116 as a key
audit matter due to the nature of those leases and the
significance of the management’s judgements in determining
these contracts to be  excluded/covered under the lease
standards, technical and financial assumptions determined to
assess the assets covered under ind as 116.

How our audit addressed the Key 
Audit Matter

our testing of lease transactions was designed to cover certain lease
contracts on a sample basis. our audit procedures included the
following:

• understanding, evaluating of the process followed by the
management and testing of the design and operating effectiveness
of key controls around accounting for leases.

• understanding the company’s process in identifying lease
contracts, or contracts which contained leases;

• reviewing the accounting policy adopted by the company and the
options chosen on transition from ind as 17 to ind as 116.

• evaluating a sample of contracts to assess whether leases have
been appropriately identified;

• obtaining the company’s quantification and testing for a sample of
leases, the right of use assets and lease liabilities by agreeing the
inputs used for determining assets and liabilities related to lease
contracts with underlying contractual data;

• assessing the management assumptions, specifically on the
assumptions underlying determination of  the discount rate and
assessment of renewal options;

• recalculating on sample basis to test the accuracy of ind as 116
adjustment;

• assessing the adequacy and completeness presentation and
disclosures given in the financial statements as per the requirement
of ind as 116; 

Based on the above procedures performed, we observed the
management’s assessment related to right of use asset, lease liability
and the underlying adjustments and disclosures made on first time
adoption of ind as 116 are reasonable.
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Other Information

5. the company’s Board of directors is responsible for the other information. the other information comprises the information included in the
annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

6. the company’s Board of directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the act with respect to the preparation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the 
company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in india, including the accounting standards specified under section 133
of the act. this responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the act for
safeguarding of the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error.

7. in preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. those Board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the
company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

8. our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with sas will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken based on these financial statements.

9. as part of an audit in accordance with sas, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. the risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management. 

• conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern. if we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. however, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease 
to continue as a going concern. 

• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

11. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

12. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

13. as required by the companies (auditor’s report) order, 2016 (“the order”), issued by the central Government of india in terms of sub-section (11)
of section 143 of the act, we give in the annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent
applicable. 

14. as required by section 143(3) of the act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit. 

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as it appears from our examination of
those books.

(c) the Balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and cash
Flow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards specified under section 133 of the act. 

(e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of directors, none
of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “annexure a”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the auditor’s report in accordance with rule 11 of the companies (audit and auditors) rules,
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:  

i. the company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements – refer Note 31 to the financial
statements; 

ii. the company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the investor education and protection Fund by the company during the year
ended March 31, 2020; and

iv. the reporting on disclosures relating to specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the company for the year ended March 31, 2020

15. the company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section
197 read with schedule V to the act. 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm registration Number: 012754/N500016
chartered accountants

Abhishek Rara
partner

place:Gurugram Membership Number 077779
date :June 23, 2020 udiN : 20077779aaaaau3235



Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report 

referred to in paragraph 14 (f) of the independent auditors’ report of even date to the members of honda siel power products india limited on the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of honda siel power products limited (“the company”) as of
March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. the company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on audit of internal
Financial controls over Financial reporting issued by the institute of chartered accountants of india (icai). these responsibilities include the 
design,implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on audit of internal Financial controls over Financial reporting (the”Guidance Note”) and
the standards on auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the icai. those standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

4. our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements and their operating effectiveness.our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. the procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the company’s internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. a company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. a company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. in our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and
such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
audit of internal Financial controls over Financial reporting issued by the institute of chartered accountants of india.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm registration Number: 012754/N500016
chartered accountants

Abhishek Rara
place:Gurugram partner
date: June 23, 2020 Membership Number 077779
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

referred to in paragraph 13 of the independent auditors’ report of even date to the members of honda siel power products limited on the financial
statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2020

i. (a) the company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation, of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets.

(b) the fixed assets are physically verified by the Management according to a phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of
three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets.  pursuant to the programme,
a portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed
on such verification.

(c) the title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 3 on fixed assets to the financial statements, are held in the name of the company.
ii. the physical verification of inventory including stocks with third parties have been conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management during the

year.also, physical verification of inventory has been carried out by the management subsequent to the year-end due to the lockdown restrictions
imposed by the Government of india for which roll back procedures have been performed to determine the existence and condition of inventory as
at the year-end. the discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not material and have been
appropriately dealt with in the books of accounts.

iii. the company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the act. therefore, the provisions of clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said order are not applicable
to the company.

iv. in our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the
companies act, 2013 in respect of the loans and investments made, and guarantees and security provided by it. the company has not granted any
loans under section 185 of the companies act, 2013. 

v. the company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the act and the rules framed there
under to the extent notified.

vi. pursuant to the rules made by the central Government of india, the company is required to maintain cost records as specified under section
148(1) of the act in respect of its products.We have broadly reviewed the same, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and
records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they
are accurate or complete. 

vii. (a) according to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company examined by us, in our opinion, except for dues in
respect of provident fund, the company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, goods and service tax and other material
statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. the extent of the arrears of statutory dues outstanding as at March 31, 2019, for
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable are as follows:

Name of the 
statute

employees’ provident
Funds & Miscellaneous
provisions act, 1952

Nature of dues

provident Fund

Name of the statute

customs act, 1962

customs act, 1962

customs act, 1962

customs act, 1962

central excise act, 1944
central excise act, 1944
central excise act, 1944
central excise act, 1944
Various sales tax acts
Various sales tax acts

Nature of
dues

customs duty

customs duty

customs duty

customs duty

excise duty
excise duty
excise duty
excise duty
sales tax
sales tax

Amount
(` in

Lakhs)

49.67

7.11

22.76

1.36

115.57
90.39
8.05

72.66
0.72
0.27

Amount
Deposited

Under protest 
(` in Lakhs)

49.67

7.11

22.76

1.36

115.57*
90.39*
8.05*

-
0.72
0.27

Period to which
the amount
relates

2011-2014

2012-2014

2014-2015

2015-2016

2015-16
2016-17
2017-18

april 02-dec 02
1995-1996
2005-2006

Forum where the dispute 
is pending

customs excise & service tax 
appellate tribunal, chennai
commissioner of customs 

(appeals), Mumbai
customs excise & service tax 
appellate tribunal, chennai
commissioner of customs 

(appeals), chennai
commissioner, Noida
commissioner, Noida
commissioner, Noida

high court, uttaranchal
assistant commissioner, delhi

Joint commissioner (appeals), Noida

Amount
(` in lakhs)

4.8

Period to 
which the 
amount relates

FY 2018-19

Due date

april 15, 2019

Date of 
Payment

Not paid

also refer note 31 (v) to the financial statements regarding management’s assessment on certain matters relating to provident fund.
(b) according to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company examined by us, there are no dues of goods and

services tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. the particulars of dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, as at March 31, 2020 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:
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Name of the statute

Various sales tax acts
Various sales tax acts
Various sales tax acts
Various sales tax acts
Various sales tax acts
Various sales tax acts
Various sales tax acts
Various sales tax acts
Various sales tax acts
Various sales tax acts
Various sales tax acts
Various sales tax acts
Various sales tax acts
Various sales tax acts
Various sales tax acts
Various sales tax acts
Various sales tax acts
Various sales tax acts
Various sales tax acts
Various sales tax acts
Various sales tax acts
income-tax act , 1961
income-tax act , 1961
income-tax act , 1961
income-tax act , 1961
income-tax act , 1961
income-tax act , 1961

Nature of
dues

sales tax
sales tax
sales tax
sales tax
sales tax
sales tax
sales tax
sales tax
sales tax
sales tax
sales tax
sales tax
sales tax
sales tax
sales tax
sales tax
sales tax
sales tax
sales tax
sales tax
sales tax
income tax
income tax
income tax
income tax
income tax
income tax

Amount
(` in
lakhs)

3.55
21.12
5.23
1.74
1.19
5.96
4.67
1.78
1.93

22.83
0.74

63.49
22.43
5.66

15.05
22.38
46.60
3.36
4.42

15.43
60.14
56.89
30.9

1,683
1,999
635

1,697

Amount
Deposited

Under protest 
(` In Lakhs)

0.89
-

1.57
0.43

-
-

1.48
0.18
0.71

-
-

20.32
7.19

-
-

15.05
-

0.22
1.11 
6.79 

15.85
20
-

612
400
127
327

Period to which the
amount relates

1999-2000
2000-2001
2000-2001
2001-2002
2003-2004
2004-2005
2007-2008
2007-2008
2008-2009
2009-2010
2012-2013

2011-12
2012-13
2013-14

2015-16 & 2016-17
2015-16
2016-17
2013-15
2015-16

2010-11 & 2011-12
2015-16

1995-1996
2004-2005
2011-2012
2014-15
2015-16
2016-17

Forum where the dispute 
is pending

high court, uttaranchal
WBct appellate & revision board

sales tax tribunal, patna
sales tax tribunal, patna

deputy commissioner (appeals), Bhopal
Joint commissioner (appeals), rudrapur

deputy commissioner (appeal), earnakulam
sales tax appellate authority, Bhopal

deputy commissioner (appeals). earnakulam
deputy commissioner (appeals), earnakulam

deputy commissioner (appeals)
deputy commissioner (appeals), raipur
deputy commissioner (appeals), raipur
deputy commissioner (appeals, Jammu)

deputy commissioner, ranchi
deputy commissioner, ranchi
deputy commissioner, ranchi

deputy commissioner, Bhubaneswar
deputy commissioner, patna
deputy commissioner, assam

commissioner (appeals), Noida
commissioner of income tax (appeals)
commissioner of income tax (appeals)

income tax appellate tribunal
commissioner of income tax (appeals)
commissioner of income tax (appeals)
commissioner of income tax (appeals)

viii.as the company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution or bank or Government, nor has it issued any debentures as
at the balance sheet date, the provisions of clause 3(viii) of the order are not applicable to the company.

ix. the company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans. accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(ix) of the order are not applicable to the company.

x. during the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices
in india, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the company
or on the company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the
Management.

xi. the company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197
read with schedule V to the act.also refer paragraph 15 of our main audit report.

xii. as the company is not a Nidhi company and the Nidhi rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are not applicable
to the company.

xiii.the company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of sections 177 and 188 of the act. the details of
such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements (refer to Note 30 to the financial statements)as required under indian
accounting standard (ind as) 24, related party disclosures specified under section 133 of the act read with rule 7 of the companies (accounts)
rules, 2014.

xiv.the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under
review. accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xiv) of the order are not applicable to the company.

xv. the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him.  accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(xv) of the order are not applicable to the company.

xvi. the company is not required to be registered under section 45-ia of the reserve Bank of india act, 1934.  accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xvi)
of the order are not applicable to the company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm registration Number: 012754/N500016
chartered accountants

Abhishek Rara
partner

place:Gurugram Membership Number 077779
date: June 23, 2020 udiN: 20077779aaaaau3235

* amount already deposited, dispute regarding refund on provisional assessment
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Balance sheet as at March 31, 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
ASSETS
Non-current assets
property, plant and equipment 3 9,192 9,258
right-of-use assets 4(a) 496 -
capital work-in-progress 3 189 344
intangible assets 4 73 197
Financial assets

i. loans and advances 5(d) 100 84
ii. other financial assets 5(e) 6 1,108

deferred tax assets (net) 6 531 363 
Non-current tax assets (net) 7 4,401 3,920
other non-current assets 8 907 1,008
Total non-current assets 15,895 16,282
Current assets
inventories 9 21,105 11,168
Financial assets

i. trade receivables 5(a) 4,953 6,369
ii. cash and cash equivalents 5(b) 3,463 1,796
iii. other bank balances 5(c) 85 4,300
iv. loans and advances 5(d) 16,068 16,068
v. other financial assets 5(e) 155 371

other current assets 10 9,806 9,194
Total current assets 55,635 49,266
Total assets 71,530 65,548

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 
equity share capital 11(a) 1,014 1,014
other equity

reserve & surplus 11(b) 55,947 50,696
Total equity 56,961 51,710

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

lease liability 4(a) 117 -
provisions 14 39 52
Total non-current liabilities 156 52
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

i. trade payables 12(a)
-total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 623 261 
-total outstanding dues to other than micro and small enterprises 8,116 8,053

ii. lease liability 4(a) 2 -
iii. other financial liabilities 12(b) 1,609 1,708

contract liabilities 13 917 1,101
provisions 14 1,544 1,088
other current liabilities 15 1,602 1,575
Total current liabilities 14,413 13,786
Total liabilities 14,569 13,838
Total equity and liabilities 71,530 65,548
the above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
this is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of directors of 
Firm registration No. 012754N/ N500016 Honda Siel Power Products Limited 
chartered accountants Takahiro Ueda cMd and president & ceo

Manoj Arora director
Abhishek Rara Sunita Ganjoo Alka M. Bharucha director
partner company secretary Ravi Prakash Mehrotra director
Membership No. 077779 H. Sugimizu Whole time director

Vinay Mittal Whole time director & cFo
place : Gurugram place : New delhi
date  : June 23, 2020 date  : June 23, 2020
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Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

revenue from operations 16 84,864 81,588

other income 17 1,576 1,766

Total income 86,440 83,354

Expenses

cost of materials consumed 18 52,275 44,173

purchases of stock in trade 7,118 7,116

changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and stock-in-trade 19 (9,162) (1,208)

employee benefits expense 20 11,436 9,846

Finance costs 21 30 12

depreciation and amortisation expense 22 2,208 2,113

other expenses 23 13,929 12,621

Total expenses 77,834 74,673

Profit before exceptional items & tax 8,606 8,681

Exceptional Items 36 437 (350)

Profit after exceptional items before tax 9,043 8,331

tax expense 24

- current tax 2,499 3,067

- deferred tax (108) (151)

Total tax expense 2,391 2,916

Profit for the year 6,652 5,415

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 25 (239) (76)

income tax relating to this item 60 27

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (179) (49)

Total comprehensive income for the year 6,473 5,366

Earnings per equity share 34
Basic 65.58 53.39

diluted 65.58 53.39

the above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

this is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of directors of 
Firm registration No. 012754N/ N500016 Honda Siel Power Products Limited 
chartered accountants

Takahiro Ueda cMd and president & ceo
Manoj Arora director

Abhishek Rara Sunita Ganjoo Alka M. Bharucha director
partner company secretary Ravi Prakash Mehrotra director
Membership No. 077779 H. Sugimizu Whole time director

Vinay Mittal Whole time director & cFo
place : Gurugram place : New delhi
date  : June 23, 2020 date  : June 23, 2020
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Notes Amount

as at april 1, 2018 1,014

changes in equity share capital 11 -

As at March 31, 2019 1,014

changes in equity share capital 11 -

As at March 31, 2020 1,014

B. Other equity

Reserves & surplus
Securities General reserve Retained Total
premium earnings
reserve

Balance at April 1, 2018 396 12,087 33,948 46,431

profit for the year - - 5,415 5,415

other comprehensive income - - (49) (49)

Total comprehensive income for the year - - 5,366 5,366

transactions with owners in their capacity as owners: 

dividend paid - - (913) (913)

dividend distribution tax on dividend paid on equity shares - - (188) (188)

- - (1,101) (1,101)

Balance at March 31, 2019 396 12,087 38,213 50,696

Balance at April 1, 2019 396 12,087 38,213 50,696

profit for the year - - 6,652 6,652

other comprehensive income - - (179) (179)

Total comprehensive income for the year - - 6,473 6,473 

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:

dividend paid - - (1,014) (1,014)

dividend distribution tax on dividend paid on equity shares - - (208) (208)

- - (1,222) (1,222)

Balance at March 31, 2020 396 12,087 43,464 55,947

the above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
this is the statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of directors of 
Firm registration No. 012754N/ N500016 Honda Siel Power Products Limited 
chartered accountants

Takahiro Ueda cMd and president & ceo
Manoj Arora director

Abhishek Rara Sunita Ganjoo Alka M. Bharucha director
partner company secretary Ravi Prakash Mehrotra director
Membership No. 077779 H. Sugimizu Whole time director

Vinay Mittal Whole time director & cFo

place : Gurugram place : New delhi
date  : June 23, 2020 date  : June 23, 2020
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Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before exceptional items & tax 8,606 8,681
Adjustments for:
depreciation and amortisation expense 2,208 2,113
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (48) (50)
interest income on bank deposits and loan (1,341) (1,480)
interest income on income tax refund - (110)
Finance costs 30 12
Net unrealised exchange differences 44 110
provisions / liabilities written back to the extent no longer required (87) (45)
Bad debts Written off - 5
allowance for doubtful advances - 11
provision for slow moving inventory 64 53
advances written off 2 28
Operating profit before working capital changes 9,478 9,328
(increase)/decrease in trade receivables 1,373 (122)
(increase)/decrease in inventories (10,001) (2,145)
increase/(decrease) in trade payables 496 753
(increase)/decrease in financial assets (17) 9
(increase)/decrease in other non current assets (24) (77)
(increase)/decrease in other current assets (611) (2,445)
increase/(decrease) in provisions 203 (57)
increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities 41 205
increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities (184) 1,101
increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities 27 (600)
Cash generated from/ (used in) operations 781 5,950
income taxes paid including interest (net of refunds and interest received on income tax refund) (2,980) (3,541)
exceptional items 437 (350)
Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from operating activities - Total (A) (1,762) 2,059

B. Cash flows from investing activities
payments for property, plant and equipment (2,217) (1,820)
payments for intangibles (5) (15)
proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 76 71
loan to fellow subsidiary - (16,000)
investment in fixed deposits (5,322) (23,272)
proceeds from maturity of fixed deposits 10,635 37,988
interest received on loans and fixed deposits 1,557 1,785
Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from investing activities - Total (B) 4,724 (1,263)

C. Cash flows from financing activities 
dividend paid to company’s shareholders (1,014) (913)
dividend distribution tax (208) (188)
interest cost (13) (12)
interest element of lease payments (17) - 
principal element of lease payments (59) - 
Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from financing activities - Total (C) (1,311) (1,113)

D. Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A)+(B)+(C) 1,651 (317)
cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,796 2,116
effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 16 (3)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3,463 1,796 

E. Non-cash financing and investing activities
- acquisition of right-of-use assets [refer note 4(a)] 565 - 
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement
cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following [refer note 5(b)]
Balances with banks 3,450 769 
deposits with maturity of less than three months - 801 
cheques on hand 4 221 
cash on hand 9 5 
Balances per statement of cash flows 3,463 1,796 

the above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
this is the statement of cash flows referred to in our report of even date.
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of directors of 
Firm registration No. 012754N/ N500016 Honda Siel Power Products Limited 
chartered accountants

Takahiro Ueda cMd and president & ceo
Abhishek Rara Sunita Ganjoo Manoj Arora director
partner company secretary Alka M. Bharucha director
Membership No. 077779 Ravi Prakash Mehrotra director

H. Sugimizu Whole time director
Vinay Mittal Whole time director & cFo

place : Gurugram place : New delhi
date  : June 23, 2020 date  : June 23, 2020
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1. Company overview 

honda siel power products limited is a public company domiciled and headquartered in india. its shares are listed on the National stock exchange
(Nse) and Bombay stock exchange (Bse). the company is primarily engaged in manufacturing and marketing the portable gensets, water
pumps, general purpose engines, lawn mowers, brush cutters and tillers. the company caters to both domestic and international markets. the
registered office of the company is 409, dlF tower B, Jasola commercial complex, New delhi–110025 and company identification Number of the
company is l40103dl2004plc203950. pursuant to approval of the members by way of postal ballot name of the company was approved to be
changed to ‘honda india power products limited’.
Fresh certificate of incorporation in this regard is awaited from the Ministry of corporate affairs

2. Significant accounting policies

i) Basis of preparation of financial statements 

(i) compliance with indian accounting standards

the financial statements comply in all material aspects with the indian accounting standards (ind as) notified under section 133 of the
companies act, 2013 (the act) [companies (indian accounting standards) rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the act.

(ii) Historical cost convention

the financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

- certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value; and

- defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value

(iii) New and amended standards adopted by the Company

- ind as 116, leases

- uncertainty over income tax treatments — appendix c to ind as 12, income taxes

- amendment to ind as 12, income taxes

the company had to change its accounting policies as a result of adopting ind as 116. this is disclosed in note 4(a). the other amendments
listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognized in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future
periods.

ii) Current – non-current classification

all assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current as per the company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria as set out in
the schedule iii to the companies act, 2013.

Assets

an asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(a) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company’s normal operating cycle;

(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(c) it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

(d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the 
reporting date.

current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets.

all other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

a liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) it is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle;

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

c) it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d) the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. terms of
a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. 

all other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Operating cycle

operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents.

iii) Property, plant and equipment 

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. all other items of property, plant and equipment are carried at cost of acquisition or construction less
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accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment loss, if any. the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use; any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. 

subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. the carrying amount
of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. all other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit
or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. 

property, plant and equipment under construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. 

depreciation methods estimated useful lives and residual value.

depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method based on the estimated useful life of each asset as
determined by the management. depreciation for assets purchased/sold during the period is proportionately charged.

the property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the asset’s useful life or over the shorter of the asset’s useful
life and the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty that the company will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term. 

pursuant to companies act, 2013 (‘the act’) being effective from 1 april 2014, the company has aligned the depreciation rates based on the useful
lives as specified in part ‘c’ of schedule ii to the act, except for the following assets, which are being depreciated based on the management’s
estimate of the useful life of property, plant and equipment. such useful lives are lower than the lives as per schedule ii of the act:

Block of Asset Estimated life (Years) #
plant and equipment (dies/Jigs and fixtures) 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 8 years
Vehicles 5 years
computers (servers) 3 years

# For these class of assets, based on internal technical evaluation, the management believes useful lives as given above best represent the period
over which company expects to use these assets.

Freehold land is not depreciated.  leasehold land is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of lease i.e. 90 years. 

the assets useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

an asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

losses arising from retirement or gains or losses arising from disposal of assets are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.
these are included in the statement of profit and loss within other income. 

iv) Intangible assets 

intangible assets that are acquired by the company are measured initially at cost. after initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost
less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss. 

amortisation methods and periods:

intangible assets are amortised in the statement of profit and loss over their estimated useful lives, from the date that they are available for use
based on the expected pattern of consumption of economic benefits of the asset. accordingly, at present, these are being amortised on
straight line basis.

intangible assets comprise technical knowhow - model fee and computer software.

the amortization rates are as follows: 

Block of Asset Estimated life (Years) 
technical knowhow – Model fees 5 Years
computer software 3 Years

amortisation method and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date. if the useful life of an asset is estimated to be significantly different
from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly. if there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of
economic benefits from the asset, the amortisation method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. 

an intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use and disposal. 

v) Impairment of non-financial assets

property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine if there is indication of any impairment.
if any indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.  For assets that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is
estimated at each reporting date.  an impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).  impairment losses are recognised in the

62

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020



63

statement of profit and loss. an impairment loss are reviewed for possible reversal at the end of each reporting period. an impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined net of
depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

vi) Inventories 

inventories which comprise raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods, stock-in-trade, stores and spares, and loose tools are carried at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. 

in determining the cost, weighted average cost method is used. in the case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, fixed production
overheads are allocated on the basis of normal capacity of production facilities. 

Goods in transit are valued at purchase cost.  

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale. 

the proportionate amount of additional duty of customs paid on finished goods imported for trading and lying unsold as at the year-end has been
included in the value of the finished goods stock.

the net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of related finished products. raw materials and
other supplies held for use in the production of finished products are not written down below cost except in cases where material prices have
declined and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed their net realisable value.

the comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis. 

vii) Employee benefits

short term employee benefits 

employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as short-term employee benefits.
these benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in
exchange for employee services is recognised as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees. 

post-employment benefits

the company operates the following post-employment schemes:

(a) defined contribution plans such as superannuation fund; and

(b) defined benefit plans such as gratuity, provident fund

defined contribution plans

a defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified contributions to a separate entity and has
no obligation to pay any further amounts. 

(i) superannuation fund

under the superannuation scheme, a defined contribution plan, the company pays fixed contributions into a separate trust and has no
obligation to pay further amounts. the trust has taken up a policy with the life insurance corporation of india. Benefits are paid by life
insurance corporation of india to the vesting employees on retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment. contributions paid
by the company to the superannuation trust are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

(ii) employee’s state insurance scheme

the company’s contribution paid / payable to state plans namely employees state insurance fund and employees’ pension scheme is
recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss every year. 

defined benefit plans 

(i) Gratuity

the company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. the plan provides for a lump
sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount based on the
respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. the company makes annual
contributions to gratuity fund established as trust which has taken up a group policy with the life insurance corporation of india. the company
accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in future based on an independent actuarial valuation report using the projected unit credit
method as at the year end. the liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets.

the present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields
at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

the net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets.
this cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.
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remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in
which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. they are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in
the balance sheet.

changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in
profit or loss as past service cost.

(ii) provident Fund

the eligible employees of the company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund set up as an irrevocable trust. Both the
employees and the company make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary. the aggregate
contributions along with interest thereon are paid at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment. the interest rate payable
by the trust to the beneficiaries every year is notified by the appropriate authorities. the company has an obligation to make good the shortfall,
if any, between the return from the investments of the trust and the notified interest rate. 

the annual contributions paid by the company to the provident fund are charged off to the statement of profit and loss. in addition, the
company provides for the interest shortfall, if any and is determined annually based on an independent actuarial valuation report.
remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

other long-term employee benefit obligations - compensated absences 

the employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and utilise it in future service periods or receive
cash compensation on termination of employment. since the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end
of the period in which the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve months after the end
of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. the company records an obligation for such compensated absences
in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. the obligation is measured based on independent actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method. the benefits are discounted using the appropriate market yields at the end of the reporting period
that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

the obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for
at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

viii) Revenue recognition – Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Sale of goods

the company manufactures and sells a range of power products. sales are recognised when control of the products has transferred, being when
the products are delivered to the customers. delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer, and either the customer has accepted these standard products in accordance
with the sales contract, or the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the company has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have
been satisfied.

the timing of transfers of control varies depending on the terms of sale. For sale of goods to domestic customers, such transfer occurs when
the products are delivered to dealers and for export sales when delivered to a carrier at the port of the seller.

receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the passage
of time is required before the payment is due.

Measurement of revenue: revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. amounts disclosed, as rev-
enue are exclusive goods and services tax (Gst) and inclusive amounts collected on behalf of third parties. a refund liability (sales incentive
payable) is recognized for expected volume discounts payable to customers in relation to sales made until the end of the reporting period. 

the company accounts for volume discounts and pricing incentives (sales incentive) to customers as a reduction of revenue. the
discounts/incentives are assessed based on its estimate of the customer’s anticipated annual purchases. the company recognises changes
in the estimated amount of obligations for discounts/incentives in the period in which the change occurs. the discounts/incentives are passed
on to the customer as a reduction of payments due from the customer, on actual basis.

the company’s obligation to repair or replace faulty products under the standard warranty terms is recognised as a provision, see note 14.

a contract liability is recognised on account of unsettled advances received from /due to customers. 

Sale of services

Timing of recognition: revenue from services is recognised under the proportionate completion method provided the consideration is
reliably determinable and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the collection of the consideration. the stage of completion is assessed based
on the actual service provided to the end of the reporting period as a proportion of the total services to be provided (percentage of completion
method).

Measurement of revenue:the amount recognised as revenue is exclusive of Gst and is net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates.

Sale of goods – service coupons (deferred revenue)

Timing of recognition: in arrangements for sale of goods, the company provides after-sales service coupons to the end customers which entitle
them to avail free of cost maintenance services. When two or more revenue generating activities or deliverables are provided under a single

64

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020



65

arrangement, each deliverable that is considered to be a separate unit of account is accounted for separately. the arrangements generally meet
the criteria for considering sale of goods and related services as separately identifiable components. revenue related to the service coupons
is deferred and recognised when the coupons are redeemed or expired whichever is earlier.

Measurement of revenue: the amount of service coupon revenue is based on the number of coupons redeemed or expired relative to the total
number of coupons expected to be redeemed or expired.

a contract liability is recognised on account of unexpired service coupons.

the company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer
and payment by the customer exceeds one year. consequently, the company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value
of money.

Other income

interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method. the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. 

export benefits under various schemes notified by the government are recognized on accrual basis when no significant uncertainties as to the
amount of consideration that would be derived and as to its ultimate collection exist.

ix) Financial assets

classification 

the company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and

- those measured at amortised cost.

the classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt
instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on
whether the company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

the company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

Measurement

at initial recognition, the company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are expensed in statement of profit and loss.

debt instruments

subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. there are three measurement categories into which the company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost:assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. a gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of
a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the fi-
nancial assets, where the asset’s cash flow represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVoci). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through oci, except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecog-
nised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in oci is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other income. in-
terest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in other income and impairment expenses in other expenses.

Fair value through profit or loss:assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVoci are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. a gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other income in the period in which it arises.
interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

equity instruments

the company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the management has elected to present fair value gains and
losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or
loss following the derecognition of the investment. dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
company’s right to receive payments is established. 
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changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other income in the statement of profit and loss.
impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVoci are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value.

impairment of financial assets

the company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit loss associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and FVoci debt
instruments. the impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 27 details how
the company determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the company applies the simplified approach permitted by ind as 109 Financial instruments, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

derecognition of financial assets

a financial asset is derecognised only when:

- the company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

- retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to
one or more recipients.

Where the company has transferred an asset, the company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset. in such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
financial asset is derecognised if the company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the company retains control of the financial
asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

x) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. the legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

xi) Trade and other payables

these amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid.
trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. they are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

xii) Trade receivables

trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. trade receivables
are recognized initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing component, when they are
recognized at fair value. the company holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance.

xiii) Foreign currency translation 

Functional and presentation currency

items included in the financial statements of the company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (‘the functional currency’). the financial statements are presented in indian rupee (iNr), which is the company’s functional and
presentation currency.

transaction and balances

transactions in foreign currency are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction.
exchange differences arising on foreign currency transactions settled during the year are recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the
year on a net basis.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are translated into the functional currency at the
closing exchange rates on that date. the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis. 

xiv) Provisions 

a provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the company has a present legal or constructive obligation, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be estimated reliably. 

provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period. the discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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Warranty costs

Warranty costs are estimated on the basis of a technical evaluation and past experience. provision is made for estimated liability in respect of
warranty costs in the year of sale of goods. 

xv) Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

a contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require
an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions but
are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote. contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial
statements. however, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the
asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs. 

xvi) Income Taxes 

the income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax
rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses,
if any.

the current income tax charge is calculated based on the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period in india where
the company operates and generates taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations is subject to interpretation. it establishes provisions where appropriate based on amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. however, deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts
will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. in this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

xvii) Leases 

till March 31, 2019

as a lessee

leases of property, plant and equipment where the company, as lessee, had substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership were classified
as finance leases. Finance leases were capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments. the corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, were included in borrowings or other financial
liabilities as appropriate. each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. the finance cost was charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. the property,
plant and equipment acquired under finance leases was depreciated over the asset’s useful life or over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and
the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty that the company will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.

leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership were not transferred to the company as lessee were classified as
operating leases. payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) were charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate
for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

as a lessor

lease income from operating leases where the company is a lessor was recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless
the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. the
respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

With effect from 1 april 2019:

as a lessee

From 1 april 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for
use by the company. contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. the company allocates the consideration in the contract to
the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. however, for leases of real estate for which the company is a
lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020



assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. lease liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

• fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable
• variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date
• amounts expected to be payable by the company under residual value guarantees
• the exercise price of a purchase option if the company is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and
• payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the company exercising that option.

lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

the lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the company uses incremental borrowing rate, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds nec-
essary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the company may adopt the incremental borrowing rate for the entire portfolio of leases.

the company is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in the lease
liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and
adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. the finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

• the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability
• any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
• any initial direct costs, and
• restoration costs.

the right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted
for any re measurement of the lease liability. the right-of-use asset is depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any
indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an 
expense in profit or loss. short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

as a lessor

lease income from operating leases where the company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. initial
direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense over
the lease term on the same basis as lease income. the respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature. the
company did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing standard.

xviii) Cash and cash equivalents 

cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

xix) Segment reporting

operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. the chief
executive officer has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker assess the financial performance and position of the
company and make strategic decisions. the company is primarily engaged in the business of “manufacturing and marketing of portable
gensets, water pumps, general purpose engines, lawn mower’s, brush cutters and tillers”. however, in the context of indian accounting
standard 108 – operating segments, these are considered to constitute single reportable segment.

xx) Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the company by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year. 

diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in determination of basic earnings per share to consider:

the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and the weighted average number
of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the
results would be anti-dilutive.

xxi) Contributed equity 

equity shares are classified as equity. incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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xxii) Dividends 

provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before
the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

xxiii) Royalty

the company pays / accrues for royalty in accordance with the relevant licence agreement.

xxiv) Rounding of amounts 

all amounts in indian rupees disclosed in the financial statements and notes thereof have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the
requirement of schedule iii, unless otherwise stated.

critical estimates and judgements

the preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results.
Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the company’s accounting policies.

this note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be
materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. detailed information about each
of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line
item in the financial statements.

critical estimates and judgements

the areas involving critical estimates or judgements concerning the future, and other sources of estimation uncertainty, besides impact of 
coVid-19, at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in future are:

- estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset – the annual depreciation and amortisation charge is sensitive to
the estimated lives allocated to each type of asset. assets lives are assessed annually and changed where necessary to reflect current
circumstances considering technological change and physical conditions of the assets concerned.

- revenue recognition - in revenue arrangements where more than one good or service is provided to the customer, customer consideration
is allocated between the goods and services using fair value principles. the fair values determined for deliverables may impact the timing of the
recognition of revenue. the company generally determines the fair value of individual elements based on a cost plus a reasonable margin.
revision to the estimates of these fair values may significantly affect the allocation of total arrangement consideration among the individual
elements.

- the company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease,
if the use of such option is reasonably certain. in evaluating the lease term, the company considers factors such as any significant leasehold
improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to
company’s operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. the discount rate is
generally based on the incremental borrowing rate, to determine the incremental borrowing rate, the company uses recent third-party
financing options received by the company, adjusted to lease term etc., specific to the lease being evaluated.

- estimation of defined benefit obligation – Note 25

- estimation of provision for warranty claims – Note 14

- estimation of provision for inventory obsolescence – Note 9

estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. they are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that may have a financial impact on the company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 3: Property, plant and equipment
Freehold Leasehold Buildings Plant and Furniture Vehicles Office Computers Total Capital

land land equipments and equipments work-in-
fixtures progress

(CWIP)
Year ended March 31, 2019
Gross carrying amount
opening gross carrying amount 117 404 3,513 8,613 95 480 94 159 13,475 94
additions (including transfers from cWip) - - 49 960 14 306 70 102 1,501 1,308
disposals (including transfers out of cWip) - - - (793) (7) (150) (7) (9) (966) (1,058)
Closing gross carrying amount 117 404 3,562 8,780 102 636 157 252 14,010 344

Accumulated depreciation
opening accumulated depreciation - 12 279 3,273 44 81 31 46 3,766 -
depreciation charge during the year - 6 141 1,507 20 171 24 62 1,931 -
disposals - - - (790) (5) (135) (7) (8) (945) -
Closing accumulated depreciation - 18 420 3,990 59 117 48 100 4,752 -

117 386 3,142 4,790 43 519 109 152 9,258 344 

Year ended March 31, 2020
Gross carrying amount
opening gross carrying amount 117 404 3,562 8,780 102 636 157 252 14,010 344
additions (including transfers from cWip) - - 180 1,997 5 105 25 47 2,359 2,029
reclassified on account of adoption of ind as 116 - (404) - - - - - - (404) -
disposals (including transfers out of cWip) - - - (220) (3) (211) (4) (65) (503) (2,184)
Closing gross carrying amount 117 - 3,742 10,557 104 530 178 234 15,462 189

Accumulated depreciation
opening accumulated depreciation - 18 420 3,990 59 117 48 100 4,752 -
depreciation charge during the year - - 147 1,557 13 174 33 86 2,010 -
reclassified on account of adoption of ind as 116 - (18) - - - - - - (18)
disposals - - - (217) (2) (187) (3) (65) (474) -
Closing accumulated depreciation - - 567 5,330 70 104 78 121 6,270 -
Net carrying amount 117 - 3,175 5,227 34 426 100 113 9,192 189

(i) contractual obligations
refer to note 32 for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

Note 4: Intangible assets
Technical Software Total
knowhow
Model fees

Year ended March 31, 2019
Gross carrying amount
opening gross carrying amount 327 487 814
additions (including transfers from intangible assets under development) - 15 15
disposals (including transfer out of intangible assets under development) -
Closing gross carrying amount 327 502 829

Accumulated amortisation 
opening accumulated amortisation 220 230 450
amortisation charge for the year 50 132 182
disposals - - -
Closing accumulated amortisation 270 362 632
Closing net carrying amount 57 140 197

Year ended March 31, 2020
Gross carrying amount
opening gross carrying amount 327 502 829
additions (including transfer from intangible assets under development) - 5 5
disposals -
Closing gross carrying amount 327 507 834



71

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Technical Software Total
knowhow
Model fees

Accumulated amortisation 
opening accumulated amortisation 270 362 632
amortisation charge for the year 34 95 129
disposals - - -
Closing accumulated amortisation 304 457 761
Closing net carrying amount 23 50 73

Note 4(a): Disclosure on adoption of Ind AS 116 Leases

Transitional disclosures
April 1, 2019

Transitional impact as at April 1, 2019
recognition of lease liability (included in ‘other financial liabilities’) 99
recognition of right-of-use asset 485
(includes ̀ 386 lakhs reclassified from leasehold land)

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2020
March 31, 2020

decrease in rent expense (included in ‘other expenses’) 76
increase in finance cost (17)
increase in depreciation and amortisation expense (63)
Net (decrease)/increase in profit before tax (4)
Weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities at the time of initial application is 11%.

Carrying amount of right-of-use assets at the end of the reporting period by class of underlying asset: 
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Buildings 116 -
leasehold land 380 -
Total Right-of use assets 496 -

Carrying amount of lease liability at the end of the reporting period: 
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Lease liability
current 2 -
Non current 117 -
Total lease liabilities 119 -

Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
Buildings 63 -
leasehold land 6 -
interest expense (included in finance cost) 17 -
expense relating to short-term leases (included in rent) (refer note 32(b)) 323 -
Total cash outflows for leases 340 -

additions to the right of use assets during the current financial year 565 

the company’s leasing activities: the company has entered into lease agreements for lease of offices, godowns etc., generally for a period of 6
months to 6 years with renewal option and which can be terminated after lock-in-period by serving notice period as per the terms of the agreements.

in applying indas 116 for the first time, the company has used the following practical expedients:

(i) applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics.
(ii) accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at april 1, 2019 as short-term leases.
(iii) excluding initial direct costs for the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.
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Note 5: Financial assets
5(a) Trade receivables

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Unsecured, considered good#*
receivables from others 2,100 3,208
receivables from related parties (refer note 30) 2,853 3,161
Total receivables 4,953 6,369

# includes debts amounting to iNr 677 lakhs as at March 31, 2020 (March 31, 2019: 760 lakhs) considered good in respect of which the company holds
guarantees from the bank.

* includes amount due from honda cars india limited as at March 31, 2020 iNr 67 lakhs (March 31, 2019: 79 lakhs), being a fellow subsidiary
company having common directors.

5(b) Cash and cash equivalents
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Balances with banks
- in current accounts 2,024 158
- in eeFc accounts 1,426 611

deposits with maturity of less than three months -  801
cheques on hand 4 221
cash on hand 9 5
Total cash and cash equivalents 3,463 1,796

there are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period and prior periods.

5(c) Other bank balances
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Bank deposits with maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months 46 4,258
unpaid dividend accounts* 39 42
Total other bank balances 85 4,300

*the balances in these accounts are not available for the company’s use. Further, there are no amounts due for payment to the investor education and
protection Fund under section 125 of companies act, 2013 as at the year end.

5(d) Loans and advances
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Current Non-current Current Non-current
Unsecured, considered good
security deposits 68 100 68 84
loan to fellow subsidiary (refer note 30)* 16,000 - 16,000 -
unsecured, considered doubtful
security deposits 9 - 9 -
less: provision for doubtful security deposits (9) - (9) -
Total loans 16,068 100 16,068 84 

* the loan has been given for a period of 12 months and interest is to be charged at a rate of 6.30% w.e.f. January 31, 2020 (earlier 7.4% since January
29, 2019) per annum.
the loan is repayable on demand by the company (lender).

5(e) Other financial assets
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Current Non - current Current Non - current
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
long-term deposits with banks with remaining maturity period - 5 - 1,106
more than 12 months
interest accrued on bank deposits and loans* 155 1 371 2
Total other financial assets 155 6 371 1,108

* includes amount accrued on loan to a fellow subsidiary as at March 31, 2020 iNr 151 lakhs (March 31, 2019: 175 lakhs)
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Note 6: Deferred tax assets (net)
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
expenditure covered by section 43B of income-tax act,1961 330 311

Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to set-off provisions
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 67 -

Other items
provision for slow moving inventory and discontinued models 89 101
provision for doubtful advances 66 91

155 192
Total deferred tax assets 552 503

Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to set-off provisions
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets - (100)
Other items
deferred revenue (21) (40)

Total deferred tax liabilities (21) (140)
Net deferred tax assets 531 363

Movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
Expenditure Property, plant Other items Total
covered by and equipment 

section 43B of and intangible 
Income-tax assets

Act,1961 
At April 1, 2018 243 (205) 147 185
(charged)/credited:

- to profit or loss 41 105 5 151
- to other comprehensive income 27 - - 27

At March 31, 2019 311 (100) 152 363
(charged)/credited:

- to profit or loss (41) 167 (18) 108
- to other comprehensive income 60 - - 60

At March 31, 2020 330 67 134 531

Note 7: Non Current Tax assets (net)
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Advance income tax
opening balance 3,920 3,336
add: taxes paid 481 356
add: tax refunds/adjustment - 228
Closing balance* 4,401 3,920
*includes paid under protest as at March 31, 2020 iNr 1,486 lakhs (March 31, 2019 : iNr 2180 lakhs).

Note 8: Other non-current assets
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
capital advances 215 339
recoverable from government authorities* 679 644
prepaid expenses 13 25
Total 907 1,008

Unsecured, considered doubtful
special additional duty recoverable 184 184
export benefits recoverable 27 27
others 41 41
Total 252 252

less: allowance for doubtful advances (252) (252)

Total other non-current assets 907 1,008
* includes deposit under protest as at March 31, 2020 iNr 234 lakhs (March 31, 2019 : iNr 214 lakhs)
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Note 9: Inventories
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

raw materials [includes in transit: iNr 1,850 lakhs [March 31, 2019: iNr 3,301 lakhs] 6,739 5,963
Work-in-progress 773 615
Finished goods [includes in transit: iNr 1948 lakhs (March 31, 2019: iNr 241 lakhs] 10,599 3,058
stock-in-trade [includes in transit: iNr 993 lakhs (March 31, 2019: iNr 566 lakhs] 3,092 1,629
stores and spares 256 193
less : provision for slow moving inventory (354) (290)
Total inventories 21,105 11,168

Note 10: Other current assets
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
recoverable from related parties (refer note 30) 4 33 
advances for supply of goods 54 51 
prepaid expenses 149 136 
recoverable from government authorities 4 89 
ceNVat credit receivable 47 47 
Gst receivable 8,930 8,597 
special additional duty recoverable 26 38 
export benefits recoverable 484 192 
others** 108 11 
Total 9,806 9,194 

** includes advances given to director or other officers as a part of the conditions of service extended by the company to all its employees at March 31,
2020 iNr 6 lakhs (March 31, 2019: iNr 7 lakhs).

Note 11: Equity share capital and other equity 

11(a) Equity share capital 

Authorised share capital
Equity shares

Number Amount
of shares

at the beginning of year - as at March 31, 2019 1,50,00,000 1,500
At the end of the year - As at March 31, 2020 1,50,00,000 1,500

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
Number Amount

of shares
Balance at the beginning of year - as at March 31, 2019 1,01,43,071 1,014
Balance at the end of the year - As at March 31, 2020 1,01,43,071 1,014

(i) Movements in equity share capital
Number Equity share

of shares capital
(par value)

Balance at the beginning of year - as at March 31, 2019 1,01,43,071 1,014
Balance at the end of the year - As at March 31, 2020 1,01,43,071 1,014

Terms and rights attached to equity shares
the company has a single class of equity shares having a par value of ̀ 10 each. accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and
share in the company’s residual assets. the voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to its share of the
paid-up equity capital of the company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not
been paid.

on winding up of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the company, remaining after distribution
of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held.
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(ii) Shares of the Company held by holding Co.
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

honda Motor co. ltd., Japan 67,62,000 67,62,000

(iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Number of % Number of %
shares holding shares holding

honda Motor co. ltd., Japan 67,62,000 66.67% 67,62,000 66.67%
reliance capital trustee co. ltd., india 8,35,378 8.24% 6,28,609 6.20%

11(b) Other equity
Reserve & Surplus

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
securities premium reserve 396 396
General reserve 12,087 12,087
retained earnings 43,464 38,213
Total other equity 55,947 50,696

(i) Securities premium reserve
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Balance at the beginning of year 396 396
Balance at the end of the year 396 396

(ii) General reserve
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Balance at the beginning of year 12,087 12,087
Balance at the end of the year 12,087 12,087

(iii) Retained earnings
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Balance at the beginning of year 38,213 33,948
Net profit for the year 6,652 5,415

Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings
- remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation, net of tax (179) (49)
dividend on equity shares (1,014) (913)
dividend distribution tax (208) (188)
Balance at the end of the year 43,464 38,213 

Nature and purpose of other reserves
Securities premium reserve
securities premium reserve represents the amount received in excess of par value of securities (equity shares). the reserve is utilised in accordance
with the provisions of the companies act, 2013.

General reserve
the General reserve is created from time to time on transfer of profits from retained earnings. General reserve is created by transfer from one 
component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in general reserves will not be subsequently reclassified
to profit and loss.

Retained earnings
retained earnings represent the undistributed profits of the company.

during the year a dividend of ` 10 per share , total dividend ` 1014 lakhs (previous Year ` 9 per share, total dividend 913 lakhs) was paid to equity 
shareholders. the board of directors recommended the final dividend of ̀ 12.5 per share (Nominal value of ̀ 10/share) for the financial year 2019-20.
the dividend is subject to approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual General Meeting.
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Note 12: Financial liabilities
12(a) Trade payables

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 35) 623 261
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises * 8,116 8,053
Total trade payables 8,739 8,314

* includes amount payable to related parties amounting to iNr 4,799 lakhs as at March 31, 2020 ( March 31, 2019: iNr 2,971 lakhs).(refer note 30).

12(b) Other financial liabilities
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Current
security deposits from dealers 205 203
interest accrued and due on security deposits 11 11
unpaid dividends 39 42
employee benefits payable 1,173 1,073
capital creditors 167 304
other payables 14 75
Total other current financial liabilities 1,609 1,708

Note 13: Contract liabilities
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

contract liabilities - advance from customers 833 986
contract liabilities - deferred service revenue 84 115
Total Contract liabilities 917 1,101

(i) significant changes in contract liabilities:
contract liabilities include advances from customers for which the company is obliged to transfer goods or services to the customers. 
also refer note 16.

(ii) revenue recognised that was included in the contract liabilities balance.
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

revenue recognised* 1,094 679
1,094 679

*includes ̀ 10 lakhs on account of advances written back.

Note 14: Provisions
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Current Non - current Current Non - current
Provision for employee benefits (refer note 25)
compensated absences 1,072 -   812 -
Gratuity 338 -   134 -
Other provisions
Warranties (refer note (i) below) 134 39 142 52
Total 1,544 39 1,088 52

(i) Information about warranty provisions and significant estimates
Warranties:provision is made for warranty claims in respect of products sold which are still under warranty at the end of reporting period. the com-
pany offers warranty for a period ranging from one year to two years to domestic and export customers. the warranty provision is expected to be
utilised within the normal warranty period. the provision has been created based on management’s estimates and past trends of actual claim re-
ceived.

(ii) Movements in other provisions
Movements in each class of other provisions during the financial year, are set out below:

Warranties
As at April 1, 2018 216
provision made during the year 122
provision utilised during the year (144)
As at March 31, 2019 194
provision made during the year 119
provision utilised during the year (140)
As at March 31, 2020 173
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Note 15: Other current liabilities
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

statutory tax payables 466 552
sales incentive payable 1,136 1,023
Total other current liabilities 1,602 1,575

Note 16: Revenue from Operations
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Sale of products 
Finished goods 73,740 70,466
stock in trade 6,989 8,017
spares and components 2,019 1,663
Sale of Services 456 426
Total 83,204 80,572

Other operating revenue
scrap sales 155 143
support service fees 172 178
export benefit income 1,323 688
others 10 7

1,660 1,016
Total revenue from operations 84,864 81,588

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price:
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

contract price 85,035 82,603
sales incentive (1,747) (1,916)
deferred service revenue (84) (115)
Total revenue from contracts with customers 83,204 80,572

revenue related to the service coupons is deferred and recognised when the coupons are redeemed or expired whichever is earlier. Management
estimates that the entire deferred revenue would be recognised as revenue within next 12 months.

Note 17: Other income 
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

interest income from financial assets at amortised cost - deposits with Bank 183 1,285
interest income on loan to fellow subsidiary (refer note 30) 1,158 195
interest income on income tax refund - 110
Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipments 48 50 
Foreign exchange fluctuation (net) 76 60 
provisions / liabilities written back to the extent no longer required 87 45 
Miscellaneous income 24 21 
Total other income 1,576 1,766 

Note 18: Cost of materials consumed
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

raw material inventory at the beginning of the year 5,963 5,078
add  : purchases 53,051 45,058
less : raw material inventory at the end of the year 6,739 5,963
Total cost of materials consumed 52,275 44,173

Note 19: Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Inventories at the end of the year:
Finished goods 10,599 3,058
stock-in-trade 3,092 1,629
Work-in-progress 773 615

14,464 5,302
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Finished goods 3,058 2,535
stock-in-trade 1,629 1,087
Work-in-progress 615 472

5,302 4,094
Total changes in inventories of finished goods,work-in-progress and stock-in-trade (9,162) (1,208)
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Note 20: Employee benefits expense
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

salaries, wages and bonus 9,667 8,429
contribution to provident fund and other funds (refer note 25) 491 407
Gratuity (refer note 25) 153 131
compensated absences (refer note 25) 364 221
staff welfare expenses 761 658
Total employee benefits expense 11,436 9,846

Note 21: Finance costs
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

interest on dealers security deposits 12 12
interest on lease liabilities 17 -
interest on others 1 -
Total finance costs 30 12

Note 22: Depreciation and amortisation expense
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 2,010 1,931
depreciation of right-of-use assets (refer note 4(a)) 69 -
amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4) 129 182
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 2,208 2,113

Note 23: Other expenses
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

consumption of stores and spare parts 478 331
power and fuel 819 731
rent (refer note 32(b)) 323 293
repairs

- Building 51 32
- Machinery 175 137
- others 107 94

insurance 89 90
rates and taxes 26 12
royalty 3,144 2,976
technical guidance fees 418 339
Freight, clearing and forwarding 2,536 2,163
commission on sales 2,691 2,554
advertisement and sales promotion 465 366
service expenses 159 187
travelling expenses 655 599
legal and professional fees (refer note 23(a)) 582 584
Vehicle running expenses 148 136
Bad debts written off - 5
provision for slow moving inventory 64 53
provision for doubtful advances - 11
advances written off 2 28
Warranty 119 122
security expenses 109 97
Bank charges 41 45
contribution towards corporate social responsibility (refer note 23(b)) 190 185
Miscellaneous expenses 538 451
Total other expenses 13,929 12,621

Note 23(a): Details of payments to auditors
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Payments to auditors#
As auditor:
audit fee 36 55
tax audit fee 3 3
limited reviews fee 9 9
re-imbursement of expenses 7 10
In Other Capacity:
certification Fees 1 -
Total payments to auditors 56 77 
# excluding Gst
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Note 23(b): Corporate social responsibility expenditure
as per section 135 of the companies act 2013, a corporate social responsibility (csr) committee has been formed by the company. the company
has contributed iNr 190 lakhs (March 2019: 185 lakhs) towards prime Minister National relief Fund as specified in schedule Vii of the companies act,
2013.

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
amount required to be spent as per section 135 of the act 190 185
amount spent during the year on
(i)  construction/acquisition of an asset - -
(ii) on purposes other than (i) above 190 185

Note 24: Income tax expense 
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

(a) Income tax expense
current tax
current tax on profits for the year 2,499 3,067
Total current tax expense 2,499 3,067

Deferred tax
decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets 11 (155)
(decrease)/increase in deferred tax liabilities (119) 4
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) (108) (151)
Income tax expense 2,391 2,916

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate:
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

profit before income tax expense 9,043 8,331

Tax at the India tax rate of 25.168% (2018-2019: 34.944%) 2,276 2,911
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible / (taxable) in calculating taxable income:
amortisation of leasehold land 2 2
other items 113 3
Income tax expense 2,391 2,916

Note 25 : Employee benefits

(i) Leave obligations
the leave obligations cover the company’s liability for earned leave.
the amount of the provision of iNr 1072 lakhs (March 31, 2019: iNr 812 lakhs) is presented as current since the company does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these obligations. however, based on past experience, the company does not expect all employees to
take the full amount of accrued leave or require payment within the next 12 months.

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
leave obligations not expected to be settled within the next 12 months 954 734

(ii)  Defined contribution plans
superannuation Fund
the expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plan is iNr 95 lakhs (March 31, 2019: 82 lakhs).
employee state insurance
the expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plan is iNr 24 lakhs (March 31, 2019: 22 lakhs).

(iii) Post-employment obligations
(a) Gratuity
(b) Provident fund

the expenses recognised during the period towards provident fund is iNr 372 lakhs (March 31, 2019: iNr 303 lakhs) which also includes defined
contribution to family pension scheme iNr 148 lakhs (March 31, 2019: 116 lakhs).
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Balance sheet amounts - Gratuity
the amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:

Present value Fair value of Net Amount
of obligation plan assets

April 1, 2018 1,439 (1,237) 202
current service cost 116 - 116
interest expense/(income) 111 (96) 15
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 227 (96) 131
Remeasurements
return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest expense/(income) - (6) (6)
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions 11 - 11
experience (gains)/losses (experience adjustment) 71 - 71
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 82 (6) 76
employer contributions -   (275) (275)
Benefit payments (114) 114 -
March 31, 2019 1,634 (1,500) 134

April 1, 2019 1,634 (1,500) 134
current service cost 143 - 143
interest expense/(income) 124 (114) 10
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 267 (114) 153
Remeasurements
return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest expense/(income) - 6 6
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions 135 - 135
experience (gains)/losses 98 - 98
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 233 6 239
employer contributions -   (188) (188)
Benefit payments (107) 107 -
March 31, 2020 2,027 (1,689) 338 

Balance sheet amounts - Provident fund
Present value Fair value of Net Amount
of obligation plan assets

April 1, 2018 4,791 (5,101) (310)
current service cost 176 - 176
interest expense/(income) 369 (369) -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 545 (369) 176
Remeasurements
return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest expense/(income) - (71) (71)
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions - - -
experience (gains)/losses (experience adjustment) 64 - 64
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 64 (71) (7)
employer contributions - (176) (176)
contributions by plan participants/employees 490 (490) -
Benefits paid (357) 357 -
settlements/transfer in 20 (20) -
March 31, 2019* 5,553 (5,870) (317)

April 1, 2019 5,553 (5,870) (317)
current service cost 215 -   215
interest expense/(income) 479 (479) -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 694 (479) 215
Remeasurements
return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest expense/(income) - (20) (20)
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions - -
experience (gains)/losses (2) - (2)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (2) (20) (22)
employer contributions (215) (215)
contributions by plan participants/employees 592 (592) -
Benefit payments (452) 452 -
settlements/transfer in 27 (27) -
March 31, 2020 6,412 (6,751) (339)
* there is surplus in the provident fund, hence no liability has been recognised
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the net liability disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plan is as follows:
Gratuity Provident fund

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
present value of funded obligations 2,027 1,634 6,412 5,553
Fair value of plan assets (1,689) (1,500) (6,751) (5,870)
Deficit/(surplus) of funded plan 338 134 (339) (317)
unfunded plans - - - -
Deficit/(surplus) of gratuity plan and provident fund* 338 134 (339) (317)

*excess of planned assets over defined benfit obligations has not been recognised in the books. the company is under an obligation to make good the
shortfall, if any.

(iv) Post employment benefits
Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity
the significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Gratuity Provident fund
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

discount rate 6.80% 7.62% 6.80% 7.62%
salary growth rate 8.00% 8.00% - -
expected statutory interest rate on the ledger balance - - 8.50% 8.65%
expected short fall in interest earnings on the fund - - 0.05% 0.05%
retirement age 58 years 58 years 58 years 58 years
Mortality rate 100% of ialM 100% of ialM 100% of ialM 100% of ialM

(2006-08) (2006-08) (2006-08) (2006-08)
Withdrawal rate
ages:

upto 30 years 3% 3% 3% 3%
From 31 to 44 years 2% 2% 2% 2%
above 44 years 1% 1% 1% 1%

(v) Sensitivity analysis
the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the principal assumptions is:

(i)   Changes in defined benefit obligation of Gratuity plan due to change in discount rate
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

a) defined benefit obligation 2,027 1,634
b) impact on defined benefit obligation at 0.5% increase in discount rate (89) (64)
c) impact on defined benefit obligation at 0.5% decrease in discount rate 88 70

(ii)  Changes in defined benefit obligation of Gratuity plan due to change in salary growth rate
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

a) defined benefit obligation 2,027 1,634
b) impact on defined benefit obligation at 0.5% increase in salary growth rate 87 69
c) impact on defined benefit obligation at 0.5% decrease in salary growth rate (89) (65)

(iii) Changes in defined benefit obligation of Provident Fund plan due to change in discount rate
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

a) defined benefit obligation 6,412 5,553
b) impact on defined benefit obligation at 0.5% increase in discount rate (1) (1)
c) impact on defined benefit obligation at 0.5% decrease in discount rate 1 1

(iv) Changes in defined benefit obligation of Gratuity plan due to changes in mortality rate, is negligible.
the above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. in practice, this is unlikely to occur,
and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumption the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting
period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.
the methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.
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(vi) The major categories of plan assets are as follows:
Gratuity

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Unquoted in % Unquoted in %

Investment funds
Funds managed by insurer 1,689 100% 1,500 100%
Total 1,689 100% 1,500 100%

Provident fund
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Unquoted in % Unquoted in %
Investment funds
Government securities 3,376 50% 2,935 50%
public sector unit bonds 3,038 45% 2,642 45%
Mutual funds 337 5% 293 5%
Total 6,751 100% 5,870 100%

(vii) Risk exposure 
through its defined benefit plan, the company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are defined below:
Investment risk if plan is funded then assets and liabilities mismatch and actual investment return on assets is lower than 

the discount rate assumed at the last valuation date can impact the liability.
Discount rate reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.
Mortality and disability actual deaths and disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the

liabilities.
Salary increases actual salary increases will increase the plan’s liability. increase in salary increase rate assumption in 

future valuations will also increase the liability.
Withdrawals actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at

subsequent valuations can impact plan’s liability.

(viii) Defined benefit liability and employer contributions 

expected contribution to post-employment benefit plan for the year ended March 31, 2021 is iNr 174 lakhs.

the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation of Gratuity plan as at March 31, 2020 is 16.77 years (March 31, 2019: 16.73 years). the
expected maturity analysis of gratuity is as follows:

Less than Between 1-2 Between 2-5 Over 5 Total
a years years years years 

March 31, 2020
defined benefit obligation 333 185 460 1,049 2,027
Total 333 185 460 1,049 2,027
March 31, 2019
defined benefit obligation 201 30 173 1,230 1,634
Total 201 30 173 1,230 1,634
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Note 26: Fair value measurements 
Financial instruments by category

Notes March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Amortised cost Amortised cost

Financial assets 
trade receivables 5(a) 4,953 6,369
loans & security deposits 5(d) 16,168 16,152
cash and cash equivalents 5(b) 3,463 1,796
other bank balances 5(c) 85 4,300
long-term deposits with banks with remaining maturity period 
more than 12 months 5(e) 5 1,106
interest accrued on bank deposits 5(e) 156 373
Total financial assets 24,830 30,096
Financial liabilities 
trade payables 12(a) 8,739 8,314
lease liability 4(a) 119 -
security deposits 12(b) 205 203
interest accrued and due on security deposits 12(b) 11 11
unpaid dividends 12(b) 39 42
employee benefits payable 12(b) 1,173 1,073
other payables 12(b) 14 75
capital creditors 12(b) 167 304
Total financial liabilities 10,467 10,022

(i) Fair value hierarchy 
level 1: level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices (for example, listed equity instruments, traded bonds and
mutual funds that have quoted price). there are no financial instruments measured using level 1 valuation technique.

level 2: the fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. if
all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

level 3: if one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value
specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
(a) the management assessed that the cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, other bank balances,loans, security deposits, fixed
deposits with banks and its interest accrued and other financial assets and liabilities approximate the carrying value due to the short term maturities of
these instruments. the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in forced or liquidation sale.

(iii) Valuation processes
the finance department of the company includes a team that performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting
purposes, including level 3 fair values. this team reports directly to the chief Financial officer (cFo). discussions of valuation processes and results
are held between the cFo and the valuation team at least once every three months, in line with the company’s quarterly reporting periods.

(iv) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost 
the following summarises the financial instruments at fair value and classification of financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the 
accounting standards: 

there are no financial assets and financial liabilities in a category measured at fair value-recurring fair value measurements.

the carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade payables, employee benefits payables, interest 
accrued, unpaid dividends, capital creditors, deferred service revenue and security deposits received are considered to be the same as their fair values,
due to their short-term nature.

the fair values for security deposits given and long - term deposits with banks with remaining maturity period more than 12 months were calculated based
on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate. security deposits is classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion
of unobservable inputs, including counterparty credit risk and long term deposits with banks with remaining maturity period more than 12 months is
classified as level 2 for values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of observable inputs including current market lending rate. the carrying amount
is considered to approximate the same to fair value as at the reporting date.
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Note 27: Financial risk management 

the company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. the company’s overall risk management program focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize the potential adverse effects on the company’s financial performance. this note explains the
sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages such risk.

the company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. the company’s risk management policies are established to identify 
and analyse the risks faced by the company to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. risk management
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the company’s activities.

(A) Credit risk
credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, financial assets carried at amortised cost and deposits with banks, as well as credit exposures to
customers, including outstanding receivables.

(i) Credit risk management
Trade receivables and other financial assets
a default is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within 30 days of when they fall due in case of trade receivables and for other financial
assets as prescribed by relevant terms of the contract. this definition of default is determined considering the business environment in which the
company operates and other macro-economic factors. assets are written-off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor
declaring  bankruptcy or failing to engage in a repayment plan with the company. Where financial assets have been written off, the company continues
to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss.

the company extends credit to the customers considering factors such as credit track record in the market and past dealing with the company. the
company monitors the payment track record of the customers. the company’s third party export customers are secured through letter of credit and
majority of the company’s export trade receivables are outstanding but not due with its related entities, which mitigates the risk to an extent.

Cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks
credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and diversifying bank deposits
accounts in different banks across the country.

Loan to a fellow subsidiary
this loan is considered to be at low credit risk. Management considers the loan to be low credit risk when it has a low risk of default and the borrower has
a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term. the loan is with the company’s related entity which is repayable on 
demand of the company which mitigates the risk to an extent.

(ii) Provision for expected credit losses
the company provides for expected credit loss based on the following:

(a) Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 month expected credit losses
the 12-month expected credit loss is a portion of the lifetime expected credit losses which results from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.  at initial recognition, financial assets are considered as having negligible credit risk. the company monitors whether
there is any significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

(b) Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using life time expected credit losses
lifetime expected credit loss are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
Management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are 6 months past due date are still collectible in full. the company considers the probability
of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. to assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the company compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as
at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. it considers available reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. considering the above factors the trade receivables continue to have a negligible credit risk on initial recognition and thereafter on
each reporting date. 

Risk
credit risk

liquidity risk

Market risk - foreign 
exchange

Exposure arising from
cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, financial assets measured
at amortised cost
other liabilities

recognised financial assets and
liabilities not denominated in indian
rupee (iNr)

Measurement
ageing analysis

rolling cash flow forecasts

cash flow forecasting
sensitivity analysis

Management
diversification of bank deposits, credit
limits, letter of credit and perio dic
monitoring of realisable value
availability of sufficient internally
generated operating cash flows
cash flow forecasting
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Significant estimates and judgments
impairment of financial assets
the impairment provisions for financial assets disclosed above are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. the company
uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the company past history, existing 
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

(B) Liquidity risk
liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by 
delivering cash. the company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due. 
the company aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents and other highly marketable debt investments at an amount in excess of 
expected cash outflows on financial liabilities.

Maturities of financial liabilities
the tables below analyse the company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all financial liabilities:
the amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the im-
pact of discounting is not significant.

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities Less than one year Total
March 31, 2020
trade payables 8,739 8,739
lease liabilities 2 2
security deposits 205 205
employee benefits payables 1,173 1,173
other financial liabilities 231 231

March 31, 2019
trade payables 8,314 8,314
lease liabilities - -
security deposits 203 203
employee benefits payables 1,073 1,073
other financial liabilities 432 432

(C) Market risk
(i) Foreign currency risk
the company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily with respect to the usd, JpY and thB. Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the company’s
functional currency (iNr). the risk is measured through a forecast of highly probable foreign currency cash flows.

(a) Foreign currency risk exposure
the company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in iNr, are as follows:

March 31, 2020
USD JPY THB EURO AUD CAD

Financial assets 
trade receivables* 2,716 - - - - -
cash balance** 1 - - - - -
Bank balance in eeFc accounts 1,426 - - - - -
Exposure to foreign currency risk (assets) 4,143 - - - - -
Financial liabilities
trade payables 2,781 402 154 - - -
Exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities) 2,781 402 154 - - -
* includes iNr 0.12 lakhs (for Fc JpY)
**includes iNr 0.13 lakhs (for Fc thB) & 0.19 (for Fc YeN)

March 31, 2019
USD JPY THB EURO AUD CAD

Financial assets
trade receivables* 3,042 - - - - -
cash balance** 0 - - - - -
Bank balance in eeFc accounts 611 - - - - -
Exposure to foreign currency risk (assets) 3,653 - - - - -
Financial liabilities
trade payables*** 1,891 540 317 4 - -
Exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities) 1,891 540 317 4 - - *
*includes iNr 0.43 lakhs (for Fc JpY)
**includes iNr 0.10 lakhs (for Fc thB)
***includes iNr 0.10 lakhs (for Fc GBp)
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(b) Sensitivity
the sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments

Increase/(Decrease) in profit before tax
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

USD sensitivity
increase by 5% (March 31, 2019: 5%)* 68.1 88.1
decrease by 5% (March 31, 2019: 5%)* (68.1) (88.1)
JPY sensitivity
increase by 5% (March 31, 2019: 5%)* (20.1) (27.0)
decrease by 5% (March 31, 2019: 5%)* 20.1 27.0
THB sensitivity
increase by 5% (March 31, 2019: 5%)* (7.7) (15.9)
decrease by 5% (March 31, 2019: 5%)* 7.7 15.9
* holding all other variables constant.

Note 28: Capital management

(a) Risk management
the company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

the company does not have any debt in its financial statements. the company is dependent on the capital contribution and cash flows generated from
operations for the funding. the company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. 
there is no change in the company’s capital structure since the previous year.

(b) Dividends
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

(i)   Equity shares
Final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2019 of iNr 10.00 1,014 913
(March 31, 2018: iNr 9.00) per fully paid share.

(ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period
in addition to the above dividends, since year end the directors have recommended   
the payment of a final dividend of iNr  12.5 (March 31, 2019: iNr 10) per fully paid up 1,268 1,014
equity share. this proposed dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders in the
ensuing annual general meeting.

Note 29: Segment information 

the company is primarily engaged in the business of “power products”. the chief executive officer is the company’s chief operating decision
Maker (codM) within the meaning of ind as 108 ‘operating segments’. codM examines the company’s performance, reviews internal management
reports, allocates resources based on analysis of various performance indicator of the company as a single unit. therefore, there is no reportable segment
for the company as per the requirements of ind as 108 “operating segment”.

Geographical information
the company is domiciled in india. the amount of its revenue from external customers attributable to the entity’s country of domicile and attributable to
all foreign countries in total from which the entity derives revenue is shown in the table below:

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
india 50,096 48,744
Foreign countries 34,768 32,844
Total 84,864 81,588

revenue from transactions with external customers amounting to 10% or more of an entity’s revenue is iNr 25,254 lakhs (March 31, 2019: iNr
22,915 lakhs).

the total of non-current assets other than deferred tax assets broken down by location of the assets is shown below:

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
india 15,364 15,919
Foreign countries - -
Total 15,364 15,919
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Note 30: Related party transactions
(a) Parent entity
the company is controlled by the following entity:
Name Type Place of Ownership interest

incorporation March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
honda Motor co. ltd., Japan holding and  Japan 66.67% 66.67%

ultimate holding
company

(b) Other related parties
Type Name Place of incorporation
Fellow subsidiaries with whom honda philippines inc. philippines
transactions have been undertaken honda del peru s.a. peru

honda de Mexico s.a. de c.V. Mexico
honda australia M. & p.e. pty. limited australia
asian honda Motor co. limited thailand
honda trading corporation Japan
honda trading asia co. limited thailand
pt. honda power products indonesia indonesia 
honda Motorcycle and scooter india private limited india
Moto honda da amazonia ltd. Brazil
honda trading (south china) co. limited hong Kong
honda r & d co. limited Japan
honda r & d (india) private limited india
honda Motor de argentina s.a. argentina
shanghai honda trading co. limited china
pt. honda trading indonesia indonesia 
honda trading Brasil ltd. Brasil
honda canada inc. canada
american honda Motor co. inc. usa
honda trading de argentina s.a. argentina
honda trading corporation india private limited india
honda Gulf FZe uae
honda taiwan co ltd taiwan
thai honda Manufacturing co ltd thailand
honda access india private limited india
honda Kaihatsu co. ltd. Japan
honda trading europe ltd. Belgium
honda Motor europe limited uK
honda cars india limited india
honda selva del peru s.a. peru
honda trading philippines ecozone corporation philippines
honda trading america corp. america
honda Motor southern africa (pty.) limited south africa
honda Motor de chile s.a. chile
taiwan honda trading co. ltd. taiwan
honda Vietnam power products co. ltd. Vietnam
rajasthan prime steel processing center private limited india

Key management personnel Mr. Yoshifumi iida- president and ceo (resigned w.e.f 1st February, 2020)
Mr. takahiro ueda- cMd and president & ceo (appointed w.e.f 1st February, 2020)
Mr. hiroyoshi sugimizu- senior Vice president and Whole time director 
Mr. Vinay Mittal- senior Vice president, Whole time director and cFo
Mr. siddharth shriram, chairman (resigned w.e.f 1st april, 2020)
Mr. d.V. Kapur, director (retired on 31st March, 2019)
Mr. ravi.V.Gupta, director  (retired on 31st March, 2019)
Mr. Manoj arora, director
Mr. ravi prakash Mehrotra, director (appointed w.e.f 31st March, 2020)
Ms. alka M. Bharucha, director
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(c) Key management personnel (KMP) compensation*
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Short-term employee benefits 
Mr Yoshifumi iida 252 241
Mr hiroyoshi sugimizu 226 211
Mr takahiro ueda 27 -
Mr Vinay Mittal 148 127
Sitting fees
Mr siddharth shriram 7 7
Mr d.V. Kapur - 9
Mr ravi V. Gupta - 6
Mr Manoj arora 7 7
Ms alka. M. Bharucha 7 3
other recoverable from employees 6 7
*excludes contribution to the gratuity fund and provision for leave encashment determined on an actuarial basis, as these are determined for the
company as a whole.

(d) Transactions with related parties
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Holding Company

Purchase of goods
stock-in-trade 1,242 2,130
components, raw material, consumables and spares 4,266 4,085

Purchase of capital goods 49 8

Other Expenses
technical guidance fee 418 339
royalty 3,144 2,976
export commission on sales 2,622 2,521

Sale of products
Finished goods** 1,244 507
spares and components 0 1

Dividend paid 676 609

Reimbursement of expenses
paid 900 866
received 22 46
Fellow subsidiaries with whom transaction exceeds 10% of the total class of transaction

Purchase of stock-in-trade
asian honda Motor co. limited, thailand 5,341 4,536
others 3 -
Purchase of components, raw material, consumables and spares
asian honda Motor co. limited, thailand 2,721 1,642
honda trading asia co. ltd., thailand 1,052 354
honda trading corporation, Japan 813 680
rajasthan prime steel processing center privale limited, india 692 458
shanghai honda trading co. ltd., china 587 488
honda trading corp. india pvt. ltd., india 574 329
others 118 104

Purchase of capital goods
honda trading corporation, Japan 65 5
others 0 5

Sale of finished goods
american honda Motor co. inc, usa 25,254 22,915
honda australia M. and p.e. ptY ltd., australia 1,307 1,638
honda canada inc., canada 3,196 3,065
honda Motor europe ltd, united Kingdom 1,627 1,786
others 956 1,263
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March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Sale of spares and components
honda cars india ltd., india 408 359
honda Motorcycle and scooter india pvt. ltd., india 1,497 944
others 10 258

Fee for infrastructure support services
honda r&d (india) pvt. ltd., india 17 16

Support service fees
honda cars india ltd., india 172 178

Loan to fellow subsidiary
honda cars india ltd., india - 16,000

Interest Income on Loan
honda cars india ltd., india 1,158 195

Reimbursement of expenses paid
american honda Motor co. inc, usa 94 109
honda canada inc., canada 37 39
others 116 98

Reimbursement of expenses received
honda cars india ltd., india 6 9
honda r&d (india) pvt. ltd., india 10 10
others 4 2
** the company is proposing to get the excess amount of ̀ 44 lakhs ratified from the shareholders in the ensuing annual General Meeting.

(e) Outstanding balances arising from sales/purchases of goods and services, purchase of assets and other transactions

the following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to transactions with related parties:
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Holding Company
trade payable 3,539 2,264
trade receivable - 43
other recoverable 2 30

Fellow subsidiaries

Trade Payable
asian honda Motor co. ltd., thailand 855 500
others 405 207

Trade Receivable
american honda Motor co. inc, usa 2,479 1,995
honda australia M. and p.e. ptY ltd., australia 126 124
honda canada inc., canada - 399
honda Motor europe ltd, united Kingdom - 121
honda Motorcycle and scooter india pvt. ltd., india 69 192
hoNda GulF FZe - 124
others 179 163

Loan to fellow subsidiary
honda cars india limited, india 16,000 16,000

Interest accrued on loan to fellow subsidiary
honda cars india limited, india 151 175

Other Recoverable 
honda r&d (india) pvt. limited, india 1 1
others 1 2

Advance from customers
thai honda Manufacturing co ltd - 22
others 1 0

there is no impairment allowance recognised in respect of receivables due from related parties.
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(f) Terms and conditions
transactions relating to dividends were on the same terms and conditions that applied to other shareholders.
Goods and services were sold to the related parties during the year based on the price lists in force / other appropriate basis, as applicable, and terms
that would be available to third parties.
all other transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates. all outstanding balances are unsecured and settled
in cash.

Note 31: Contingent liabilities 

the company had contingent liabilities at the year end in respect of:
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

claims against the company not acknowledged as debts
income tax matters 6,652 7,626
excise and customs matters 366 2,695
service tax matters - 6
sales tax matters 331 873
other matters 11 11

Notes
(i)   in respect of the matters above, the amount represents the demands received under the respective demand/ show cause notices/ legal claims,

wherever applicable.
(ii)  pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of

the above as it is determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with various forums/authorities.
(iii) the company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.
(iv) the company has received a show cause notice dated May 30, 2018 from regional commissioner - Noida under section 7a of the employees’ provident

Fund and Miscellaneous provisions act 1952 challenging the salary structure used for determining the liability under the act in case of international
workers. presently the proceedings subsequent to the notice are in data collection stage and no demand has been raised on the company.
the company has filed a writ petition against the show cause notice and proceedings thereto, in allahabad high court, wherein the hon’able high
court in their order dated april 30, 2019 directed that any final order passed by the provident Fund authorities will be subject to the disposal of the
present writ petition.
Based on the opinion obtained from external legal expert’s, the management has assessed that the company has a good case in the said matter.

(v)  the company will continue to assess the impact of further developments relating to retrospective application of supreme court Judgment in case
of “Vivekananda Vidyamandir and others Vs the regional provident Fund commissioner (ii) West Bengal” and the related circular (circular No. 
c-i/1(33)2019/Vivekananda Vidya Mandir/284) dated March 20, 2019 issued by the employees’ provident Fund organisation on non-exclusion of
certain allowances from the definition of “basic wages” of the relevant employees for the purposes of determining contribution to provident fund under
the employees’ provident Funds & Miscellaneous provisions act, 1952. in the assessment of the management which is supported by legal advice,
the aforesaid matter is not likely to have a significant impact and accordingly, no provision has been made in these Financial statements.

Note 32: Commitments 

(a) Capital commitments
capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities (net of advances) is as follows

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 
provided for (net of advances)

property, plant and equipment 310 473

(b) Operating leases
a)   General description of the company’s operating lease arrangements:

the company enters into operating lease arrangements for offices, residential premises for its employees and equipment for generating 
power for captive consumption. some of the significant terms and conditions of the arrangements are:
-    certain agreements for premises may generally be terminated by the lessee or either party by serving one to three month’s notice or by 

paying the notice period rent in lieu thereof.
-      the lease arrangements are generally renewable on the expiry of lease period subject to mutual agreement.

b)   rental expense relating to operating lease
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Minimum lease payments 328 301
328 301
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c)   Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease are payable as follows:
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Within one year - 15
later than one year but not later than five years - -

- 15

d) the company has sub-leased one of its leasehold premises. the sub-lease agreement is cancellable by either party by serving three months 
notice period. the rent received during the year amounting to iNr 5 lakhs (March 31, 2019: iNr 8 lakhs) has been netted off with rent expense.

Note 33: Events occuring after the reporting period
refer to note 28(b) for the final dividend recommended by the directors which is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general
meeting.

Note 34: Earnings per share
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company 6,652 5,415
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic 1,01,43,071 1,01,43,071
and diluted earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share 65.58 53.39

Note: there are no dilutive instruments

Note 35: Disclosure as required under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 based on the information 

Note 36: Exceptional items
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

amount incurred and paid for final settlement in respect of disputed matter related to - (350)
leasehold land of company situated at rudrapur
amount incurred and paid for sabka Vishwas (legacy dispute resolution) (1,086) -
scheme, 2019 (refer note (1) below)
export incentives under Merchandise exports from india scheme (Meis) on 1523 -
export sales (refer note (2) below)
Total exceptional income/(expense) 437 (350)

1) Expense: 2019-20 - Government of india in Finance (No. 2) Bill, 2019 has introduced sabka Vishwas (legacy dispute resolution) scheme, 2019,
which provides an option to settle eligible tax disputes. during the current period the company has decided to avail this option to settle eligible tax 
disputes amounting to ̀ 2,196 lakhs and consequently an amount of ̀ 1,086 lakhs has been provided during current year for this purpose.

2) Income: 2019-20 - till 2018-19 the company was claiming export incentives under Merchandise exports from india scheme (Meis) on export 
sales made to a few countries. during the current period based on the export pricing strategy, the company has decided to claim export incentive on 
exports made to all countries. the additional export benefits related to the period april 1, 2016 to March 31, 2019 amounting to ` 1,523 lakhs 
(2016-17 - ̀ 436 lakhs, 2017-18 – ̀ 525 lakhs & 2018-19 – ̀ 562 lakhs) have been recognized during the current year as exceptional income.

Particulars
the amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small suppliers as at the end of the year

-principals
-interest

the amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the Micro, small and Medium enterprises development act,
2006 (MsMed act, 2006)

the amounts of the payments made to micro and small supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year

the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in the making payment (which have been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MsMed
act, 2006

the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year

the amount of further inrterest remaining due and payable even in succeeding years, until such date when
the interest dues as above are actually paid to small enterprise for the purpose of disallownace as a
deductible expenditure under the MsMed act, 2006

March 31, 2020

623
-

-

-

-

-

-

March 31, 2019

261
-

-

-

-

-

-
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Note 37:the company’s operations were temporarily shut down with effect from March 23, 2020, on account of nationwide lockdown due to outbreak
of pandemic coVid-19. With partial opening of lockdown, the operation resumed on May 12, 2020 after obtaining permission as per state Government
Guidelines. 
the company has assessed the possible impact of coVid-19, internal and external, on liquidity position, carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment, inventories, receivables and other current assets. Based on current economic conditions, the company expects to recover the carrying
amount of these assets. 
accordingly as on date, the management doesn’t foresee any material impact on its financial statement.

Note 38: on 20th september 2019, Government of india vide the taxation laws (amendment) ordinance 2019, inserted section 115Baa in the income
tax act, 1961, which provides domestic companies an option to pay income tax at reduced rate effective 1 april 2019, subject to certain conditions. the
tax expenses for the year ended March 31, 2020 have been provided for at reduced tax rate. accordingly, tax expense is lower and profit for the year ended
March 31, 2020 is higher by ̀ 853 lakhs.

Note 39:the previous year figures are regrouped and rearranged to conform to the current period presentation.
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